
AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 



AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 



AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Page 

Directory 

Statement by the Manager 2 

Financial Statements 

Statement of Comprehensive Income 3- 7 

Statement of Changes in Unit Holders' Funds 8 - 12 

Statement of Financial Position 13 - 17 

Statement of Cash Flows 18 - 22 

Notes to the Financial Statements 23 - 130 

Auditor's Report 131 



AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

DIRECTORY 

THE MANAGER 

AMP Investment Management (N.Z.) Limited 
Ground Floor, PricewaterhouseCoopers Tower 
113 - 119 The Terrace, PO Box 3764, WELLINGTON 

This is also the address of the registered office. 

DIRECTORS 
G. D. Hassell 
B.T. Graham 
D.A. Archibald 
R.T. Swan 
W.D. Potter (appointed 13 July 2016) 
KJ. Poore (resigned 15 April 2016) 

INVESTMENT MANAGER 
AMP Capital Investors (New Zealand) Limited 

SOLICITORS 
DLA Piper New Zealand for the Manager 
Chapman Tripp for the Supervisor 

THE SUPERVISOR 
The New Zealand Guardian Trust Company Limited 
Level 2, Dimension Data House, 99-105 Customhouse Quay 
PO Box 3845, WELLINGTON 

AUDITOR 
Ernst & Young 
Majestic Centre, 100 Willis Street 
PO Box 490, WELLINGTON 

INVESTMENT ADMINISTRATOR & REGISTRAR 
BNP Paribas Fund Services Australasia Pty Limited 

CORRESPONDENCE 

All correspondence and enquiries to the Supervisor about the Funds should be addressed to the Manager Corporate Trusts, The New Zealand Guardian Trust Company Limited, at the above address. 

All correspondence and enquiries to the Manager about the Funds should be addressed to the Manager, AMP Investment Management (N.Z.) Limited at the above address. 



AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

The AMP Capital Investment Funds ("The Funds") are offered under a registered scheme called the "AMP Capital Investment Funds", scheme number SCHI0307 ("The Scheme"). The Scheme is governed by the AMP Capital 
Investment Retail Funds Trust Deed dated 24 November 2015 (as amended from time to time) ("The Trust Deed') between AMP Investment Management (N.Z.) Limited ("The Manager") and the New Zealand Guardian Trust 
Company Limited, ("The Supervisor"). 

STATEMENT BY THE MANAGER 

In our opinion, the accompanying Financial statements and notes are drawn up in accordance with generally accepted accounting practice and fairly present the financial position of the AMP Capital Investment Funds as at 31 March 
2017, and of the results of their financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the requirement of the Trust Deed. 

It is believed that there are no circumstances that may materially and adversely affect any interest of the Unit Holders in the assets other than those already disclosed in this report. 

For and on behalf of the Manager: 

AMP Investment Management (N.Z.) Limited 

,„J( 
Director 

10 July 2017 
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AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

REVENUE 
Note 

Responsible Investment 
Leaders Conservative Fund 

2017 	2016 
5000 	5000 

Responsible Investment 
Leaders Balanced Fund 

2017 	2016 
5000 	5000 

Responsible Investment 
Leaders Growth Fund 

2017 	2016 
5'000 	5000 

Global Multi-Asset Fund 

2017 	2016 
5'000 	5000 

Income Generator Fund 

2017 	2016 
5000 	5'000 

Dividends and distributions 120 159 493 519 45 59 5,662 3,229 2,207 657 
Interest income la 1 2 5 6 1 2 22 41 30 14 
Net changes in fair value on financial assets and 
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

lb 170 105 2,366 (614) 541 (228) 7,582 (3,235) 1,945 1,490 

Other revenue 4 5 2 
Total revenue/(loss) 291 266 2,864 , (89) 587 (167) 13,266 39 4,187 2,163 

EXPENSES 
Interest expense 
Management fee 33 42 115 129 11 14 1,706 1,146 245 81 
Supervisor fee 25 13 
Other expenses 2 16 10 36 39 14 13 59 48 210 44 
Total expenses/(credit expenses) 49 52 151 168 25 27 1,790 1,207 455 125 

Profit/(Loss) and total comprehensive income 242 ,  214 2,713  (257)  562  (1941 11,476  (1,168)  3732  2,038 

The accompanying notes form part of and should be read in conjunction with these Financial Statements. 
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AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

REVENUE 
Dividends and distributions 

Note 

NZ Cash Fund 

2017 	2016 
S'000 	S000 

- 	 - 

NZ Fixed Interest Fund 

2017 	2016 
S000 	$000 

- 	 - 

NZ Short Duration Fund 

2017 	2016 
S.000 	$000 

.. 	 - 

Hedged Global Fixed 
Interest Fund 

2017 	2016 
S'000 	8000 

- 	 - 

Global Short Duration 
Fund 

2017 	2016 
$000 	S.000 

- 
Interest income la 113,754 143,538 77,333 76,929 10,961 9,109 ID 16 2,901 2,528 
Net changes in fair value on financial assets and 
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

lb (3,909) (2,382) (37,419) 30,014 (1,342) 2,563 3,323 3,889 3,150 4,317 

Other revenue - 73 31 3 8 13 33 
Total revenue/(loss) 109,845 141,156 39,987 _j974 9,622 11,680 3,333 3,905 6,064 6,878 

EXPENSES 
Interest expense - - 1 I - .. .. - ID 4 
Management fee 10,814 10,201 10,098 9,629 1,616 1,160 3 4 1,430 1,373 
Supervisor fee 426 555 188 238 39 29 14 - 30 25 
Other expenses 2 333 557 223 310 90 84 51 53 154 149 
Total expenses/(credit expenses) 11,573 11 ,313 10,510 10.178 1,745 1,273 68 57 1,624 1,551 

Profit/(Loss) and total comprehensive income 98,272  129,843 29,477  96,796  7,877  10,407 3 265  3,848  4,440  5,327 

The accompanying notes form part of and should he read in conjunction with these Financial Statements. 
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AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARG.( 2017 

REVENUE 
Note 

NZ Shares Fund 

2017 	2016 
$000 	S'000 

Responsible Investment 
Leaders NZ Shares Fund 

2017 	2016 
$000 	$'000 

Australian Shares Fund 

2017 	2016 
S000 	5'000 

Strategic NZ Shares Fund 

2017 	2016 
S'000 	5'000 

Global Shares Fund 

2017 	2016 
S'000 	S000 

Dividends and distributions 20,131 23,565 492 511 6,151 2,636 25 7,399 367 550 
Interest income la 333 548 13 11 21 6 18 217 14 30 
Net changes in fair value on financial assets and 
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

lb 3,678 45,270 258 1,037 13,969 (4,067) 2,480 13,385 19,640 (1,135) 

Other revenue 74 302 1 3 161 
Total revenue/(loss) 24,216 69,685 764 1,562 20,141 (1,425) 2 523 21,162 20,021 (555) 

EXPENSES 
Interest expense 
Management fee 3,530 3,651 84 74 1,680 311 112 1,550 265 295 
Supervisor fee 58 66 - 28 4 - 21 17 2 
Other expenses 2 575 411 36 12 42 32 3 214 71 85 
Total expenses/(credit expenses) 4,163 4,128 120 86 1.750 347 115 1,785 353 383 

Profit/(Loss) and total comprehensive income 20,053 65,557 644 1 476 18.391 (1,772) 2,408.  19,377 19.668 == 5938) 

The accompanying notes form part of and should be read in conjunction with these Financial Statements. 
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AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

Note 

Responsible Investment 
Leaders Global Shares 

Fund 
2017 	2016 
$'000 	$000 

Core Global Shares Fund 

2017 	2016 
S'000 	5000 

Core Hedged Global Shares 
Fund 

2017 	2016 
5'000 	5'000 

Emerging Markets Shares 
Fund 

2017 	2016 
$000 	S000 

NZ Property Fund 

2017 	2016 
5'000 	5'000 

REVENUE 
Dividends and distributions 3,352 5,644 - - - 1,630 2,763 4,966 5,855 
Interest income 1 a 9 13 77 89 80 158 9 14 16 42 
Net changes in fair value on financial assets and 
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

1 h 4,732 (8,171) 95,749 76,945 84,104 (26,237) 8,563 (6,306) (2,578) 11,302 

Other revenue - - - 13 
Total revenue/(loss) 8,093 (2,514) ..._,..25, _22,224_ 84,184 (26,079) 10 202 (3,529) 2,404 __j7,212 

EXPENSES 
Interest expense - - 8 6 - - 
Management fee 737 677 (347) (387) 51 26 924 1,153 401 449 
Supervisor fee 17 7 35 27 1 18 12 23 17 
Other expenses 2 62 64 61 92 96 94 44 48 129 152 
Total expensesgtredit expenses) 816 748 (251) (295) 182 127 986 1,213 553 618 

Profit/(Loss) and total comprehensive income 7,277  (3,262)  96 077  77,329  84,002  (26 206)  9,216  (4,742)  1,851  16,594 

The accompanying notes form part of and should he read in conjunction with these Financial Statements. 
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AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

Note 

Listed Property Securities 
Fund 

2017 	2016 
S'000 	$'000 

Global Property Securities Global Listed Infrastructure 
Fund 	 Fund 

2017 	2016 	2017 	2016 
S'000 	S'000 	S'000 	S'000 

Commodities Fund 

2017 	2016 
$`000 	S'000 

REVENUE 
Dividends and distributions 987 953 5,336 3,182 7,503 5,253 3,460 8,435 
Interest income la 9 8 134 84 103 75 (687) (974) 
Net changes in fair value on financial assets and 
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

lb (1,279) 2,036 (7,983) 287 32,574 (21,185) 31,771 (89,079) 

Other revenue 3 7 364 - 
Total revenue/(loss) (280) 3,004 (2,513) 3 917 40.180 (15,857) _ 4544 (81,618) 

EXPENSES 
Interest expense - - - ., 64 47 
Management fee 164 152 2,300 1,480 3,346 2,313 487 827 
Supervisor fee 12 - 29 16 37 25 18 - 
Other expenses 2 73 42 317 270 379 261 69 93 
Total expenses/(credit expenses) 249 194 2,646 1,766 3,762 2,599 638 969 

Profit/(Loss) and total comprehensive income (529)  2,810 (5,159) 	 2,151 36,418 	  	(18,4561 33,906   	(82,587 

The accompanying notes form part of and should be read in conjunction with these Financial Statements. 
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AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN UNIT HOLDERS FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

Responsible Investment 	Responsible Investment 	Responsible Investment Global Multi-Asset Fund Income Generator Fund 

	

Leaders Conservative Fund Leaders Balanced Fund 	Leaders Growth Fund 

2017 
5'000 

2016 
S'000 

2017 
8000 

2016 
S'000 

2017 
$000 

2016 
$'000 

2017 
$000 

2016 
S'000 

2017 
$'000 

2016 
5'000 

Unit Holders' funds at beginning of the year 8,918 9,829 42,735 25,214 7,043 5,760 123,363 79,107 46,594 3,814 

Profit/(Loss) and total comprehensive income for the year 242 214 2,713 (257) 562 (194) 11,476 (1,168) 3,732 2,038 

Subscriptions from Unit Holders 1,615 1,678 12,047 24,793 1,061 2,307 40,920 52,211 67,182 45,771 
Redemptions by Unit Holders (2,670) (2,803) (13,357) (7,015) (3,101) (830) (13,429) (6,787) (16,887) (4,169) 
Distributions to Unit Holders - - - - - (2,827) (860) 

(1,055) (1,125) (1,310) 17,778 (2,040) 1,477 27,491 45,424 47,468 40,742 

Unit Holders' funds at end of the year 8,105 8,918 44,138 :1c/735 5,565 7,043 162,330 2363 97794 46,594 

The accompanying notes form part of and should be read in couiunction with these Financial Statements. 
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AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN UNIT HOLDERS` FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

NZ Cash Fund 

2017 	2016 
$`000 	S`000 

NZ Fixed Interest Fund 

2017 	2016 
5000 	5`000 

NZ Short Duration Fund 

2017 	2016 
S000 	S'000 

Hedged Global Fixed 
Interest Fund 

2017 	2016 
$000 	S'000 

Global Short Duration 
Fund 

2017 	2016 
5'000 	S'000 

Unit Holders funds at beginning of the year 3,937,709 4,123,959 1,647,782 1,705,726 231,974 185,871 129,416 151,421 179,425 174,785 

Profit/( Loss) and total comprehensive income for the year 98,272 129,843 29,477 96,796 7,877 10,407 3,265 3,848 4,440 5,327 

Subscriptions from Unit Holders 1,177,733 1,271,274 469,032 338,600 207,519 73,049 29,516 29,495 33,275 25,311 
Redemptions by Unit Holders (652,688) (1,487,685) (227,812) (439,041) (64,545) (31,180) (78,635) (55,348) (18,295) (21,608) 
Distributions to Unit Holders (81.228) (99,682) (53.499) (54.299) (7,929) (6.173) - - (4,059) (4.3901 

443,817 (316,093) 187,721 (154,740) 135,045 35,696 (49,119) (25,853) 10,921 (687) 

Unit Holders' funds at end of the year 4,479,798  3,9377709  1,8647980  1,647,782  3747896  231,974 83,562  129,416 194 786  179,425 

The accompanying notes form part of and should be read in conjunction with these Financial Statements. 
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AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN UNIT HOLDERS' FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

NZ Shares Fund 

2017 	2016 
8'000 	5'000 

Responsible Investment 
Leaders NZ Shares Fund 

2017 	2016 
5'000 	5'000 

Australian Shares Fund 

2017 	2016 
8000 	5000 

Strategic NZ Shares Fund 

2017 	2016 
5'000 	5'000 

Global Shares Fund 

2017 	2016 
$'000 	5'000 

Unit Holders funds at beginning of the year 454,364 503,623 11,121 8,477 78,291 	32,459 122,476 161,602 144,336 155,993 

Profit/(Loss) and total comprehensive income for the year 20,053 65,557 644 1,476 18,391 	(1,772) 2,408 19,377 19,668 (938) 

Subscriptions from Unit Holders 114,480 48,720 1,695 2,528 118,830 	73,842 8,834 34,635 6,541 54,720 
Redemptions by Unit Holders (114,759) (145,432) (1,612) (1,360) (42,846) 	(26,238) (133,718) (87,292) (33,770) (65,439) 
Distributions to Unit Holders (16.662) (18.104) - - (5,846) - 

(16,941) (114,816) 83 1,168 75,984 	47,604 (124,884) (58,503) (27,229) (10,719) 

Unit Holders' funds at end of the year 457,476 454,364 , 	11,848 11,121 172,666 „78,291_ I22476 775 ==e136 immt. 144,336 

The accompanying notes fonn parr of and should be read in conjunction with these Financial Statements. 
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AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN UNIT HOLDERS' FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

Responsible Investment 	Core Global Shares Fund Core Hedged Global Shares Emerging Markets Shares 	NZ Property Fund 
Leaders Global Shares 	 Fund 	 Fund 

Fund 
2017 
S'000 

2016 
$'000 

2017 
S'000 

2016 
S'000 

2017 
S'000 

2016 
S'000 

2017 
8'000 

2016 
S'000 

2017 
S'000 

2016 
8000 

Unit Holders' funds at beginning of the year 52,175 37,784 692,903 1,032,573 448,719 672,461 70,554 98,138 123,550 131,665 

Profit/(Loss) and total comprehensive income for the year 7,277 (3,262) 96,077 77,329 84,002 (26,206) 9,216 (4,742) 1,851 16,594 

Subscriptions from Unit Holders 6,049 20,851 152,222 122,654 121,781 202,639 9,428 27,083 43,895 19,430 
Redemptions by Unit Holders (7,736) (3,198) (67,109) (539,653) (128,331) (400,175) (17,654) (49,925) (52,100) (44,139) 
Distributions to Unit Holders 

(1,687) 17,653 85,113 (416,999) (6,550) (197,536) (8,226) (22,842) (8,205) (24,709) 

Unit Holders' funds at end of the year  	57,765 52i75 874,093 692,903 526,171 448,719 7I544 70,554 117,196 23.,,541...) 

The accompanying notes form part of and should be read in conjunction with these Financial Statements. 
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AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN UNIT HOLDERS' FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

Listed Property Securities 
Fund 

2017 	2016 
5000 	5'000 

Global Property Securities Global Listed Infrastructure 	Commodities Fund 
Fund 	 Fund 

2017 	2016 	2017 	2016 	2017 	2016 
$000 	5'000 	5'000 	5'000 	5'000 	$'000 

Unit Holders' funds at beginning of the year 21,104 18,844 149,715 113,788 211,218 179,096 	272,520 443,790 

Profit/(Loss) and total comprehensive income for the year (529) 2,810 (5,159) 2,151 36,418 (18,456) 	33,906 (82,587) 

Subscriptions from Unit Holders 4,989 6,282 68,478 57,722 65,908 55,756 	10,960 37,545 
Redemptions by Unit Holders (4,093) (6,015) (18,856) (23,946) (3,257) (5,178) 	(149,873) (126,228) 
Distributions to Unit Holders (847) (817) (4.152) - (6.107) - - 

49 (550) 45,470 33,776 56,544 50,578 	(138,913) (88,683) 

Unit Holders' funds at end of the year 20,624  21,104 190,026  	 149,715 304,180  _22132. ,_67 513 272;520 

The accompanying notes form part of and should be read in conjunction with these Financial Statements. 

- 12 - 

EY 



AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT 31 MARCH 2017 

ASSETS 
Note 

Responsible Investment 
Leaders Conservative Fund 

2017 	2016 
S'000 	S'000 

Responsible Investment 
Leaders Balanced Fund 

2017 	2016 
S'1100 	5000 

Responsible Investment 
Leaders Growth Fund 

2017 	2016 
5'000 	5000 

Global Multi-Asset Fund 

2017 	2016 
5'000 	5000 

[titanic Generator Fund 

2017 	2016 
5'000 	$000 

Cash and cash equivalents 3 22 30 252 175 40 62 2,546 1,640 1,811 1,293 
Bank term deposits 4 - - 
Investment securities designated at fair value through 
profit or loss 5 8,091 8,906 43,913 42,673 5,528 7,000 164,338 124,563 96,107 45,478 
Derivatives held for trading 6 - 39 38 2 48 119 - 
Receivables 7 13 23 91 96 14 24 307 198 537 154 
TOTAL ASSETS 8,126 8,959 44,295 42,982 5,582 7 088 167,239 126,520 98,455 46,925 

LIABILITIES 
Overdraft 3 - 
Derivatives held for trading 6 36 66 5 4,137 2,615 
Payables 8 21 41 121 181 17 40 772 542 661 331 
TOTAL LIABILITIES 21 41 157 247 17 45 4,909 3,157 661 331 

UNIT HOLDERS' FUNDS 8 105 8,918 44,138 42,735 _15.65 7,043 162.330 123,363 _ 7,794 46,594 

ToTAL LIABILITIES AND UNIT HOLDERS' 
FUNDS 8,126  8,959  44,295  42,982  5,582  7,088  167,239  126,520  98,455 46,925 

For and on behalf of the Manager, AMP Investment Management (NZ.) Limited who authorised the issue of the Financial Statements on 10 July 2017. 

Direct 
	

Director 

The accompanying notes form part of and should be read in conjunction with these Financial Statements. 
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AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT 31 MARCH 2017 

ASSETS 
Note 

NZ Cash Fund 

2017 	2016 
5'000 	5'000 

NZ Fixed Interest Fund 

2017 	2016 
S000 	$000 

NZ Short Duration Fund 

2017 	2016 
5'000 	S'000 

Hedged Global Fixed 
Interest Fund 

2017 	2016 
5'000 	$000 

Global Short Duration 
Fund 

2017 	2016 
S'000 	$000 

Cash and cash equivalents 3 314,046 505,078 5,657 1,704 7,904 3,060 591 1,056 - 
Bank term deposits 4 2,214,938 1,959,687 1,164 1,135 11,736 20,609 - 
Investment securities designated at fair value through 
profit or loss 5 1,945,552 1,467,231 1,836,305 1,622,230 355,722 213,636 82,985 128,438 194,599 163,491 
Derivatives held for trading 6 24,445 44,573 2,052 4,017 - 282 9,331 
Receivables 7 8.813 9.098 23.911 22,528 1091 1,691 277 706 49,621 11,141 
TOTAL ASSETS 4,483,349 3,9417094 1,891,482 1,692 170 380,505 243,013 83,853 130,200 244,502 183,963 

LIABILITIES 
Overdraft 3 - 39,892 1,158 
Derivatives held for trading 6 - 23,436 40,796 1,244 2,367 6,249 2,704 
Payables 8 3.551 3.385 3.066 3.592 4,365 8.672 291 784 3.575 676 
TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,551 3,385 26,502 44,388 5,609 11,039 291 784 49,716 4,538 

UNIT HOLDERS' FUNDS 4,479,798 3,937,709 1,864,980 1,647,782 374,896 231,974 83,562 129 416 194,786 179,425 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND UNIT HOLDERS' 
FUNDS 4,483,349  3,941,094,  1.891,482 1,692.170,  380,505  243,013  83,853  130,200  244,502 183,963  

For and on behal of the Manager, AMP Investment Management (N.Z.) Limited who authorised the issue of the Financial Statements on 10 July 2017. 

 

-ZyL 
Director Director 

The accompanying notes form part of and should be read in conjunction with these Financial Statements. 
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AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT 31 MARCH 2017 

ASSETS 
Note 

NZ Shares Fund 

2017 	2016 
S'000 	S'000 

Responsible Investment 
Leaders NZ Shares Fund 

2017 	2016 
$000 	S'000 

Australian Shares Fund 

2017 	2016 
$000 	S'000 

Strategic NZ Shares Fund 

2017 	2016 
S'000 	$000 

Global Shares Fund 

2017 	2016 
S000 	$'000 

Cash and cash equivaients 3 21,366 29,391 786 837 413 687 13,634 392 306 
Bank term deposits 4 - - - 
Investment securities designated at fair value through 
profit or loss 5 430,307 419,356 11,004 10,228 172,694 77,697 100,945 139,756 140,658 
Derivatives held for trading 6 - 1 25 3,777 
Receivables 7 9.671 6.523 157 89 25 47 - 	8,389 632 365 
TOTAL ASSETS 461,344 455,270 11,947,  11,154 173,132,  78,431 122.969 140,805 145,106 

LIABILITIES 
Overdraft 3 - , 
Derivatives held for trading 6 - - - - 3,306 329 
Payables 8 3,868 906 99 33 466 140 493 724 441 
TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,868 906 99 33 466 140 493 4,030 770 

UNIT HOLDERS' FUNDS 457,476 454,364 11,848 11,121 172,666 78,291 122,476 136,775 144,336 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND UNIT IIOLDERS' 
FUNDS 461,344 455,270 11,947 11,154 173,132 78.431 122,969 140,805 145,106 

For and on behalf of the Manager, AMP Investment Management (N.Z.) Limited who authorised the issue of the Financial Statements on 10 July 2017. 

JL„di 

 

Director/ 	 Director 

The accompanying notes form pail of and should be read in conjunction with these Financial Statements. 
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AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT 31 MARCH 2017 

ASSETS 
Note 

Responsible Investment 
Leaders Global Shares 

Fund 
2017 	2016 
S.000 	S'000 

Core Global Shares Fund 

2017 	2016 
V000 	$'000 

Core Fledged Global Shares 
Fund 

2017 	2016 
5'000 	S'000 

Emerging Markets Shares 
Fund 

2017 	2016 
$000 	S'000 

NZ Property Fund 

2017 	2016 
$1000 	$000 

Cash and cash equivalents 3 239 368 2,572 4,848 4,376 4,152 392 624 2,244 702 
Bank term deposits 4 - - - .. - 
Investment securities designated at fair value through 
profit or loss 5 59,089 50,748 871,454 687,973 547,334 422,884 71,398 70,199 114,840 121,898 
Derivatives held for trading 6 7 1,340 - 140 23,016 204 1,101 
Receivables 7 22 10 3,842 3.097 6,643 5.129 557 642 24 21 
TOTAL ASSETS 59,357 52.466 877,868 ----------- 558,493 695,918 455,181 72,347 71,465 117,312 123,722 

LIABILITIES 
Overdraft 3 - - - - - 
Derivatives held for trading 6 1,370 109 - 25,599 1,307 - - 39 
Payables 8 222 182 3.775 3,015 6.723 5.155 803 911 116 133 
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,592 291 3,775 3,015 32,322 6,462 803 911 116 172 

UNIT HOLDERS' FUNDS 57,765 52,175 874,093 692,903 526,171 448,719 71,544 70,554 117,196 123,550 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND UNIT HOLDERS' 
FUNDS 59,357 52,,466 877,868 695,918 558 493 455,181 72,347 71,465 117,312 123,722 

For and on behalf of the Manager, AMP Investment Management (N.Z.) Limited who authorised the issue of the Financial Statements on 10 July 2017. 

LL- 

 

Dircch 	 Director 

The accompanying notes form part of and should be read in conjunction with these Financial Statements. 
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AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT 31 MARCH 2017 

Listed Property Securities Global Property Securities Global Listed Infrastructure 	Commodities Fund 
Fund 	 Fund 	 Fund 

2017 	2016 	2017 	2016 	2017 	2016 	2017 	2016 

	

Note 	S'000 	S'000 	$1000 	S'000 	S000 	S'000 	8.000 	S'000 
ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 	 3 	 230 	155 	7,046 	24,178 	1,459 	19,810 	8,029 
Bank term deposits 	 4 	 - 
Investment securities designated at fair value through 
profit or loss 	 5 	20,478 	21,141 	184,034 	129,677 	303,811 	196,978 	164,349 	267,831 
Derivatives held for trading 	 6 	 - 	- 	118 	5,244 	 81 	6,787 	 9,192 
Receivables 	 7 	 1 	2,374 	676 	1.909 	410 	2,572 	3.971  
TOTAL ASSETS 	 20,708 	21,297 	193,572 	159,775 	307,260 	223 985 	174,950 	280,994 

LIABILITIES 
Overdraft 	 3 	 - 	 - 	 .. 	4,343 
Derivatives held for trading 	 6 	 - 	1,622 	118 	2,123 	69 	4,759 
PayabIes 	 8 	 84 	193 	1.924 	9,942 	957 	12,698 	2.678 	4,131 
TOTAL LIABILITIES 	 84 	193 	3,546 	10,060 	3,080 	12,767 	7,437 	8,474 

uNrr HOLDERS' FUNDS 	 20,624 	21,104 	190,026 	149,715 	304.180 	211,218 	167,513 	272,520 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND uNrr HOLDERS.  
FUNDS 	 20,708 	21,297 	193,572  „.159 7'15 	307,260 	223,985, 	174,950 	280 994 

For and on behalf of the Manager, AMP Investment Management (Ni.) Limited who authorised the issue of the Financial Statements on 10 July 2017. 

Director 

The accompanying notes form part of and should be read in conjunction with these Financial Statements. 
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AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Cash was provided from: 

Note 

Responsible Investment 
Leaders Conservative Fund 

2017 	2016 
5'000 	S'000 

Responsible Investment 
Leaders Balanced Fund 

2017 	2016 
5'000 	S'000 

Responsible Investment 
Leaders Growth Fund 

2017 	2016 
5'000 	S'000 

Global Multi-Asset Fund 

2017 	2016 
S'000 	5'000 

Income Generator Fund 

2017 	2016 
S'000 	$000 

Dividends/Distributions 112 122 1,546 1,698 465 
Interest 1 2 4 6 2 21 41 29 12 
Maturity/Realisation of investment securities, derivatives and bank 
term deposits 

2,224 4,475 10,469 7,534 3,130 5,371 11,412 757 11,023 2,904 

PIE tax 2 
Net investment management fee rebate 
Other revenue 4 5 2 
Cash was applied to: 
Operating expenses (59) (59) (205) (121) (38) (32) (1,670) (1,085) (447) (61) 
Interest - 
Purchase of investment securities, derivatives and bank term deposits (1,231) (3,380) (8,881) (25,188) (1,075) (6,892) (36,472) (45,678) (59,400) (43,053) 
PIE tax - 2 
Net cash flows from operating activities 10 1,047 1,038 1,387 (17,769) 2 018 (1,551) (26,585) (44,417) (47,092) (39,731) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Cash was provided from: 
Subscriptions from Unit Holders 1,615 1,678 12,047 24,793 1,061 2,307 40,920 52,211 67,182 45,771 
Cash was applied to: 
Redemptions by Unit Holders (2,670) (2,803) (13,357) (7,015) (3,101) (830) (13,429) (6,787) (16,887) (4,169) 
Income distributed to Unit Holders , (2,685) (727) 
Net cash flows from financing activities (1,055) (1,125) (1,310) 17,778 (2,040) 1,477 27,491 45.424 47,610 40.875 ____,... 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (8) (87) 77 9 (22) (74) 906 1,007 518 1,144 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 30 117 175 166 62 136 1,640 633 1,293 149 
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 3 22 30 252 175 40 62 2,546 1,640 I t811,  222,_ 

The accompanying notes form part of and should be read in conjunction with these Financial Statements. 
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AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Cash was provided from: 
Dividends/Distributions 

Note 

NZ Cash Fund 

2017 	2016 
$000 	S'000 

NZ Fixed Interest Fund 

2017 	2016 
5000 	S'000 

NZ Short Duration Fund 

2017 	2016 
S' 000 	S'000 

Hedged Global Fixed 
Interest Fund 

2017 	2016 
5'000 	5'000 

Global Short Duration 
Fund 

2017 	2016 
5'000 	5000 

Interest 114,461 156,670 75,256 78,665 9,796 8,831 ii 16 2,664 2,535 
Maturity/Realisation of investment securities, derivatives and bank 
term deposits 

6,587,490 5,027,514 579,915 1,651,561 263,119 136,111 61,240 42,902 25,194 59,370 

PIE tax 7 
Net investment management fee rebate 
Other revenue 73 31 3 8 10 33 
Cash was applied to: 
Operating expenses (11,439) (11,304) (10,278) (10,259) (1,562) (1,212) (61) (56) (1,587) (1,524) 
Interest (1 ) (1) (10) (4) 
Purchase of investment securities, derivatives and bank term deposits (7,325,302) (4,827,370) (828,691) (1,565,955) (401,557) (177,867) (12,464-) (18,422) (75,713) (61,553) 
PIE tax (59) (42) (6) (72) (1601 
Net cash flows from operating activities 10 (634,849) 345,517 (183,768) 154,036 (130,201) (34,129) 48,654 24,280 (49,4421 (1,143) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Cash was provided frotn: 
Subscriptions from Unit Holders 1,177,733 1,271,274 469,032 338,600 207,519 73,049 29,516 29,495 33,275 25,311 
Cash was applied to: 
Redemptions by Unit Holders (652,688) (1,487,685) (227,812) (439,041) (64,545) (31,180) (78,635) (55,348) (18,295) (21,608) 
Income distributed to Unit Holders (81,228) (99.682) (534991 (54.299) (7,9291 (6,173) (4,059) (4,3901 
Net cash flows from financing activities 443,817 (316,093) 137,721 (154,740) 135,045 35,696 (49,119) (25,8531 10,921 (687) 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (191,032) 29,424 3,953 (704) 4,844 1,567 (465) (1,573) (38,521) (1,830) 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 505,078 475,654 1,704 2,409 3,060 1,493 1,056 2,629 (1,158) 699 
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents - - (213) (27) 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 3 314,046 505,078 5.657 1,704 7,904 3,060 591 1,056 (39,892) (1,1581 

The accompanying notes form part of and should be read in conjunction with these Financial Statements. 
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AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Cash was provided from: 

Note 

NZ Shares Fund 

2017 	2016 
5'000 	5'000 

Responsible Investment 
Leaders NZ Shares Fund 

2017 	2016 
S000 	$000 

Australian Shares Fund 

2017 	2016 
5000 	S'000 

Strategic NZ Shares Fund 

2017 	2016 
$000 	S.000 

Global Shares Fund 

2017 	2016 
5'000 	S.000 

Dividends/Distributions 17,447 22,588 433 476 - 729 7,060 - 
Interest 356 536 14 10 21 5 43 202 15 31 
Maturity/Realisation of investment securities, derivatives and bank 
term deposits 

247,466 629,267 5,510 13,471 39,280 7,768 43,196 237,061 36,721 20,939 

PIE tax 2 - 3 30 12 
Net investment management fee rebate - - - - 
Other revenue 74 302 1 3 - 161 
Cash was applied to: 
Operating expenses (4,177) (4,228) (130) (74) (1,405) (342) (493) (1,839) (350) (387) 
Interest - - - - (1) 
Purchase of investment securities, derivatives and bank term deposits (183,072) (519,702) (5,963) (14,525) (114,157) (54,617) (1,370) (176,373) (9,079) (9,962) 
PIE tax (2) - - _GI (31) - (71 

_i$092 128,765 (135) (639) (76,258) (47.1881 42,074 66,302 27,319 10.613 Net cash flows from operating activities 10 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Cash was provided from: 
Subscriptions from Unit Holders 45,304 48,720 1,695 2,528 118,830 73,842 8,834 34,635 6,541 54,720 
Cash was applied to: 
Redemptions by Unit Holders (114,759) (145,432) (1,612) (1,360) (42,846) (26,238) (64,542) (87,292) (33,770) (65,439) 
Income distributed to Unit Holders (16,662) (18,1041 - - (5,846) - 
Net cash flows from financing activities (86,117) (114,816) 83 1.168 75,984 47.604 (55,708) (58.5031 (27,2291 (10,719) 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (8,025) 13,949 (52) 529 (274) 416 (13,634) 7,799 90 (106) 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 29,391 15,442 837 308 687 269 13,634 5,833 306 406 
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents - 1 - 2 2 (4) 6 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 3 21,366 29,391 786 837 413 687 13.634 392 306 

The accompanying notes form part of and should be read in conjunction with these Financial Statements. 
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AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

Note 

Responsible Investment 
Leaders Global Shares 

Fund 
2017 	2016 
S'000 	S'000 

Core Global Shares Fund 

2017 	2016 
S'000 	$000 

Core Hedged Global Shares 
Fund 

2017 	2016 
S'000 	S'000 

Emerging Markets Shares 
Fund 

2017 	2016 
S'000 	S'000 

NZ Property Fund 

2017 	2016 
S'000 	$'000 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Cash was provided from: 
Dividends/Distributions - - - - 4,958 5,991 
Interest 10 13 82 93 83 166 9 15 16 47 
Maturity/Realisat on of investment securities, derivatives and bank 
term deposits 

9,929 995 23,100 483,259 113,312 271,154 11,190 28,702 34,572 47,624 

PIE tax - 7 - 70 34 - 35 1 
Net investment management fee rebate - 331 420 - - 
Other revenue - 13 
Cash was applied to: 
Operating expenses (789) (698) (77) (95) (193) (131) (974) (1,320) (566) (626) 
Interest - (8) (6) _ - 
Purchase of investment securities, derivatives and bank term deposits (7,592) (19,567) (110,832) (66,208) (106,488) (73,775) (2,196) (4,579) (29,239) (29,075) 
PIE tax ., - - (52) (35) - (1) 
Net cash flows from operating activities 10 1,558 (19,257) (87,389) 417,417 6,776 197,442 7,994 22,853 9,742 23,973 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Cash was provided from: 
Subscriptions from Unit Holders 6,049 20,851 152,222 122,654 121,781 202,639 9,428 27,083 43,895 19,430 
Cash was applied to: 
Redemptions by Unit Holders (7,736) (3,198) (67,109) (539,653) (128,331) (400,175) (17,654) (49,925) (52,100) (44,139) 
Income distributed to Unit Holders - - - - - 
Net cash flows from financing activities (1,687) 17,653 85,113 (416,999) (6,550) (197,5361 (8,2261 (22,842) (8,205) (24,709) 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (129) (1,604) (2,276) 418 226 (94) (232) 11 1,537 (736) 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 368 1,972 4,848 4,430 4,152 4,224 624 613 702 1,437 
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents .. - (2) 22 - 5 1 
Cash and 'ash equivalents at end of the year 3 239 368 2,572 == ---1.- 4,848 4376 , 4,152 392  624 2.244  702 

The accompanying notes form part aloud should be read in conjunction with these Financial Statements. 
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AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Cash was provided from: 

Note 

Listed Property Securities 
Fund 

2017 	2016 
S'000 	S000 

Global Property Securities Global Listed Infrastructure 
Fund 	 Fund 

2017 	2016 	2017 	2016 
S'000 	5000 	S'000 	5'000 

Commodities Fund 

2017 	2016 
S'000 	5000 

Dividends/Distributions 646 976 4,897 3,149 4,967 3,150 
Interest 9 9 137 80 117 64 (678) (946)  
Maturity/Realisation of investment securities, derivatives and bank 
term deposits 

2,582 7,638 77,084 58,284 101,534 71,579 192,273 266,321 

PIE tax - 4 1 - 
Net investment management fee rebate - - 
Other revenue 3 7 364 
Cash was applied to: 
Operating expenses (242) (172) (2,405) (1,750) (3,400) (2,575) (622) (947)  
Interest . - - - (79) (32) 
Purchase of investment securities, derivatives and bank term deposits (2,972) (7,822) (142,315) (71,686) (178,137) (104,028) (39,627) (196,831) 
PIE tax - (2) - 
Net cash flows from operating activities 10 26 636 (62,604) (11,555) (74,918) (31,810) 151,267 67,565 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Cash was provided from: 
Subscriptions from Unit Holders 4,989 6,282 68,478 57,722 65,908 55,756 10,960 37,545 
Cash was applied to: 
Redemptions by Unit Holders (4,093) (6,015) (18,856) (23,946) (3,257) (5,178) (149,873) (126,228) 
Income distributed to Unit Holders (847) (817) (4.152), - (6,107) - 
Net cash flows from financing activities 49 (550) 45,470 33,776 56,544 50,578 (138,913) (88,683) 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 75 86 (17,134) 22,221 (18,374) 18,768 12,354 (21,118) 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 155 69 24,178 1,958 19,810 1,042 (4,343) 16,793 
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents - 2 (1) 23 18 (18) 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 3 230 155 7046 ,  24,178 1,459 19,810 8,029 (4,343) 

The accompanying notes form part of and should be read in conjunction -with these Financial Statements. 
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AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

GENERAL INFORMATION 
The Funds are offered under a registered scheme called the 'AMP Capital Investment Funds', registered in New Zealand and established under the Financial Markets Conduct Act 2013 ("FMC Act 2013"). The Funds were transitioned 
into the FMC Act 2013 regime on 10 December 2015. AMP Investment Management (N.Z.) Limited, the Manager of the Funds is a FMC Reporting Entity for the purposes of the FMC Act 2013. AMP Capital Investors (New Zealand) 
Limited is the Investment Manager. BNP Paribas Fund Services Australasia Pty Limited is the Administrator, Registrar and Custodian of the Funds. 

The Funds are governed by the AMP Capital Investment Retail Funds Trust Deed ("The Trust Deed"). 

The Trust Deed is dated 24 November 2015 and amended by an Amending Deed dated 25 February 2016 between the Supervisor and the Manager. The following are the funds, governed by the Trust Deed, that are included in these 
financial statements and the dates the funds were established: 

AMP Capital Responsible Investment Leaders Conservative Fund 
AMP Capital Responsible Investment Leaders Balanced Fund 
AMP Capital Responsible Investment Leaders Growth Fund 
AMP Capital Global Multi-Asset Fund 
AMP Capital Income Generator Fund 
AMP Capital NZ Cash Fund 
AMP Capital NZ Fixed Interest Fund 
AMP Capital NZ Short Duration Fund 
AMP Capital Hedged Global Fixed Interest Fund 
AMP Capital Global Short Duration Fund 
AMP Capital NZ Shares Fund 
AMP Capital Responsible Investment Leaders NZ Shares Fund 
AMP Capital Australian Shares Fund 
AMP Capital Strategic NZ Shares Fund 
AMP Capital Global Shares Fund 
AMP Capital Responsible Investment Leaders Global Shares Fund 
AMP Capital Core Global Shares Fund 
AMP Capital Core Hedged Global Shares Fund 
AMP Capital Emerging Markets Shares Fund 
AMP Capital NZ Property Fund 
AMP Capital Listed Property Securities Fund 
AMP Capital Global Property Securities Fund 
AMP Capital Global Listed Infrastructure Fund 
AMP Capital Commodities Fund 

16 May 1995 
17 October 2008 
16 May 1995 
22 October 2013 
1 April 2014 
16 May 1995 
16 May 1995 
29 June 2007 
7 November 1994 
4 October 2011 
16 May 1995 
6 November 2012 
13 September 1996 
1 February 2001 
7 November 1994 
29 June 2007 
1 October 2007 
1 October 2007 
1 October 2007 
16 May 1995 
28 November 2008 
1 October 2007 
6 August 2012 
4 October 2011 

The AMP Capital Strategic NZ Shares Fund is now closed and has been wound up. Al] assets and liabilities of the Fund have been realised and are nil at year end. All units have been redeemed and paid out to the Fund's Unit Holders. 

The purpose of the Funds is to provide access for investors to specific investment markets where the size of the investment is important to achieve an adequate and cost effective diversification of assets. The Funds each have their own 
investment policies and objectives as set out in the AMP Capital Investment Funds' Statement of Investment Policy and Objectives (SIP0), The Manager can make changes to the SIP° of any fund in accordance with the Trust Deed 
and the Financial Markets Conduct Act 2013. Before making changes to the SIPO, the Manager will consider if the changes are in the best interests of the investors and will give prior written notice to the Supervisor. The most current 
SIPO for the Funds can be found on the scheme register at wwwbusiness.govt.nz/disclose.  

Separate Funds 
The Trust Deed provides that each Fund is a separate and distinct fund with its separate assets and liabilities governed by the terms and conditions of the Trust Deed. All investments made with the funds of a Fund shall be held by the 
Supervisor as the exclusive property of that Fund and such investments shall be held exclusively for the benefit of the Unit Holders of that Fund and no Unit Holder in one Fund shall have any claim on any other Fund, 
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AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE 
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with New Zealand equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (NZ IFRS) and other applicable Financial Reporting Standards as appropriate for profit oriented 
entities. 

They also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board. 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented except as outlined below. 

Basis of Preparation 
The financial statements of the Funds have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand and the requirements of FMC Act 2013. The financial statements have been prepared under the 
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of certain financial assets and financial liabilities as outlined below (including derivative financial instruments) at fair value through profit or loss. 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with NZ IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires the Manager to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Funds' accounting 
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed below. 

These financial statements are the separate financial statements of the Funds and no consolidated financial statements are required as the Funds meet the definition of an Investment Entity and thus do not consolidate subsidiaries but 
account for them at fair value through profit or loss. 

The Funds meet the definition of Investment Entities as they each: 
obtain funds for the purpose of providing investors with investment management services; 
have clearly defined investment strategies and objectives including investor returns; and 
measure and evaluate substantially all of their investments on a fair value basis. 

The financial statements are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars ($'000). However, where specific amounts are referred to in the note wording, the figures are rounded to the nearest dollar. 

Foreign Currency Translation 
Functional and presentation currency 
The Manager considers the New Zealand dollar the currency that most accurately represents the economic effect of the underlying transactions, events and conditions. The New Zealand dollar is the currency in which the Funds 
measure their performance and report their results, as well as the currency in which they receive subscriptions from their Unit Holders. Therefore, the Nev Zealand dollar is the Funds' functional currency. 

The financial statements are presented in New Zealand dollars. 

Transactions and balances 
Transactions in foreign currency are initially recorded in the functional currency by applying the exchange rates ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the 
rate of exchange at the reporting date. Non monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Translation differences on monetary 
assets and liabilities and non monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value are recognised in the profit or loss within the fair value net gain or loss. 
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AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

Revenue Recognition 
Revenue is recognised and measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Funds and the revenue can be reliably measured. The following 
specific recognition criteria must also be met before income is recognised: 

Dividends and distributions 
Revenue is recognised when the right to receive payment is established. 

Interest revenue 
Revenue is recognised as the interest accrues using the effective interest method, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of 
the financial asset. Interest accrued on cash and cash equivalents is recognised on an accrual basis. 

Changes in fair value of investments 
Net gains or losses on investments held for trading or designated at fair value through profit or loss are calculated as the difference between the fair value at sale, or at period end, and the fair value at the previous valuation point. This 
includes both realised and unrealised gains and losses, but does not include interest or dividend revenue. 

Financial Instruments 
Recognition 
All financial instruments are recognised when, and only when, the Fund becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Specifically, purchases and sales of investments are recognised on the trade date - the date on 
which the Funds commit to purchase or sell the investment. 

Financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value plus, in the case of financial instruments not measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. For financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or 
loss, transaction costs are expensed. 

Classification and subsequent measurement 
The Funds financial instruments are classified and measured subsequent to initial recognition as follows: 

(i) Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank, demand deposits and advances with an original maturity of three months or less. Cash and cash equivalents with original maturities of three months or less that were not acquired to 
meet short term cash commitments are classified as loans and receivables. 

Cash and cash equivalents also include the PIE bank account. This bank account receives monies from the Funds in respect of the Unit Holders' PIE tax liabilities arising from taxable income attributed to them in the Funds. It is not 
available for use by the Funds because the funds are held on behalf of the Unit Holders to be paid to and/or receive from the Inland Revenue. 

For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of the above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts. 

(ii) Loans and receivables 
The Funds classify receivables and their investments in bank term deposits as loans and receivables, as these financial assets have fixed or detenninable payments that are not quoted in an active market. 

Loans and Receivables and term deposits are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less an allowance for impairment where there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on the loans and 
receivables has been incurred. Receivables that are short-term in nature do not carry interest and therefore are not discounted. 
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AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

(iii) Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 
Investments in debt and equity securities are designated by the Funds at fair value through profit or loss at inception, as the Funds policy is for the Manager to evaluate the information about these financial assets on a fair value basis 
together with other related financial information, 

Derivatives (including interest rate and foreign currency derivatives) are also classified as financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, as they are held for trading. The Funds do not classify any derivatives 
as hedges in a hedging relationship, 

The Funds do not make short sales in which a borrowed security is sold in anticipation of a decline in the market value of that security, nor do they make use of short sales for various arbitrage transactions. 

Subsequent to initial recognition, all financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are recognised in profit or loss in the period 
in which they arise. 

(iv) Financial liabilities at amortised cost 
This category comprises payables. Payables are recognised for an amount to be paid in the future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the Funds, and include outstanding settlements and advances on purchases of 
investments. Payables are subsequently stated at their amortised cost using the effective interest method. Due to their short-tenn nature, payables are not discounted. 

Fair value determination 
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives and trading securities) is based on quoted market prices at the reporting date. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by 
the Funds is the current bid price; the appropriate quoted market price for financial liabilities is the current asking price. 

For investments with no active market, fair values are determined using valuation techniques as described under Critical Accounting Estimates and Assumptions below. 

Sales and repurchase agreements 
Securities subject to sale and repurchase agreements are recognised within the investments securities designated at fair value through profit or loss. 

Taxation 

Income taxation 
Each of the Funds elected to become a Portfolio Investment Entity ("PIE") for the purposes of the Income Tax Act 2007. 

Tax treatment applicable to a PIE: 

Under current taxation law the Funds, as a PIE, pay no income tax on the taxable income of the Funds and all taxable income and associated tax credits applicable are allocated to investors, in proportion to the units they hold on the 
days when taxable income and credits arise. As the tax expense (including current and deferred tax) is no Longer accounted for within the Funds, tax credits are not included within the Funds' net market value. All tax credits (excluding 
imputation credits) are now included within income for financial reporting purposes, 

The Funds calculate and deduct tax from each investor's allocation using each investor's Prescribed Investor Rate ("FIR") and pays the tax to the taxation authorities on behalf of the investor. The PIE tax liabilities, at the end of the 
year, are due for payment on the last day of the next month. 

PIE tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities on behalf of the investors based on the investors' current period's taxable income and their 
PIR. 

Goods and services tax 
All components of the financial statements are stated inclusive of goods and services tax (GST) where appropriate. Receivables and payables are recognised inclusive of any applicable GST. 
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AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

Redeemable Units and Unit Holders' Funds 
The Funds issue redeemable units, which are redeemable at the Unit Holder's option and at a value proportionate to the Unit Holder's share in the fund's net asset value. The redemption unit price is based on different valuation 
principles to that applied in the financial statements which have been calculated in line with NZ IFRS. The expected cash outflows on the redemption of the redeemable units is the redemption amount that is payable at the reporting 
date if the Unit Holders exercise their right to put the units back to the fund, 

Unit Holders' funds meet the definition of puttable instruments and are classified as equity instruments under NZ 1AS 32. 

Presentation of cash flows 
As explained in the General Information section the Funds' objective is to provide investors with access to specific investment markets. Therefore for the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, proceeds from the sale and purchase of 
investments designated at fair value through profit and loss, derivatives and bank term deposits are considered operating activities. These transactions maintain the operating capability of the Funds even though the investments may not 
be acquired specifically for resale or trading. 

Changes in Accounting Policies 
There have been no changes in accounting policies except as follows: 

During the period the Funds have adopted the following amendments to standards. 

Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to NZ fAS 
The amendments clarify existing NZ 1AS 1 requirements that relate to materiality, order of the notes, subtotals, accounting policies and disaggregation. These amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2016. 

The adoption of these amendments to standards does not have any material impact on the financial statements of the Funds. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

APPLICATION OF ACCOUNTING STANDARDS 
The following new standards, amendments to standards or interpretation have been issued but not yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2017 and have not been applied in preparing these financial statements: 

NZ 'FRS 9: Financial Instruments 
This revised standard issued on 4 September 2014 is effective for annual periods beginning on or Mier 1 January 2018. 

NZ IFRS 9 sets out the requirements for recognising and measuring financial assets and financial liabilities, and the requirements for hedge accounting. It introduces a new classification model for financial assets, whereby financial 
assets are classified and subsequently measured at amortised cost, or fair value through profit or loss, or fair value through other comprehensive income. This updated standard has also changed the accounting for the impairment of 
financial assets, from an incurred loss model to an expected credit loss model. 

NZ IFRS 15: Revenue front Contracts with Customers 
This new standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after I January 2018. Earlier application is permitted. This standard when applied will supersede NZ IAS 11 Construction Contracts, NZ IAS 18 Revenue, NZ !ERIC 13 
Customer Loyalty Programmes, NZ IFRIC 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate, NZ IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers and NZ SIC-3 1 Revenue - Barter transactions Involving Advertising Services. 

NZ 1FRS 15 provides a single, comprehensive principles-based five-step model to be applied to all contracts with customers. The core principle of this standard is that an entity shall recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised 
goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The standard also includes a set of disclosure requirements that would result 
in an entity providing users of financial statements with comprehensive information about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from the entity's contracts with customers. 

The adoption of NZ IFRS 9 is not expected to have a significant impact on the financial statements of the Funds. However, the accounting policy for the impairment of receivables and bank deposits will change to reflect the expected 
credit loss model of NZ IFRS 9, and the following changes in disclosure are expected: 

For receivables and bank deposits, which are measured at amortised cost, additional disclosures around impairment will be required, including: 
• Explanation of how the Funds' credit risk management practices relate to the recognition and measurement of expected credit losses, including how management determines whether credit risk has increased significantly; 

Explanation of the inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques used to apply the expected credit loss impairment model. 

In addition, the "loans and receivables" category of financial assets will be renamed to "financial assets at amortised cost'. 

The adoption of NZ IFRS 15 is not expected to have a significant impact on the financial statements of the Funds, as the Funds' revenue is outside the scope of NZ IFRS 15. 

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS 
Fair value of assets and liabilities 
All of the Funds' derivative assets and derivative liabilities are held for the purpose of being traded. Derivative financial instruments are carried at fair value based on a net present value model. Inputs into this valuation model are 
market observable. The commodity index swaps' fair value is calculated using the commodity index price at the valuation date. Fair value for interest rate swaps is calculated using the Interest Rate Swap Yield curve and currency 
swaps' fair value is calculated using the London Mid Close rates provided by WM Reuters. Fonvard foreign exchange contracts are marked to market at the forward exchange rate at the valuation date. 

Unit (rusts where there is no active market are valued at the published bid price at the close of business on the reporting date, being the redemption price as calculated by the unit trust's investment manager. Unlisted shares' values are 
derived from the fair value of the company's underlying assets and liabilities. All other investment securities are traded on recognised markets, so there are no accounting estimates or assumptions required in the valuation of the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities. 

Other financial instrument assets and liabilities (cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and payable) are stated at their carrying value which approximates to their fair value. 
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AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

I. REVENUE 

la, Interest revenue 
Responsible Investment 	Responsible Investment 	Responsible Investment Global Multi-Asset Fund Income Generator Fund 

	

Leaders Conservative Fund Leaders Balanced Fund 	Leaders Growth Fund 

2017 	2016 	2017 	2016 	2017 	2016 	2017 	2016 	2017 	2016 
S000 	S'000 	S000 	S'000 	S000 	S000 	S'000 	S000 	S'000 	S'000 

Cash at bank 	 1 	2 	 5 	6 
	

1 
	

2 	22 	41 	 30 	14 
Bank term deposits 
Investment securities designated at fair value through 
profit or loss 
Financial instrument held for trading 
Other interest 

Cash at bank 
Bank term deposits 
Investment securities designated at fair value through 
profit or loss 
Financial instrument held for trading 
Other interest 

	

2 
	

5 	6 	 I 	2 	22 	41 	30 	14  

NZ Cash Fund 	NZ Fixed Interest Fund NZ Short Duration Fund 	Hedged Global Fixed 	Global Short Duration 
Interest Fund 	 Fund 

2017 	2016 	2017 	2016 	2017 	2016 	2017 	2016 	2017 	2016 
5'000 	S000 	S000 	S'000 	S'000 	S000 	5000 	S'000 	S'000 	S'000 

9,671 	15,665 	 80 	171 	 33 	49 	 10 	16 	42 	42 
54,821 	64,172 	 29 	287 	445 	779 	 _ 	 _ 
49,262 	63,701 	75,697 	77,450 	10,782 	8,122 	 2,917 	2,509 

	

1,527 	(979) 	(299) 	159 	 (58) 	(23) 

113,754 	143,538 	77 333 	76,929 	10 961 	9,109 	IO 	16 	2,901 	2,528  
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Is. Interest revenue 
NZ Shares Fund 	Responsible Investment 	Australian Shares Fund Strategic NZ Shares Fund 	Global Shares Fund 

Leaders NZ Shares Fund 

2017 
S'000 

2016 
S000 

2017 
S000 

2016 
5'000 

2017 
S000 

2016 
5000 

2017 
S000 

2016 
S000 

2017 
S000 

2016 
S000 

Cash at bank 333 548 13 11 21 6 18 217 14 30 
Bank term deposits 
Investment securities designated at fair value through 
profit or loss 
Financial instrument held for trading 
Other interest 

333  548 13 11 21 6 18 217 14 30 

Responsible Investment 	Core Global Shares Fund Core Hedged Global Shares Emerging Markets Shares 	NZ Property Fund 
Leaders Global Shares 	 Fund 	 Fund 

Fund 
2017 
5'000 

2016 
5'000 

2017 
S000 

2016 
5'000 

2017 
5000 

2016 
5000 

2017 
S'000 

2016 
5000 

2017 
S000 

2016 
5000 

Cash at bank 9 13 77 89 79 157 9 14 16 42 
Bank term deposits - _ - 
Investment securities designated at fair value through 
profit or loss 

_ - 

Financial instrument held for trading 
Other interest - 1 1 

9 13 77 89 80 158 9 14 16 42 
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Is. Interest revenue 
Listed Property Securities Global Property Securities Global Listed Infrastructure 	Commodities Fund 

Fund 	 Fund 	 Fund 

2017 
5'000 

2016 
S000 

2017 
5000 

2016 
5'000 

2017 
5000 

2016 
5000 

2017 
5'000 

2016 
$000 

Cash at bank 9 8 134 83 103 75 173 426 
Bank term deposits A 
Investment securities designated at fair value through 
profit or loss 
Financial instrument held for trading (861) (1,401) 
Other interest 1 1 1 

9 134 84 103 75 (6117 (974) 

lb. Net changes in fair value on financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

Responsible Investment 	Responsible Investment 	Responsible Investment Global Multi-Asset Fund Income Generator Fund 

	

Leaders Conservative Fund Leaders Balanced Fund 	Leaders Growth Fund 

Designated upon initial recognition: 

2017 
5'000 

2016 
5'000 

2017 
5.000 

2016 
5'000 

2017 
5'0013 

2016 
5'000 

2017 
5'000 

2016 
5000 

2017 
$000 

2016 
5'000 

Gains/(losses) 170 92 2,364 (499) 525 (243) 6,389 3,719 1,942 1,492 
Held for trading: 
Gains/(losses) 13 2 (115) 16 15 1.193 (6.954) 3 (2) 

170 105 2.366 (614)  541 (228) __7582 (3,235) 1,945 = 1,490 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

lb. Net changes in fair value on financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

NZ Cash Fund 
	

NZ Fixed Interest Fund NZ Short Duration Fund 	Hedged Global Fixed 	Global Short Duration 
Interest Fund 	 Fund 

2017 	2016 	2017 	2016 	2017 	2016 	2017 	2016 	2017 	2016 
5000 	5'000 	S'000 	S'000 	5'000 	S'000 	S'000 	5'000 	5000 	$000 

Designated upon initial recognition: 
Gains/(losses) 
Held for trading: 
Gains/(losses) 

Designated upon initial recognition: 
Gains/(losses) 
Held for trading: 
Gains/(losses) 

	

(3,909) 	(2,382) 	(41,323) 	30,597 	(2,594) 	1,782 	3,323 	3,889 	(284) 	14,459 

	

3.904 	(583) 	1.252 	781 	 3,434 	(10.142) 

	

(3,9091 	(2.382) 	(37,419) 	30,014 	(134121 	2,563 	3,323 	3,889 	3,150 	4,317 

NZ Shares Fund 	Responsible Investment 	Australian Shares Fund 	Strategic NZ Shares Fund 	Global Shares Fund 
Leaders NZ Shares Fund 

2017 	2016 	2017 	2016 	2017 	2016 	2017 	2016 	2017 	2016 
$000 	$'000 	$000 	5'000 	$000 	5'000 	5'000 	5'000 	5000 	$000 

	

3,631 	45,223 	257 	1,037 	13,547 	(4,045) 	2,480 	13,358 	16,039 	7,375 

	

47 	47 	 422 	(22) 	 27 	3.601 	(8,510) 
3.678 	45,270 	258 	1,037 	. 	1 ,3 969 	(4,0n 	2,4811 	3 385 	19,640 	(1,135) 

Responsible Investment 	Core Global Shares Fund Core Hedged Global Shares Emerging Markets Shares 	NZ Property Fund 
Leaders Global Shares 	 Fund 	 Fund 

Fund 
2017 	2016 	2017 	2016 	2017 	2016 	2017 	2016 	2017 	2016 
5'000 	$000 	$000 	$000 	5'000 	5000 	5000 	5'000 	$000 	5'000 

Designated upon initial recognition: 
Gains/(losses) 
Held for trading: 
Gains/(losses) 

	

3,470 	(5,561) 	95,749 	76,945 	59,812 	52,890 	8,577 	(6,331) 	(3,202) 	15,315 

	

1,262 	(2.610) 	 24.292 	(79.127) 	(14) 	25 	624 	(4.013) 

	

4,732 	(8,171) 	95,749 	76,945 	84,194 	(26,237) 	8S63 	6,3061 	(2,578) 	11,302 
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

lb. Net changes in fair value on financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

Listed Property Securities Global Property Securities Global Listed Infrastructure 	Commodities Fund 
Fund 	 Fund 	 Fund 

Designated upon initial recognition: 

2017 
S'000 

2016 
S'000 

2017 
$000 

2016 
S'000 

2017 
$000 

2016 
$'000 

2017 
S'000 

2016 
S'000 

Gains/(losses) (1,285) 2,033 (13,996) 7,364 21,781 (7,902) 2,265 4,446 
Held for trading: 
Gains/(losses) 6 3 6,013 (7,077) 10.793 (13.283) 29,506 (93,525) 

1.2791 2,036 (7,983) 287 32,574 J21,185) 31.771 89 079 

2. OTHER EXPENSES 
Responsible Investment 	Responsible Investment 	Responsible Investment 	Global Multi-Asset Fund Income Generator Fund 

	

Leaders Conservative Fund Leaders Balanced Fund 	Leaders Growth Fund 

2017 
8'000 

2016 
$000 

2017 
S'000 

2016 
S'000 

2017 
8'000 

2016 
S`000 

2017 
S'000 

2016 
S'000 

2017 
$000 

2016 
S'000 

Audit fees 1 2 2 1 
Other assurance fees 2 - - 

Brokerage fees - 55 21 
Custody fees 2 5 2 47 43 9 - 
Administration and other charges 14 10 31 38 12 13 8 3 146 22 

16 10 36 39 14 13 59 48 210 44 
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2. OTHER EXPENSES 
NZ Cash Fund 	NZ Fixed Interest Fund NZ Short Duration Fund 	Hedged Global Fixed 	Global Short Duration 

Interest Fund 	 Fund 

2017 
S'000 

2016 
5000 

2017 
5000 

2016 
5'000 

2017 
5000 

2016 
5'000 

2017 
5000 

2016 
S'000 

2017 
5'000 

2016 
5000 

Audit fees 64 63 27 27 4 4 2 2 1 
Other assurance fees 9 14 5 6 2 1 2 2 1 
Brokerage fees - - - 
Custody fees 206 218 145 142 76 65 44 42 145 120 
Administration and other charges 54 262 46 135 8 14 3 9 6 27 

333 557 223 310 90 84 51 53 154 149 

NZ Shares Fund 	Responsible Investment 	Australian Shares Fund 	Strategic NZ Shares Fund 	Global Shares Fund 
Leaders NZ Shares Fund 

2017 
5000 

2016 
$000 

2017 
5000 

2016 
5000 

2017 
$000 

2016 
5000 

2017 
5000 

2016 
5000 

2017 
5000 

2016 
5000 

Audit fees 7 7 _ I 1 2 2 2 
Other assurance fees 3 2 - 2 1 
Brokerage fees 432 291 - 3 _ 3 133 - - 
Custody fees 77 75 2 - 35 29 62 60 64 
Administration and other charges 56 36 34 9 4 2 17 9 18 

575  411 36 12 42 32 3 214 71 85 

Responsible Investment 	Core Global Shares Fund Core Hedged Global Shares Emerging Markets Shares 	NZ Property Fund 
Leaders Global Shares 	 Fund 	 Fund 

Fund 
2017 
$000 

2016 
S'000 

2017 
5000 

2016 
$000 

2017 
$000 

2016 
5000 

2017 
5000 

2016 
$000 

2017 
5000 

2016 
5000 

Audit fees 1 1 11 ii 7 7 1 1 2 2 
Other assurance fees 2 - i 2 3 2 2 2 - 
Brokerage fees - - - - - 67 72 
Custody fees 56 61 39 33 59 55 37 35 47 44 
Administration and other charges 3 2 10 46 27 30 4 12 11 34 

62 64 , 61 92 96 94 44 48 129 152 
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2. OTHER EXPENSES 
Listed Property Securities Global Property Securities Global Listed Infrastructure 	Commodities Fund 

Fund 	 Fund 	 Fund 

2017 
5000 

2016 
5000 

2017 
5'000 

2016 
5000 

2017 
5000 

2016 
$000 

2017 
S000 

2016 
5000 

Audit fees - II 3 12 4 2 2 
Other assurance fees 2 - 2 1 2 I / 
Brokerage fees 5 23 152 99 221 134 - 
Custody fees 12 - 142 124 132 100 62 65 
Administration and other charges 54 19 10 43 12 22 5 27 

73 42 317 270 379 261 69  95 

Other assurance fees relate to agreed upon procedures. 

3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Responsible Investment 	Responsible Investment 	Responsible Investment 	Global Multi-Asset Fund Income Generator Fund 

	

Leaders Conservative Fund Leaders Balanced Fund 	Leaders Growth Fund 

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 
5000 5'000 5000 $000 5000 $000 5'000 5000 $000 S000 

Cash at bank 22 30 252 175 40 62 2,546 1,640 1,811 1,293 
Portfolio investment entity (NE) cash at bank 
Overdraft 

22 30 252 175 40 62 . 2,546 masmtemong 1, 640 =s= 18I1 =Notimeinmage. 1,293 3memmm 
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3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

NZ Cash Fund 
	

NZ Fixed Interest Fund NZ Short Duration Fund 	Hedged Global Fixed 	Global Short Duration 
Interest Fund 	 Fund 

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 
8000 S'000 S'000 S'000 S'000 $000 S'000 S'000 $'000 $000 

Cash at bank 314,040 505,013 5,655 1,659 7,904 3,060 591 984 - 
Portfolio investment entity (PIE) cash at bank 6 65 ') 45 - - 72 - 
Overdraft - - - (39,8921 (1,158) 

314 046  505,078  5,657 	 1.704 7,904 	 3,060 591 1,056 (39,892)  (lag 

NZ Shares Fund 
	

Responsible Investment 	Australian Shares Fund Strategic NZ Shares Fund 	Global Shares Fund 
Leaders NZ Shares Fund 

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 
S'000 S'000 S'000 S'000 S000 S'000 S000 8000 S'000 8000 

Cash at bank 21,366 29,389 786 837 410 687 13,603 386 306 
Portfolio investment entity (PIE) cash at bank 2 3 31 6 - 
Overdraft - - 

21,366 29,391 786 837 413 687 13,634 392 306 

Responsible Investment 	Core Global Shares Fund Core Hedged Global Shares Emerging Markets Shares 	NZ Property Fund 
Leaders Global Shares 	 Fund 	 Fund 

Fund 
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 
$'000 S'000 S'000 8000 S000 S'000 $'000 S'000 $'000 $000 

Cash at bank 239 368 2,565 4,848 4,306 4,152 391 589 2,244 702 
Portfolio investment entity (PIE) cash at bank ., 7 70 1 35 
Overdraft - - 

239 368 2,572 4,848 4,376 4,152 392 624 2,244 702 
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3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Listed Property Securities Global Property Securities Global Listed Infrastructure 	Commodities Fund 
Fund 	 Fund 	 Fund 

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 
V000 S'000 S'000 S'000 V000 S000 V000 V000 

Cash at bank 230 155 7,045 24,175 1,458 19,810 8,029 
Portfolio investment entity (PIE) cash at bank 1 3 1 
Overdraft - (4343) 

230 155 7,046 24.178, 1,459 19,810 8,029 ,  , (4,3431 

The PIE cash at bank is not available for use by the Funds because the funds are held on behalf of the Unit Holders to be paid to and/or received from Inland Revenue. 

4. BANK TERM DEPOSITS 

NZ Cash Fund 	NZ Fixed Interest Fund NZ Short Duration Fund 
2017 	2016 	2017 	2016 	2017 	2016 
V000 	$000 	$000 	V000 	$000 	V000 

Term deposits with banks 	 2.214,938 	1_959_687 	1,164 	1.135 	11,736 	20,609 

	

2,214,938 	1a  9591  687 	1,164 	1,135 	11,736  _20,609  

Bank term deposits all mature within twelve months. The figures above include accrued interest of $6,010,995 (2016: $6,341,997), $73 (2016: $87) and $739 (2016: $161,821) for NZ Cash Fund, NZ Fixed Interest Fund and NZ Short 
Duration Fund respectively. 
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5. INVESTMENT SECURITIES DESIGNATED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS 

Responsible Investment 
Leaders Conservative Fund 

2017 	2016 
S'000 	5000 

Responsible Investment 
Leaders Balanced Fund 

2017 	2016 
5000 	S'000 

Responsible Investment 
Leaders Growth Fund 

2017 	2016 
5000 	S'000 

Global Multi-Asset Fund 

2017 	2016 
5000 	5'000 

Income Generator Fund 

2017 	2016 
5'000 	5'000 

Designated upon initial recognition at fair value 
through profit or loss: 
NZ government and local government securities 
NZ discounted securities 
International government securities 
International fixed interest securities 
Australian fixed interest securities 
NZ fixed and floating interest securities - - - - - - - 
NZ equities and NZ unit trusts 7,883 8,674 40,452 39,552 4,887 6,199 6,969 5,018 89,339 42,667 
Australian equities and Australian unit trusts 208 232 3,461 3,121 641 801 157,369 119,545 6,768 2,811 
International equities and International unit trusts - - - - - - 

8,091 8'906 • 43.913 - 673 5 _528 _
INIZMign. _000 

mammon. 
7

= 
338 124 563 96 107 =d m= 45 478 umwm.am=== 4 

NZ Cash Fund 

2017 	2016 
8'000 	S'000 

NZ Fixed Interest Fund 

2017 	2016 
S'000 	$'000 

NZ Short Duration Fund 

2017 	2016 
S'000 	S'000 

Hedged Global Fixed 
Interest Fund 

2017 	2016 
S'000 	S'000 

Global Short Duration 
Fund 

2017 	2016 
S'000 	S'000 

Designated upon initial recognition at fair value 
through profit or loss: 
NZ government and local government securities 29,841 20,030 859,953 798,488 43,925 25,375 
NZ discounted securities 1,266,933 806,203 13,940 - 23,866 27,790 
International government securities , - 64,087 89,848 
International fixed interest securities - - 130,512 73,643 
Australian fixed interest securities - 129,726 138,257 16,279 18,965 
NZ fixed and floating interest securities 648,778 640,998 832,686 685,485 271,652 141,506 
NZ equities and NZ unit trusts - - - 82,985 128,438 
Australian equities and Australian unit trusts 
International equities and International unit trusts 

1,215401. 1,467,231 I 836 305 1 622 230 355,722 213,636 82 985 _E8 194,599 , 163,491 
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5. INVESTMENT SECURITIES DESIGNATED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS 

Ni Shares Fund Responsible Investment 
Leaders NZ Shares Fund 

Australian Shares Fund Strategic Ni Shares Fund Global Shares Fund 

2017 2016 2017 	2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 
5'000 S'000 $000 	S'000 $000 S'000 S'000 $000 S'000 S000 

Designated upon initial recognition affair value 
through profit or loss: 
Ni government and local government securities 
Ni discounted securities 
International government securities 
International fixed interest securities 
Australian fixed interest securities 
NZ fixed and floating interest securities 
NZ equities and NZ unit trusts 412,221 415,190 10,764 	10,228 99,105 123,361 124,495 
Australian equities and Australian unit trusts 18,086 4,166 240 172,694 77,697 1,840 16,395 16,163 
International equities and International unit trusts 

430,307 amoscem==== 419,356 ====..261mm 

	

11, 004 	10,228 

	

am====lm=== 	mmmtscom==== 172,694 77,697 =imms =ma. 100,945 139,756 ===mmumamm 140,658 

Responsible Investment 
Leaders Global Shares 

Fund 

Core Global Shares Fund Core Hedged Global Shares 
Fund 

Emerging Markets Shares 
Fund 

Ni Property Fund 

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 
5000 S'000 S'000 S'000 $000 S'000 S'000 $000 $000 S'000 

Designated upon initial recognition at fair value 
through profit or loss: 
NZ government and local government securities 
NZ discounted securities 
International government securities 
International fixed interest securities 
Australian fixed interest securities 
NZ fixed and floating interest securities - - 
Ni equities and NZ unit trusts - 871,454 687,973 547,334 422,884 66,979 74,107 
Australian equities and Australian unit trusts 59,089 50,748 - - 71,398 70,199 47,861 47,791 
International equities and International unit trusts - 

59,089 50,748  871,454  687 973  547,334  422,e4  71,398  70,199 114,840  __1_21,12E 
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5. INVESTMENT SECURITIES DESIGNATED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS 

Listed Property Securities 
Fund 

Global Property Securities Global Listed Infrastructure 
Fund 	 Fund 

Commodities Fund 

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 	2016 2017 	2016 
8'000 S000 S'000 S'000 $'000 	S'000 8000 	8000 

Designated upon initial recognition at fair value 
through profit or loss: 
NZ government and local government securities 

NZ discounted securities 

International government securities 

International fixed interest securities 

Australian fixed interest securities 

NZ fixed and floating interest securities - - 
NZ equities and NZ unit trusts 19,510 20,933 944 937 - 	- 164,349 	267,831 
Australian equities and Australian unit trusts 968 208 17,269 5,388 15,036 	7,278 
International equities and International unit trusts 165.821 123,352 288.775 	189.700 

20,478 == 21,141 msonmaxmma= 184.034 	 129,677 . i303 811 	196,978 mssammen easmaam: 

	

164,349 	267.831 

	

weekr...=== 	cm=====memome 
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AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

6. DERIVATIVES HELD FOR TRADING 
The Funds hold the following derivative instruments: 

(a) Forward foreign exchange contracts 

Forward foreign exchange contracts are contractual obligations to buy or sell foreign currencies on a future date at a specified price. Forward foreign exchange contracts are settled on net basis. 

(b) Swaps 

Swaps are contractual agreements between two parties to exchange streams of payments over time based on specified notional amounts. 

A commodity swap is an agreement whereby a floating (or market or spot) price based on an underlying commodity is traded for a fixed price over a specified period. 

Interest rate swaps are contractual arrangements to receive or pay a net amount based on changes in interest rates at a future date at a specified price, established in an organised financial market. 
Currency swaps are contractual obligations to pay a specified amount in one currency and receive a specified amount in another currency. 

(c) Options 

Options are contracts that convey the right, but not the obligation, for the purchaser either to buy or sell a security or other financial asset at an agreed-upon price during a specified period of time or on a specific date. 

The tables below show the net value of the contracts as at 31 March 2017 split between those that are in a net asset position and those which have a net liability position. 

Responsible Investment 	Responsible Investment 	Global Multi-Asset Fund 	NZ Fixed Interest Fund NZ Short Duration Fund 
Leaders Balanced Fund 	Leaders Growth Fund 

2017 	2016 
	

2017 	2016 
	

2017 	2016 
	

2017 	2016 
	

2017 	2016 
5000 	S000 
	

S'000 	5'000 	5'000 	S'000 
	

S000 	S000 	5'000 	5000 
Assets 

Held for trading: 

Forward foreign exchange contracts 

Commodity index swaps 

Interest rate swaps 

Currency swaps 

Options 

39 	38 

   

2 

 

48 

 

119 

 

24,434 
11 

 

44,510 

 

2,051 	3,994 

             

63 

   

23 

                   

                    

39 	38 

   

2 

 

48 119 	24,445 	44 573 2,052 	46=017 

          

Liabilities 
Held for trading: 

Forward foreign exchange contracts 

Commodity index swaps 

Interest rate swaps 

Currency swaps 

Options 

36 	66 

   

5 

 

4,137 	2,615 

 

20,383 

3,053 

 

34,823 

5,973 

 

826 	1,580 

418 	787 

                   

                    

36 	66 

 

4.137 2 615 	23,436 	40,796 	1.244 _2_367 

	

almaaateramamx 	 PRIMNPRIM 
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AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

6. DERIVATIVES HELD FOR TRADING 

Assets 
Held for trading: 

Global Short Duration 
Fund 

2017 	2016 
S'000 	5'000 

Strategic NZ Shares Fund 

2017 	2016 
S'000 	S'000 

Global Shares Fund 

2017 	2016 
8000 	S'000 

Responsible Investment 
Leaders Global Shares 

Fund 
2017 	2016 
S'000 	S000 

Core Hedged Global Shares 
Fund 

2017 	2016 
S1100 	8000 

Forward foreign exchange contracts 282 9,325 1 25 3,777 7 1,340 140 23,016 

Commodity index swaps - - - 

Interest rate swaps - - 

Currency swaps 
Options 6 

2829,331 25  3,777 , I 340 140 23,016 

Liabilities 
Held for trading: 
Forward foreign exchange contracts 5,580 1,833 3,306 329 1,370 109 25,599 1,307 

Commodity index swaps 
Interest rate swaps 669 862 

Currency swaps 
Options 9 

6,249 2,704 3,306 329 1,370 109 .5 599 1,307 
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AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

6. DERIVATIVES HELD FOR TRADING 
NZ Property Fund 	Global Property Securities Global Listed Infrastructure 	Commodities Fund 

Fund 	 Fund 

2017 	2016 	2017 	2016 	2017 	2016 	2017 	2016 
8000 	S'000 	S000 	S'000 	5000 	5000 	8000 	5000 

Assets 
Held for trading: 
Forward foreign exchange contracts 
Commodity index swaps 
Interest rate swaps 
Currency swaps 
Options 

204 	1,101 	 118 	5,244 	 81 	6,787 

   

9,192 

               

 

204 	1,101 	118 	5.244 	 81 r  6,787  

   

Liabilities 
Held for trading: 
Forward foreign exchange contracts 	 - 	39 	1,622 	118 	2,123 	69 
Commodity index swaps 	 - 	 - 	 - 	4,759 
Interest rate swaps 
Currency swaps 
Options 

39 	1,622 	118 	2,123 	69 	4.759 
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AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

7. RECEIVABLES 

Responsible Investment 	Responsible Investment 	Responsible Investment Global Multi-Asset Fund Income Generator Fund 

	

Leaders Conservative Fund Leaders Balanced Fund 	Leaders Growth Fund 

2017 
5000 

2016 
5000 

2017 
5'000 

2016 
5'000 

2017 
5000 

2016 
5'000 

2017 
5000 

2016 
5'000 

2017 
S'000 

2016 
5'000 

Accrued investment income I - 3 2 243 118 
Receivables from sale of investments - - 181 
PIE tax recoverable from Unit Holders 9 9 - 300 - 
PIE tax recoverable from Inland Revenue - - 7 193 
Other receivables 13 14 90 87 14 17 4 3 113 36 

13 23 91 96 14 24 307 198 537 154 

NZ Cash Fund 	NZ Fixed Interest Fund NZ Short Duration Fund 	Hedged Global Fixed 	Global Short Duration 
Interest Fund 	 Fund 

2017 
5'000 

2016 
5000 

2017 
5'000 

2016 
$'000 

2017 
5000 

2016 
5'000 

2017 
5'000 

2016 
$000 

2017 
5'000 

2016 
5'000 

Accrued investment income 8,182 8,558 23,474 21,397 3,012 1,686 1 2 750 513 
Receivables from sale of investments 21 10 .. 48,485 10,325 
PIE tax recoverable from Unit Holders 631 540 416 1,131 69 5 126 487 383 303 
PIE tax recoverable from Inland Revenue - 
Other receivables 150 217 3 

8 813 9,098  23,911 22  528 3,091 1,691 277 706 49,621 11,141 
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AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

7. RECEIVABLES 
NZ Shares Fund 	Responsible Investment 	Australian Shares Fund 	Strategic NZ Shares Fund 	Global Shares Fund 

Leaders NZ Shares Fund 

2017 
5'000 

2016 
5'000 

2017 
5'000 

2016 
5'000 

2017 
5000 

2016 	2017 
5'000 	5'000 

2016 
5'000 

2017 
5'000 

2016 
5000 

Accrued investment income 3,749 3,984 99 88 878 1 
Receivables from sale of investments 5,851 2,537 58 7,427 
NE tax recoverable from Unit Holders 71 1 24 46 84 354 
PIE tax recoverable from Inland Revenue 2 81 
Other receivables 278 283 

9,671 6,523 157 89 25 47,  8 389 632 365 

Responsible Investment 	Core Global Shares Fund Core Hedged Global Shares Emerging Markets Shares 	NZ Property Fund 
Leaders Global Shares 	 Fund 	 Fund 

Fund 
2017 
5000 

2016 
5000 

2017 
5000 

2016 
5000 

2017 
5'000 

2016 
V000 

2017 
5'000 

2016 
5'000 

2017 
5'000 

2016 
5'000 

Accrued investment income 5 10 5 8 1 1 22 14 
Receivables from sale of investments 
PIE tax recoverable from Unit Holders 22 9 1,318 1,021 5,130 556 641 
PIE tax recoverable from Inland Revenue 3,919 7 
Other receivables 2.519 2 066 1,508 1,202 

22 10 3,842 3,097 6,643 5,129 557 642 24 21 
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AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

7. RECEIVABLES 
Listed Property Securities Global Property Securities Global Listed Infrastructure 	Commodities Fund 

Fund 	 Fund 	 Fund 

2017 
S'000 

2016 
S'000 

2017 
5'000 

2016 
S'000 

2017 
S000 

2016 
S'000 

2017 
S'000 

2016 
$000 

Accrued investment income 694 378 651 408 8 17 
Receivables from sale of investments 1,464 123 1,247 
PIE tax recoverable from Unit Holders 216 175 I 2 2,450 
PIE tax recoverable from Inland Revenue 1 3,781 
Other receivables 114 173 

1 2,374 676 1,909 410 2,572 3,971 

8. PAYABLES 

Responsible Investment 	Responsible Investment 	Responsible Investment Global Multi-Asset Fund Income Generator Fund 

	

Leaders Conservative Fund Leaders Balanced Fund 	Leaders Growth Fund 

Interest payable 
Payables from purchase of investments 

2017 
S'000 

2016 
S'000 

2017 
5'000 

2016 
$000 

2017 
S'000 

2016 
$000 

2017 
S'000 

2016 
s'000 

2017 
$000 

185 

2016 
S'000 

82 
Due to Manager 21 23 121 116 17 20 456 337 190 80 
Due to Supervisor 8 7 
Distribution payable 286 144 
PIE tax refund payable to Unit Holders 7 191 
PIE tax payable to Inland Revenue 9 9 - 300 - - 
Other payables 9 56 13 8 7 25 

21 41 121 181 17 40 772 542 661 331 
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AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

8. PAYABLES 

Interest payable 

NZ Cash Fund 

2017 	2016 
8'000 	5'000 

NZ Fixed Interest Fund 

2017 	2016 
S'000 	8000 

NZ Short Duration Fund 

2017 	2016 
5000 	8000 

- 

Hedged Global Fixed 
Interest Fund 

2017 	2016 
S'000 	5000 

_ 

Global Short Duration 
Fund 

2017 	2016 
5'000 	S'000 

- 
Payables from purchase of investments - - 3,774 8,328 2,792 - 
Due to Manager 2,804 2,470 2,585 2,276 497 313 150 218 368 339 
Due to Supervisor 70 273 33 116 11 15 7 9 13 
Distribution payable _ - 
PIE tax refund payable to Unit Holders - . - - _ 
PIE tax payable to Inland Revenue 637 605 418 1,175 69 5 126 559 383 303 
Other payables 40 37 30 25 14 11 8 7 23 21 

3 551 3.385 3,066 3392 4,365 8.672 291 784 3,575 676 

Interest payable 

NZ Shares Fund 

2017 	2016 
S'000 	5'000 

- 

Responsible Investment 
Lenders NZ Shares Fund 

2017 	2016 
5'000 	S'000 

- 

Australian Shares Fund 

2017 	2016 
S'000 	5'000 

Strategic NZ Shares Fund 

2017 	2016 
5'000 	S'000 

Global Shares Fund 

2017 	2016 
5'000 	$000 

Payables from purchase of investments 2,909 77 - - . 
Due to Manager 862 857 21 20 425 87 357 344 354 
Due to Supervisor 12 32 - 8 2 10 8 1 
Distribution payable - - - 
PIE tax refund payable to Unit Holders - 4 - - - 75 
PIE tax payable to Inland Revenue 71 - 1 27 46 115 360 
Other payables 14 13 I 12 6 5 11 12 11 

3,868 906 99 33 466 140 - 	493 724 441 

-47- 



AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

8. PAYABLES 
Responsible Investment 	Core Global Shares Fund Core Hedged Global Shares Emerging Markets Shares 	NZ Property Fund 
Leaders Global Shares 	 Fund 	 Fund 

Fund 
2017 	2016 	2017 	2016 	2017 	2016 	2017 	2016 	2017 	2016 
S'000 	S'000 	S'000 	S'000 	S'000 	S'000 	S'000 	S'000 	S'000 	S'000 

Interest payable 	 - 
Payables from purchase of investments 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 
Due to Manager 	 193 	170 	2,425 	1,988 	1,500 	1,225 	233 	224 	 99 	111 
Due to Supervisor 	 7 	3 	 18 	 13 	1 	 7 	5 	 7 	9 
Distribution payable 	 - 	 - 	 - 
PIE tax refund payable to Unit Holders 	 - 	- 	 3,919 	 - 	 - 	6 
PIE tax payable to Inland Revenue 	 22 	9 	1,325 	1,021 	5,200 	 - 	556 	676 	 ::) 
Other payab1es 	 -  	 7 	6 	10 	10 	 7 	6 	 8 	7  

	

222 	182 	3,775 	3,015 	6,723 	5,155 	803 	911 	116 	133  

Listed Property Securities Global Property Securities Global Listed Infrastructure 	Commodities Fund 
Fund 	 Fund 	 Fund 

2017 	2016 	2017 	2016 	2017 	2016 	2017 	2016 
5'000 	S'000 	8000 	S'000 	S'000 	S'000 	5'000 	S'000 

Interest payable 	 - 	 - 	- 	 _ 	 15 
Payables from purchase of investments 	 - 	115 	1,089 	9,387 	 12,113 
Due to Manager 	 41 	39 	609 	369 	916 	554 	208 	322 
Due to Supervisor 	 6 	 9 	8 	 10 	12 	 9 
Distribution payable 
PIE tax refund payable to Unit Holders 	 1 	 - 	 _ 	 - 	3,781 
PIE tax payable to Inland Revenue 	 - 	 217 	178 	 12 	2 	2,450 
Other payables 	 37 	38 	 - 	19 	17 	 11 	13  

	

84 	193 	1.924 	9,942 	957 	12,698 i 	1 

	

2 678 	4,131 1=1= im=dmesszesset 

The Income Generator Fund pays a fixed monthly distribution amount to Unit Holders. For the period from 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017, the monthly distribution amount has been set at 0.32 cents per unit (1 April 2015 to 31 March 
2016: 0.33 cents per unit). The monthly distribution amount will be reviewed annually and may be re-set on or about I April each year for the following 12 month period. The distribution amount outstanding as at 31 March 2017 has 
been fully paid out to Unit Holders on 5 April 2017. 
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AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

9. UNIT HOLDERS' FUNDS 

Responsible Investment 	Responsible Investment 	Responsible Investment Global Multi-Asset Fund Income Generator Fund 

	

Leaders Conservative Fund Leaders Balanced Fund 	Leaders Growth Fund 

2017 
Units 
'000 

2016 
Units 
'000 

2017 
Units 
'000 

2016 
Units 
'000 

2017 
Units 
'000 

2016 
Units 
'000 

2017 
Units 
'000 

2016 
Units 
'000 

2017 
Units 
'000 

2016 
Units 
'000 

Units on issue at beginning of the year 3,965 4,483 25,560 15,073 3,162 2,524 111,604 70,694 43,511 3,612 
Subscriptions received during the year 710 759 7,020 14,705 464 1,010 35,714 47,042 61,418 43,896 
Redemptions made during the year (1.174) (1,2771 (7,818) (4.218) (1,363) (372) (11.692) (6,132) (15,528) (3,997) 
Units on issue at end of the year 3,501 	 3,965 24,762 	 25,560 2,263 	 3,162 135,626 	  	111,604 89,401 43,511 

NZ Cash Fund 
	

NZ Fixed Interest Fund NZ Short Duration Fund 	Hedged Global Fixed 	Global Short Duration 
Interest Fund 	 Fund 

2017 
Units 
'000 

2016 
Units 
'000 

2017 
Units 
'000 

2016 
Units 
'000 

2017 
Units 
'000 

2016 
Units 
'000 

2017 
Units 
'000 

2016 
Units 
'000 

2017 
Units 
'000 

2016 
Units 
'000 

Units on issue at beginning of the year 2,428,920 2,561,132 989,914 1,051,260 185,894 152,410 57,389 69,241 166,906 163,483 
Subscriptions received during the year 721,716 780,634 280,201 205,980 164,918 58,589 12,899 13,369 30,707 23,497 
Redemptions made during the year (399,813) (912,8461 (135,828) (267,326) (51.318) (25.105) (34,114) (25,221) (16,917) (20,074) 
Units on issue at end of the year 2 750 823  2 =28.920. 1,134,287  989,914 299,494  18.50,21, 36,174  ,..„_52,112._ 180,696  166,906 

NZ Shares Fund 
	

Responsible Investment 	Australian Shares Fund 	Strategic NZ Shares Fund 	Global Shares Fund 
Leaders NZ Shares Fund 

2017 
Units 

2016 
Units 

2017 
Units 

2016 
Units 

2017 
Units 

2016 
Units 

2017 
Units 

2016 
Units 

2017 
Units 

2016 
Units 

'000 '000 '000 '000 '000 '000 '000 '000 '000 '000 

Units on issue at beginning of the year 176,647 217,562 6,668 5,867 35,064 14,001 53,945 78,407 64,867 69,420 
Subscriptions received during the year 43,149 20,533 959 1,725 53,077 32,921 3,867 15,842 2,794 24,140 
Redemptions made during the year (43,175) (61,448) (921) (924) (19,273) (11.858) (57,8121 (40.304) (14,5791 (28,693) 
Units on issue at end of the year 176,621 	 176,647 6,706  6.668 68,868  35.064 -   	53,945 53,082  64,867 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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9. UNIT HOLDERS' FUNDS 
Responsible Investment 	Core Global Shares Fund 
Leaders Global Shares 

Fund 

Core Hedged Global Shares Emerging Markets Shares 
Fund 	 Fund 

Ni Property Fund 

2017 
Units 

2016 
Units 

2017 
Units 

2016 
Units 

2017 
Units 

2016 
Units 

2017 
Units 

2016 
Units 

2017 
Units 

2016 
Units 

'000 '000 '000 '000 '000 '000 '000 '000 '000 '000 

Units on issue at beginning of the year 39,985 27,292 579,779 918,763 379,581 542,884 79,462 103,785 58,199 70,816 
Subscriptions received during the year 4,502 15,005 125,343 98,909 93,795 173,733 10,532 28,655 20,516 9,792 
Redemptions made during the year (5.747) (2.312) (54.876) (437.893) (99.686) (337.036) (19,858) (52,978) (24,108) (22,409) 
Units on issue at end of the year 38,740 39, 	_985 650,246 579.779 373 690 379,581 70.136 79,462 54 607 58,199 

Listed Property Securities 
Fund 

2017 	2016 
Units 	Units 
'000 	'000 

Global Property Securities Global Listed Infrastructure 
Fund 	 Fund 

2017 	2016 	2017 	2016 
Units 	Units 	Units 	Units 
'000 	'000 	'000 	'000 

Commodities Fund 

2017 	2016 
Units 	Units 
'000 	'000 

Units on issue at beginning of the year 8,946 8,811 96,836 74,601 138,664 106,302 410,210 562,003 
Subscriptions received during the year 2,092 2,842 44,140 38,452 41,412 35,446 15,468 48,893 
Redemptions made during the year (1,734) (2,707) (12,343) (16.217) (2,029) (3.084) (200.963) (200486) 
Units on issue at end of the year 9,304 8,946 ===. 128,633 94,836 178,047 138,664 224,715 410,210 

Redeemable Units 

The Funds' capital is represented by redeemable units with no par value and is shown in the Statement of Financial Position as Unit Holders' Funds. The relevant movements are shown on the Statement of Changes in Unit Holders' 
Funds. In accordance with the objectives outlined in the Accounting Policies and the risk management policies in Note 13, the Funds endeavour to invest the subscriptions received in appropriate investments while maintaining 
sufficient liquidity to meet redemptions, such liquidity being augmented by short-term borrowings or disposal of securities where necessary. 

Each unit in a Fund represents an undivided beneficial interest in the net assets of that Fund and each unit is of equat value and of equal interest in that Fund. Units do not confer any interest in any particular part of a Fund or in a 
particular asset of a Fund. Unit Holders have various rights under the Trust Deed and Supplemental Deeds of the Funds, including the right to: 

• Have their units redeemed; 
• Receive the unit holders funds of the Funds upon termination of the Funds; 
• Receive income distributed; and 
• Attend and vote at meetings of Unit Holders. 

For each Fund, Unit Holders are able (at any time) to request the repayment or redemption of some or all of their units. In normal circumstances payment will be made within ten business days of the Manager receiving a repayment 
request, although the Manager reserves the right to procure repayment at a later date, subject to the requirements of the Trust Deed. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL. STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

9. UNIT HOLDERS' FUNDS 

The tab1es below show the expected cash outflows on redemptions if the Unit Holders exercise their rights to put all the units back to the Funds at 31 March 2017, calculated with reference to the exit unit price as at that date. 

	

Responsible Investment 	Responsible Investment 	Responsible Investment Global Multi-Asset Fund Income Generator Fund 

	

Leaders Conservative Fund Leaders Balanced Fund 	Leaders Growth Fund 

2017 	2016 	2017 	2016 	2017 	2016 	2017 	2016 	2017 	2016 
S'000 	S'000 	S'000 	$000 	S'000 	$000 	S'000 	S000 	$000 	S'000 

Expected cash outflows on redemptions 	 8,105 	8,914 	44,147 	42,696 	5,567 	7,032 	162,217 	123,209 	97,909 	46,604 

NZ Cash Fund 	NZ Fixed Interest Fund NZ Short Duration Fund 	Hedged Global Fixed 	Global Short Duration 
Interest Fund 	 Fund 

2017 	2016 	2017 	2016 	2017 	2016 	2017 	2016 	2017 	2016 
S'000 	S000 	S000 	S'000 	'000 	'000 	S'000 	S'000 	S'000 	$'OCIO 

Expected cash outflows on redemptions 	 4,480,265 	3,938,202 	1,866,775 	1,649,485 	375,111 	232,113 	83,542 	129,377 	194,727 	179,307 

NZ Shares Fund 	Responsible Investment 	Australian Shares Fund Strategic NZ Shares Fund 	Global Shares Fund 
Leaders NZ Shares Fund 

2017 	2016 	2017 	2016 	2017 	2016 	2017 	2016 	2017 	2016 
S'000 	S'000 	$'000 	S'000 	S'000 	S'000 	$1000 	S'000 	S'000 	S'000 

Expected cash outflows on redemptions 	 459,281 	455,688 	11,881 	11,158 	173,700 	77,350 	 122,724 	137,333 	144,254 

	

Responsible Investment 	Core Global Shares Fund Core Hedged Global Shares Emerging Markets Shares 	NZ Property Fund 

	

Leaders Global Shares 	 Fund 	 Fund 
Fund 

2017 	2016 	2017 	2016 	2017 	2016 	2017 	2016 	2017 	2016 
$000 	S'000 	$1300 	S'000 	S'000 	$'000 	S000 	$000 	S'000 	S'000 

Expected cash outflows on redemptions 	 57,853 	52,345 	874,171 	692,934 	529,859 	448,373 	72,004 	70,456 	117,721 	123,649 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

9. UNIT HOLDERS' FUNDS 
Listed Property Securities Global Property Securities Global Listed Infrastructure 	Commodities Fund 

Fund 	 Fund 	 Fund 

2017 	2016 	2017 	2016 	2017 	2016 	2017 	2016 
S'000 	S'000 	S'000 	S'000 	5000 	S'000 	S000 	S'000 

Expected cash outflows on redemptions 	 20,775 	21,076 	188,955 	149,144 	301,215 	210,802 	167,111 	272,474 

10. RECONCILIATION OF PROFIT/(LOSS) TO NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Responsible Investment 
Leaders Conservative Fund 

2017 	2016 
S'000 	5'000 

Responsible Investment 
Leaders Balanced Fund 

2017 	2016 
S000 	S'000 

Responsible Investment 
Leaders Growth Fund 

2017 	2016 
S'000 	S000 

Global Multi-Asset Fund 

2017 	2016 
St000 	S'000 

Income Generator Fund 

2017 	2016 
S'000 	S000 

Profit/(Loss) 242 214 2,713 (257) 562 (194) 11,476 (1,168) 3,732 2,038 
Adjustments for: 
Payments for the purchase of investment securities, 
derivatives and bank term deposits 

(1,231) (3,380) (8,881) (25,188) (1,075) (6,892) (36,472) (45,678) (59,400) (43,053) 

Proceeds from maturity/realisation of investment securities, 
derivatives and bank term deposits 

2,224 4,475 10,469 7,534 3,130 5,371 11,412 757 11,023 2,904 

(Gain)/loss on investment securities and derivatives (170) (105) (2,366) 614 (541) 228 (7,582) 3,235 (1,945) (1,490) 
Investment income reinvested (8) (159) (493) (519) (45) (59) (5,540) (1,683) (385) (84) 
Changes in assets and liabilities: 
(Increase)/decrease in receivables 10 9 5 (39) 10 (20) (109) 152 (202) (143) 
Increase/(decrease) in payables (20) (16) (60) 86 (23) 15 230 (32) 85 97 
Net cash flows from operating activities 1,047 . 	1,038 = 1.387 (17769) , 2,018 (1,551) (26.585) ,,,,...14_44,1121 (47,0921 ..(39011 
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10. RECONCILIATION OF PROFIT/(LOSS) TO NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Profit/(Loss) 
Adjustments for: 
Payments for the purchase of investment securities, 
derivatives and bank term deposits 
Proceeds from maturity/realisation of investment securities, 
derivatives and bank term deposits 
(Gain)/loss on investment securities and derivatives 
Investment income reinvested 
Changes in assets and liabilities: 
(Increase)/decrease in receivables 
Increase/(decrease) in payables 

Net cash flows from operating activities 

NZ Cash Fund 

2017 	2016 
8'000 	8000 

	

98,272 	129,843 

	

(7,325,302) 	(4,827,370) 

	

6,587,490 	5,027,514 

	

3,909 	2,382 
- 

	

616 	1(4L,2431)  

	

166 	
83  

NZ Fixed Interest Fund 

2017 
S'000 	

$2.001060  

	

29,477 	96,796 

	

(828,691) 	(1,565,955) 

	

579,915 	1,651,561 

	

37,419 	(30,014) 
_. 

	

(1,362) 	3,420 

	

(526) 	(1372) 

NZ Short Duration Fund 

2017 	2016 
S'000 	8000 

	

7,877 	10,407 

	

(401,557) 	(177,867) 

	

263,119 	136,111 

	

1,342 	(2,563) 
- 

	

(1,229) 	(274) 

	

247 	 57 

Hedged Global Fixed 
Interest Fund 

2016 

S2'0°31°  ,7°2 65 "3°,D848 

	

(12,464) 	(18,422) 

,240 61 	 42,902 

	

(3,323) 	(3,889) 
- 

	

429 	1,524 

	

(493) 	(1,6831 

Global Short Duration 
Fund 

2017 	2016 
8000 	8000 

	

4,440 	5,327 

	

(75,713) 	(61,553) 

	

25,194 	59,370 

	

(3,150) 	(4,317) 
- 

	

(320) 	396 

	

107 	(366) 
(634,849) . 	345,517  . 	(183,768)   154..92,1. , 	(130,201)   	(34,129) 

•1111•111111 
48 654_4 280 (49,442)  (1.143) 

NZ Shares Fund 

2017 	2016 
8'000 	8000 

Responsible Investment 
Leaders NZ Shares Fund 

2017 	2016 
8'000 	8000 

Australian Shares Fund 

2017 	2016 
8.000 	S'000 

Strategic NZ Shares Fund 

2017 	2016 
8000 	8'000 

Global Shares Fund 

2017 	2016 
8000 	8'000 

Profit/(Loss) 20,053 65,557 644 1,476 18,391 (1,772) 2,408 19,377 19,668 (938) 
Adjustments for: 
Payments for the purchase of investment securities, 
derivatives and bank term deposits 

(183,072) (519,702) (5,963) (14,525) (114,157) (54,617) (1,370) (176,373) (9,079) (9,962) 

Proceeds from maturity/realisation of investment securities, 
derivatives and bank term deposits 

247,466 629,267 5,510 13,471 39,280 7,768 43,196 237,061 36,721 20,939 

(Gain)/loss on investment securities and derivatives (3,678) (45,270) (258) (1,037) (13,969) 4,067 (2,480) (13,385) (19,640) 1,135 
Investment income reinvested (2,896) (1,656) (47) (24) (6,151) (2,636) (149) (584) (367) (550) 
Changes in assets and liabilities: 
(Increase)/decrease in receivables 166 676 (10) (13) 22 (4) 962 226 (267) 94 
Increase/(decrease) in payables 53 (107) . 	(11) 13 326 6 (493) (20) 283 (105) 
Net cash flows from operating activities 78,092 128,765 1351 .039) (76,258) _(47,188) 42,074 66i221. 27,319 10,613 
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10. RECONCILIATION OF PROFIT/(LOSS) TO NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Responsible Investment 
Leaders Global Shares 

Fund 
2017 	2016 
5'000 	5000 

Core Global Shares Fund 

2017 	2016 
S'000 	5'000 

Core Hedged Global Shares Emerging Markets Shares 
Fund 	 Fund 

2017 	2016 	2017 	2016 
S000 	$'000 	5'000 	S'000 

NZ Property Fund 

2017 	2016 
5000 	$'000 

Profit/(Loss) 7,277 (3,262) 96,077 77,329 84,002 (26,206) 9,216 (4,742) 1,851 16,594 
Adjustments for: 
Payments for the purchase of investment securities, 
derivatives and bank term deposits 

(7,592) (19,567) (110,832) (66,208) (106,488) (73,775) (2,196) (4,579) (29,239) (29,075) 

Proceeds from maturity/realisation of investment securities, 
derivatives and bank term deposits 

9,929 995 23,100 483,259 113,312 271,154 11,190 28,702 34,572 47,624 

(Gain)/loss on investment securities and derivatives (4,732) 8,171 (95,749) (76,945) (84,104) 26,237 (8,563) 6,306 2,578 (11,302) 
Investment income reinvested (3,352) (5,644) - (1,630) (2,763) - - 
Changes in assets and liabilities: 

(Increase)/decrease in receivables (12) (9) (745) 1,985 (1,514) (2,973) 85 65 (3) 140 
Increase/(decrease) in payables 40 59 760 (2,003) 1.568 3.005 (108) (136) (17) (8) 
Net cash flows from operating activities 1,558 	.  (19,257) _man 417,417 . 6.776 .......M=.142 7,994 .....2.2.32a _v.& ....Ilan 

Listed Property Securities 
Fund 

2017 	2016 
5'000 	5'000 

Global Property Securities Global Listed Infrastructure 
Fund 	 Fund 

2017 	2016 	2017 	2016 
8000 	5'000 	5'000 	$000 

Commodities Fund 

2017 	2016 
5'000 	$000 

Profit/(Loss) (529) 2,810 (5,159) 2,151 36,418 (18,456) 33,906 (82,587) 
Adjustments for: 

Payments for the purchase of investment securities, 
derivatives and bank term deposits 

(2,972) (7,822) (142,315) (71,686) (178,137) (104,028) (39,627) (196,831) 

Proceeds from maturity/realisation of investment securities, 
derivatives and bank term deposits 

2,582 7,638 77,084 58,284 101,534 71,579 192,273 266,321 

(Gain)/loss on investment securities and derivatives 1,279 (2,036) 7,983 (287) (32,574) 21,185 (31,771) 89,079 
Investment income reinvested (341) (26) (120) - (2,279) (1,958) (3,460) (8,435) 
Changes in assets and liabilities: 

(Increase)/decrease in receivables 1 49 (357) 211 (252) (158) 1,399 (3,504) 
Increase/(decrease) in payables 6 23 280 (228) 372 26 (1.453) 3,522 
Net cash flows from operating activities 26 636 (62,604) (11,555) jam „. (31,810) 151,267 67,565 ai...- -.-.. 

During the year, there were non-cash transfers of securities from Strategic NZ Shares Fund to NZ Shares Fund amounting to $69,176,114. 
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11. MATURITY ANALYSIS 

All cash and cash equivalents, bank term deposits, receivables, overdrafts and payables are expected to be recovered or settled within the next 12 months. The tables below show a maturity analysis of investment securities designated at 
fair value through profit or loss and derivatives, some of which are expected lobe recovered or settled beyond the next 12 months. Equities and unit trusts investment securities do not have a maturity date and can be liquidated at any 
time as required. However for the purposes of this analysis and in line with the objectives of the Funds they are regarded as long term investments, 

Responsible Investment Leaders Conservative Fund 	Responsible Investment Leaders Balanced Fund 
	

Responsible Investment Leaders Growth Fund 

ASSETS 
Investment securities designated at fair value through 
profit or loss 
Derivatives held for trading 
LIABILITIES 
Derivatives held for trading 

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 
Within 12 Over 12 Within 12 Over 12 Within 12 Over 12 Within 12 Over 12 Within 12 Over 12 Within 12 Over 12 

months months months months months months months months months months months months 
5000 S000 S'000 S'000 S'000 5000 5'000 S000 S'000 S000 S'000 $'000 

8,091 
	

8,906 	 43,913 
	

42,673 
	

5,528 
	

7,000 

39 
	

38 
	

2 

36 
	

66 
	

5 

Global Multi-Asset Fund 
	

Income Generator Fund 
2017 2016 2017 2016 

Within 12 Over 12 Within 12 Over 12 Within 12 Over 12 Within 12 Over 12 
months months months months months months months months 
5'000 $000 $000 5000 5'000 S'000 S'000 S'000 

ASSETS 
Investment securities designated at fair value through 
profit or loss 
Derivatives held for trading 
LIABILITIES 
Derivatives held for trading 

164,338 

	

48 	 119 

	

4,137 	 2,615 

124,563 	 96,107 45,478 
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IL MATURITY ANALYSIS 

ASSETS 
Investment securities designated at fair value through 
profit or loss 
Derivatives held for trading 
LIABILITIES 
Derivatives held for trading 

ASSETS 
Investment securities designated at fair value through 
profit or loss 
Derivatives held for trading 
LIABILITIES 
Derivatives held for trading 

ASSETS 
Investment securities designated at fair value through 
profit or loss 
Derivatives held for trading 
LIABILITIES 
Derivatives held for trading 

NZ Cash Fund 	 NZ Fixed Interest Fund 	 NZ Short Duration Fund 
2017 	 2016 	 2017 	 2016 	 2017 	 2016 

Within 12 	Over 12 	Within 12 	Over 12 	Within 12 	Over 12 	Within 12 	Over 12 	Within 12 	Over 12 	Within 12 	Over 12 
months 	months 	months 	months 	months 	months 	months 	months 	months 	months 	months 	months 
S'000 	S'000 	S'000 	S.000 	S'000 	S'000 	S'000 	S'000 	$.000 	S.000 	S'000 	S'000 

1,777,412 168,140 1,233,682 233,549 	99,489 1,736,816 50,764 1,571,466 	98,658 257,064 68,567 145,069 

	

250 	24,195 	63 	44,510 	211 	1,841 	23 	3,994 

	

508 	22,928 	 40,796 	56 	1,188 	 2,367 

Hedged Global Fixed Interest Fund 	 Global Short Duration Fund 	 NZ Shares Fund 
2017 	 2016 	 2017 	 2016 	 2017 	 2016 

Within 12 	Over 12 	Within 12 	Over 12 	Within 12 	Over 12 	Within 12 	Over 12 	Within 12 	Over 12 	Within 12 	Over 12 
months 	months 	months 	months 	months 	months 	months 	months 	months 	months 	months 	months 
S'000 	8'000 	5000 	S'000 	S'000 	5000 	S.000 	S000 	S'000 	s000 	S'000 	5'000 

82,985 
	

128,438 	88,668 	105,931 	87,690 	75,801 	 430,307 	 419,356 

	

- 	257 	25 	9,331 

- 	 5,532 	717 	1,842 	862 	 - 

Responsible Investment Leaders NZ Shares Fund 	 Australian Shares Fund 	 Strategic NZ Shares Fund 
2017 	 2016 	 2017 	 2016 	 2017 	 2016 

Within 12 	Over 12 	Within 12 	Over 12 	Within 12 	Over 12 	Within 12 	Over 12 	Within 12 	Over 12 	Within 12 	Over 12 
months 	months 	months 	months 	months 	months 	months 	months 	months 	months 	months 	months 
S'000 	S'000 	5.000 	S'000 	S.000 	$000 	$000 	S.000 	S'000 	S'000 	S'000 	S'000 

11,004 	 10,228 	 172,694 	 77,697 	 100,945 
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Global Shares Fund 	 Responsible Investment Leaders Global Shares Fund 	 Core Global Shares Fund 

2017 	 2016 	 2017 	 2016 	 2017 	 2016 
Within 12 	Over 12 	Within 12 	Over 12 	Within 12 	Over 12 	Within 12 	Over 12 	Within 12 	Over 12 	Within 12 	Over 12 

months 	months 	months 	months 	months 	months 	months 	months 	months 	months 	months 	months 
S'000 	S'000 	$000 	S'000 	S000 	S'000 	S'000 	S'000 	5'000 	S000 	S000 	S'000 

ASSETS 
Investment securities designated at fair value through 
profit or loss 
Derivatives held for trading 
LIABILITIES 
Derivatives held for trading 

139,756 	 140,658 	 - 	59,089 

	

25 	 3,777 	 7 	 1,340 

	

3,306 	329 	- 	1,370 	109 

50,748 	 871,454 	 687,973 

ASSETS 
Investment securities designated at fair value through 
profit or loss 
Derivatives held for trading 
LIABILITIES 
Derivatives held for trading 

Core Hedged Global Shares Fund 
2017 	 2016 

	

Within 12 	Over 12 	Within 12 	Over 12 
months 	months 	months 	months 
S'000 	5000 	5.000 	5000 

547,334 	 422,884 

	

140 	 23,016 

	

25,599 	 1,307 

ASSETS 
Investment securities designated at fair value through 
profit or loss 
Derivatives held for trading 
LIABILITIES 
Derivatives held for trading 

Emerging Markets Shares Fund 	 NZ Property Fund 	 Listed Property Securities Fund 
2017 	 2016 	 2017 	 2016 	 2017 	 2016 

	

Within 12 	Over 12 	Within 12 	Over 12 	Within 12 	Over 12 	Within 12 	Over 12 	Within 12 	Over 12 	Within 12 	Over 12 
months 	months 	months 	months 	months 	months 	months 	months 	months 	months 	months 	months 
S000 	S'000 	5000 	S000 	S'000 	5'000 	5000 	S'000 	S.000 	5000 	5000 	S.000 

	

- 	71,398 	 70,199 	 114,840 	 121,898 	 20,478 	 21,141 

	

204 	 1,101 

	

_ 	 _ 	 39  
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II. MATURITY ANALYSIS 

ASSETS 
Investment securities designated at fair value through 
profit or loss 
Derivatives held for trading 
LIABILITIES 
Derivatives held for trading 

Global Property Securities Fund 	 Global Listed Infrastructure Fund 	 Commodities Fund 
2017 	 2016 	 2017 	 2016 	 2017 	 2016 

	

Within 12 	Over 12 	Within 12 	Over 12 	Within 12 	Over 12 	Within 12 	Over 12 	Within 12 	Over 12 	Within 12 	Over 12 
months 	months 	months 	months 	months 	months 	months 	months 	months 	months 	months 	months 
S'000 	S'000 	S'000 	S'000 	S000 	S'000 	S'000 	5'000 	S000 	S'000 	5'000 	S'000 

184,034 	 129,677 	 - 	303,811 
	

196,978 
	

164,349 	 267,831 

	

118 	 5,244 	 81 	 6,787 	 - 	9,192 

	

1,622 	 118 	 2,123 	 69 	 4,759 

12. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

The Funds are managed by AMP Investment Management (N.Z.) Limited, which is a wholly owned subsidiary of AMP Capital Investors (New Zealand) Limited, which is ultimately owned by AMP Limited, a company listed on the 
Australian Securities Exchange and the New Zealand Stock Exchange. 

Managemeat fee 

Under the terms of the Trust Deed dated 24 November 2015, the Funds appointed the Manager to provide management services to the Funds. The Manager receives in return a fee based on the value of the assets of each Fund, payable 
quarterly in arrears using a range of rates as outlined in the relevant Fund's Product Disclosure Statement ("PDS"). Total management fees for the year and the outstanding accrued fees due to the Manager from each of the Funds are 
disciosed in profit or loss and in note 8 respectively. The amounts outstanding at year end are unsecured. 

Supervisor fee 

The Supervisor of the Funds is The New Zealand Guardian Trust Company Limited. A supervisor fee determined on the basis of a scale agreed from time to time between the Supervisor and the Manager based on the gross value of the 
assets of each Fund is payable to the Supervisor. Total supervisor fees for the year and the outstanding fees due to the Supervisor from each of the Funds are disclosed in profit or loss and in note 8 respectively. The amounts 
outstanding at year end are unsecured. 

Imes:mains by/in related parties 
For investments by or in related parties, control is deemed to be an interest of more than 75% of the unit holdings. 
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12. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
Investments by related parties 
As at 31 March 2017 other funds held more than 75% of the issued units of the Funds. The details of the units held as at 31 March 2017 and movements during the year are as follows: 

2017 
Australian Shares Fund 
Members of the AMP Limited Group 
AMP Life (N.Z.) Investments Limited (Accountable) 

2016 
Australian Shares Fund 
Members of the AMP Limited Group 
AMP Life (N.Z.) Investments Limited (Accountable) 

Units 

'000 

59,561 

Units 

'000 

24,218 

Interest held 	Units acquired 
during year 

'000 

86 	52,649 

Interest held 	Units acquired 
during year 

'000 

69 	24,657 

Units disposed of 
during year 

'000 

17,306 

Units disposed of 
during year 

000 

439 

Investments in related parties 
As at 31 March 2017 the following Funds held more than 75% of the issued units in other funds. The details of the units held as at 31 March 2017 and movements during the year are as follows: 

2017 
Core Global Shares Fund 
Managed Funds 

Units 

'000 

Interest held Value 

$`000 

Units acquired 
during year 

'000 

Units disposed of 
during year 

'000 

Wholesale Unit Trust Global Shares Fund 1 72,902 96 150,797 3,549 2,982 
Wholesale Unit Trust Global Shares Fund 3 93,513 100 156,336 8,415 
Wholesale Unit Trust Global Shares Fund 4 133,014 100 256,356 29,698 4,695 
Wholesale Unit Trust Global Shares Fund 5 120,915 100 164,769 8,816 5,699 

Units Interest held Value Units acquired 
during year 

Units disposed of 
during year 

2016 '000 5'000 '000 '000 
Core Global Shares Fund 
Managed Funds 
Wholesale Unit Trust Global Shares Fund I 72,335 41 133,877 6,953 69,237 
Wholesale Unit Trust Global Shares Fund 3 85,098 41 130,314 14,040 61,645 
Wholesale Unit Trust Global Shares Fund 4 108,011 33 186,020 7,284 66,090 
Wholesale Unit Trust Global Shares Fund 5 117,798 100 143,656 10,377 76,709 
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Units Interest held Value Units acquired 
during year 

Units disposed of 
during year 

2017 '000 % S'000 '000 '000 
NZ Property Fund 
Managed Funds 
APEREF If Limited 54,588 99 

Units Interest held Value Units acquired 
during year 

Units disposed of 
during year 

2016 '000 % S'000 '000 '000 
NZ Property Fund 
Managed Funds 
APEREF II Limited 54,588 99 

Apart from Core Global Shares Fund and NZ Property Fund's investments in Wholesale Unit Trust Global Shares Funds 1, 3, 4 and 5; and APEREF II Limited respectively, both Funds do not have obligations nor have provided or 
intend to provide financial support to these related parties during the year (31 March 2016: none). There are no restrictions for the transfer of any cash or dividends from these related parties to Core Global Shares Fund and to NZ 
Property Fund (31 March 2016: none). 

All related party transactions are made at arm's length on normal commercial terms and conditions. 

13. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 
Strategy in Using Financial Instruments 

The Funds' activities expose them to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and market price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Funds'overall risk management programme focuses on the 
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Funds' financial performance. The Funds use derivative financial instruments to moderate certain risk exposures. 

The purpose of the Funds is to provide access for investors to specific investment markets where the size of the investment is important to achieve an adequate and cost effective diversification of assets. The Funds each have their own 
investment policies and objectives as set out in the AMP Capital Investment Funds Statement of Investment Policy and Objectives (SIPO). The Manager can make changes to the SIPO of any Fund in accordance with the Trust Deed 
and the Financial Markets Conduct Act 2013. Before making changes to the SIPO, the Manager will consider if the changes are in the best interests of investors and consults with the Supervisor. The most current SIPO for the Funds 
can be found on the scheme register at www.business,govinzidiselose. 

The Manager, may from time to time, in accordance with the Funds' SIPO, provide for certain matters in relation to a Fund (where applicable), including guidelines on: 

• level of borrowing and the circumstances in which a Fund may borrow; 
• the use of derivatives; 
• currency management; 
• exposure limits for certain securities; and 
• the duration of securities held by a Fund. 
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13a. Market Price Risk 
Market price risk is the risk the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. 

The Funds trade in financial instruments, taking positions in traded instruments, including derivatives where appropriate, to take advantage of short-term market movements in the equity and bond markets. The Funds may therefore buy 
or sell financial futures. They may do so within defined limits as defined in the Funds' SIPO. All securities and investments present a risk of loss of capital. The Manager moderates this risk through a careful selection of securities and 
other financial instruments within specified limits. The maximum risk resulting from financial instruments is determined by the fair value of the financial instruments. The Funds' overall market positions are monitored on a daily basis 
by the Manager. The Funds' equity and debt securities and trading derivative financial instruments are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future prices of the instruments. However, market price risk is not 
considered to be significant to the Funds in relation to their investments in debt securities and derivative financial instruments. 

The Funds' market price risk is managed through diversification of the investments within the portfolio. These asset allocation ranges are covered in detail in the Funds' S1PO and have not been replicated in these notes to the financial 
statements. At 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016, the overall market exposures were as follows: 

Equities investment 

Equities investment 

Equities investment 

Responsible Investment Leaders Conservative Fund 	 Responsible Investment Leaders Balanced Fund 
2017 	 2016 	 2017 	 2016 

	

Fair value 	% of unit holders' 	Fair value 	% of unit holders' 	Fair value 	% of unit holders' 	Fair value 	% of unit holders' 
funds exposed to 	 funds exposed to 	 funds exposed to 	 funds exposed to 
market price risk 	 market price risk 	 market price risk 	 market price risk 

8000 	 % 	 8000 	 % 	 8'000 	 % 	 8'000 	 % 

	

8,091 	 100 	 8,906 	 100 	 43,913 	 99 	 42,673 	 100 

Responsible Investment Leaders Growth Fund 
2017 	 2016 

	

Fair value 	% of unit holders' 	Fair value 	% of unit holders' 
funds exposed to 	 funds exposed to 
market price risk 	 market price risk 

8'000 	 8'000 	 on, 

	

5,528 	 99 	 7,000 	 99 

Global Multi-Asset Fund 
2017 	 2016 

	

Fair value 	% of unit holders' 	Fair value 	% of unit holders' 
funds exposed to 	 funds exposed to 
market price risk 	 market price risk 

8'000 	 S'000 

	

164,338 	 101 	 124,563 	 101 
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Equities investment 

Equities investment 

Equities investment 

Equities investment 

Income Generator Fund 
2017 	 2016 

	

Fair value 	°A of unit holders' 	Fair value 	% of unit holders' 
funds exposed to 	 funds exposed to 
market price risk 	 market price risk 

S.000 	 % 	 S'000 	 % 

	

96,107 	 98 	 45,478 	 98 

Hedged Global Fixed Interest Fund 
2017 	 2016 

	

Fair value 	*A of unit holders' 	Fair value 	% of unit holders' 
funds exposed to 	 funds exposed to 
market price risk 	 market price risk 

S'000 	 5.000 

	

82,985 	 99 	 128,438 	 99 

NZ Shares Fund 
2017 	 2016 

	

Fair value 	% of unit holders' 	Fair value 	% of unit holders' 
funds exposed to 	 funds exposed to 
market price risk 	 market price risk  

S'000 	 S'000 
,356 

	

430,307 	 94 	 419 	 92 

	

Responsible Investment Leaders NZ Shares2F 0  Fund 	 Australian Shares Fund 
2017 	 2017 	 2016  

	

Fair value 	% of unit holders' 	Fair value 	% of unit holders' 	Fair value 	% of unit holders' 	Fair value 	% of unit holders.  
funds exposed to 	 funds exposed to 	 funds exposed to 	 funds exposed to  
market price risk 	 market price risk market price risk 	 market price risk 

5'000 	
'5'° 

% 	 % 	 S'000 	 % 	 5'0 	 % 

	

11,004 	 93 	 10°,2°28 	 92 	 172,694 	 100 	
770,6097 

99 

Strategic NZ Shares Fund 
2017 	 2016 

Fair value 	'Ye of unit holders' 	Fair value 	°A of unit holders' 
funds exposed to 	 funds exposed to 
market price risk 	 market price risk 

$000 	 5'000 
Equities investment 	 100,945 	 82 
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Equities investment 

Global Shares Fund 	 Responsible Investment Leaders Global Shares Fund 
2017 	 2016 	 2017 	 2016 

Fair value 	% of unit holders 	Fair value 	"A of unit holders' 	Fair value 	% of unit holders' 	Fair value 	% of unit holders' 
funds exposed to 	 funds exposed to 	 funds exposed to 	 funds exposed to 
market price risk 	 market price risk 	 market price risk 	 market price risk 

8'000 	 % 	 S'000 	 % 	 S'000 	 % 	 S'000 	 % 
139,756 	 102 	 140,658 	 97 	 59,089 	 102 	 50,748 	 97 

Core Global Shares Fund 	 Core Hedged Global Shares Fund 
2017 	 2016 	 2017 	 2016 

Fair value 	% of unit holders' 	Fair value 	% of unit holders' 	Fair value 	% of unit holders' 	Fair value 	*A of unit holders' 
funds exposed to 	 funds exposed to 	 funds exposed to 	 funds exposed to 
market price risk 	 market price risk 	 market price risk 	 market price risk 

5000 	 % 	 5000 	 % 	 $'000 	 % 	 5000 	 % 
Equities investment 
	 871,454 

	
100 	 687,973 

	
99 	 547,334 	 104 	 422,884 	 94 

Equities investment 

Emerging Markets Shares Fund 
2017 	 2016 

	

Fair value 	% of unit holders' 	Fair value 	% of unit holders' 
funds exposed to 	 funds exposed to 
market price risk 	 market price risk 

S'000 	 S'000 

	

71,398 	 100 	 70,199 	 99  

NZ Property Fund 
2017 	 2016 

Fair value 	./0 of unit holders' 	Fair value 	% of unit holders' 
funds exposed to 	 funds exposed to  
market price risk 	 market price risk 

S'000 	 8'000 
114,840 	 98 	 121,898 	 99 

Equities investment 

Equities investment 

	

Listed Property Securities Fund 	 Global Property Securities Fund 
2017 	 2016 	 2017 	 2016 

	

Fair value 	% of unit holders' 	Fair value 	% of unit holders' 	Fair value 	Vo of unit holders' 	Fair value 	% of unit holders' 
funds exposed to 	 funds exposed to 	 funds exposed to 	 funds exposed to 
market price risk 	 market price risk 	 market price risk 	 market price risk 

S'000 	 % 	 S'000 	 % 	 S'000 	 % 	 S'000 	 % 

	

20,478 	 99 	 21,141 	 100 	 184,034 	 97 	 129,677 	 87 

Global Listed Infrastructure Fund 	 Commodities Fund 
2017 	 2016 	 2017 	 2016 

	

Fair value 	% of unit holders' 	Fair value 	% of unit holders' 	Fair value 	% of unit holders' 	Fair value 	% of unit holders' 
funds exposed to 	 funds exposed to 	 funds exposed to 	 funds exposed to 
market price risk 	 market price risk 	 market price risk 	 market price risk 

5'000 	 % 	 S'000 	 % 	 S'000 	 % 	 S'000 	 % 

	

303,811 	 100 	 196,978 	 93 	 164,349 	 98 	 267,831 	 98 
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The tables below show the sensitivity analysis in market price with all other variables held constant. 

Responsible Investment Leaders 
Conservative Fund 

2017 
	

2016 
Profit or loss 

10% 	10% 
increase 	decrease 
S'000 	5'000 

Unit holders' funds 
ID% 	10% 

increase 	decrease 
S'000 	S'000 

Profit or loss 
10% 	10% 

increase 	decrease 
S'000 	5000 

Unit holders' funds 
10% 	10% 

increase 	decrease 
5000 	S'000 

Australian equities 21 (21) 21 	(21) 23 (23) 23 	(23) 

NZ equities 788 (788) 788 	(788) 867 (867) 867 	(867) 

Responsible Investment Leaders 
Balanced Fund 

2017 2016 
Profit or loss Unit holders' funds Profit or loss Unit holders' funds 

10% 
increase 
8'000 

10% 
decrease 

S'000 

10% 
increase 

5'000 

10% 
decrease 

S'000 

10% 
increase 
S'000 

10% 
decrease 

S'000 

10% 
increase 

$'000 

10% 
decrease 

S'000 
Australian equities 346 (346) 346 (346) 312 (312) 312 (312) 

NZ equities 4,045 (4,045) 4,045 (4,045) 3,955 (3,955) 3,955 (3,955) 

Responsible Investment Leaders 
Growth Fund 

2017 
	

2016 
Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 	Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 

10% 	10% 
increase 	decrease 
5'000 	S'000 

10% 	10% 
increase 	decrease 
5'000 	S'000 

10% 	10% 
increase 	decrease 
S'000 	S'000 

10% 	10% 
increase 	decrease 
S'000 	S'000 

Australian equities 64 (64) 64 	(64) 80 (80) 80 	(80) 

NZ equities 489 (489) 489 	(489) 620 (620) 620 	(620) 

Global Multi-Asset Fund 
2017 2016 

Profit or loss Unit holders' funds Profit or loss Unit holders' funds 

Australian equities 
NZ equities 

10% 
increase 

S'000 
15,737 

697 

10% 	10% 	10% 
decrease 	increase 	decrease 

5'000 	S'000 	S'000 
(15,737) 	15,737 	(15,737) 

(697) 	697 	(697)  

10% 
increase 
S'000 

11,955 
502 

10% 	10% 	10% 
decrease 	increase 	decrease 

5000 	5000 
	

S'000 
(11,955) 	11,955 

	
(11,955) 

(502) 	502 	(502) 
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Income Generator Fund 

2017 
Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 

	

10% 	10% 	10% 	HI% 
increase 	decrease 	increase 	decrease 

	

5000 
	

S'000 
	

S'000 
	

S'000  

2016 
Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 

10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 
increase 	decrease 	increase 	decrease 
S'000 	S000 	$'000 	S'000 

Austraiian equities 677 (677) 677 (677) 281 (281) 281 (281) 

NZ equities 8,934 (8,934) 8,934 (8,934) 4,267 (4,267) 4,267 (4,267) 

Hedged Global Fixed Interest Fund 

NZ equities 

NZ Shares Fund 

2017 
Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 

10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 
increase 	decrease 	increase 	decrease 

5'000 	$'000 	S'000 	S'000 
8,299 	(8,299) 	8,299 	(8,299) 

2016 
Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 

10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 
increase 	decrease 	increase 	decrease 
8000 	S'000 	S'000 	S'000 

12,844 	(12,844) 	12,844 	(12,844) 

2017 
	

2016 
Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 	Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 

10% 
increase 
5000 

10% 
decrease 

S'000 

10% 
increase 
8'000 

10% 
decrease 

S'000 

10% 
increase 
S'000 

10% 
decrease 

S'000 

10% 
increase 

S'000 

10% 
decrease 

S'000 
Australian equities 1,809 (1,809) 1,809 (1,809) 417 (417) 417 (417) 

NZ equities 41,222 (41,222) 41,222 (41,222) 41,519 (41,519) 41,519 (41,519) 

Responsible Investment Leaders NZ 
Shares Fund 

Australian equities 
NZ equities 

2017 
Profit or loss 

10% 	10% 
increase 	decrease 
S'000 	S'000 

	

24 	(24) 

	

1,076 	(1,076)  

Unit holders' funds 
10% 	10% 

increase 	decrease 

2016 
Profit or loss 

10% 	10% 
increase 	decrease 
5'000 	S'000 

1,023 	(1,023)  

Unit holders' funds 
10% 	10% 

increase 	decrease 
S'000 	5000 

1,023 	(1,023) 

5000 
24 

1,076 
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Australian Shares Fund 

Australian equities 

Strategic NZ Shares Fund 

2017 
Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 

10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 
increase 	decrease 	increase 	decrease 

S'000 	s'000 	S'000 
	

S'O00 
17,269 	(17,269) 	17,269 

	(17,269)  

Unit holders' funds 
10% 	10% 

increase 	decrease 
S'000 	$'000 

7,770 	(7,770) 

2016 
Profit or loss 

10% 
	

10% 
increase 	decrease 
S'000 
	

S'000 
7,770 
	

(7,770) 

Australian equities 
NZ equities 

Global Shares Fund 

2017 
Profit or loss 	unit holders funds 

10% 
decrease 

S'000 

2017 
Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 

2016 
Profit or loss 

10% 	10% 

	

increase 	decrease 
S'000 	S'000 

184 	(184) 

	

9,911 	(9,911) 

2016 
Profit or loss  

Unit holders' funds 
10% 	10% 

	

increase 	decrease 
8'000 	S'000 

184 	(184) 

	

9,911 	(9,911) 

Unit holders' funds 

10% 
	

10% 
	

10% 
increase 	decrease 	increase 
S'000 
	

S'000 
	

S'000 

10% 
increase 

S'000 

10% 
decrease 

S'000 

10% 
increase 

S'000 

10% 
decrease 

S'000 

10% 
increase 
S'000 

10% 
decrease 

S'000 

10% 
increase 

8'000 

10% 
decrease 

S'000 
Australian equities 1,640 (1,640) 1,640 (1,640) 1,616 (1,616) 1,616 (1,616) 
NZ equities 12,336 (12,336) 12,336 (12,336) 12,450 (12,450) 12,450 (12,450) 

Responsible Investment Leaders 
Global Shares Fund 

10% 
decrease 
8000 

(5,075) Australian equities 

2017 
Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 

10% 
	

10% 	10% 
increase 	decrease 	increase 	decrease 
S'000 
	

5'000 	S'000 
	

S'000 
5,909 
	

(5,909) 	5,909 
	(5,909) 

Profit or loss 
10% 

increase 
S'000 

5,075  

2016 
Unit holders' funds 
10% 	10% 

increase 	decrease 
8'000 	S'000 

5,075 	(5,075) 
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Core Global Shares Fund 

NZ equities 

Core Hedged Global Shares Fund 

NZ equities 

Emerging Markets Shares Fund 

Australian equities 

NZ Property Fund 

Australian equities 
NZ equities 

Listed Property Securities Fund 

2017 	 2016 
Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 	Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 

10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 
increase 	decrease 	increase 	decrease 	increase 	decrease 	increase 	decrease 

S'000 	S000 	S'000 	S'000 	S000 	S'000 	8000 	S'000 
87,145 	(87,145) 	87,145 	(87,145) 	68,797 	(68,797) 	68,797 	(68,797) 

2017 	 2016 
Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 	Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 

10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 
increase 	decrease 	increase 	decrease 	increase 	decrease 	increase 	decrease 
8000 	S'000 	8000 	S'000 	s'000 	S'000 	S'000 	8000 

54,733 	(54,733) 	54,733 	(54,733) 	42,288 	(42,288) 	42,288 	(42,288) 

2017 	 2016 
Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 	Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 

10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	IO% 	Hi% 	10% 
increase 	decrease 	increase 	decrease 	increase 	decrease 	increase 	decrease 
8000 	8000 	S'000 	S'000 	8000 	S'000 	S'000 	S'000 

7,140 	(7,140) 	7,140 	(7,140) 	7,020 	(7,020) 	7,020 	(7,020) 

2017 	 2016 
Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 	Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 

10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 
increase 	decrease 	increase 	decrease 	increase 	decrease 	increase 	decrease 
S'000 	S'000 	S'000 	8000 	S'000 	8000 	8000 	S'000 

4,786 	(4,786) 	4,786 	(4,786) 	4,779 	(4,779) 	4,779 	(4,779) 
6,698 	(6,698) 	6,698 	(6,698) 	7,411 	(7,411) 	7,411 	(7,411) 

2017 	 2016 
Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 	Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 

10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 
increase 	decrease 	increase 	decrease 	increase 	decrease 	increase 	decrease 
8000 	5000 	S000 	S'000 	S'000 	S'000 	S'000 	S'000 

Australian equities 	 97 	(97) 	97 	(97) 	21 	(21) 	21 	(21) 

NZ equities 	 1,951 	(1,951) 	1,951 	(1,951) 	2,093 	(2,093) 	2,093 	(2,093) 
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Global Property Securities Fund 

2017 
	 2016 

Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 	Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 
10% 

increase 
S000 

10% 
decrease 

S000 

10% 
increase 
S'000 

10% 
decrease 

S'000 

10% 
increase 
S'000 

10% 
decrease 

S'000 

10% 
increase 
5.000 

10% 
decrease 

$'000 
Australian equities 1,727 (1,727) 1,727 (1,727) 539 (539) 539 (539) 

NZ equities 94 (94) 94 (94) 94 (94) 94 (94) 

International equities 16,582 (16,582) 16,582 (16,582) 12,335 (12,335) 12,335 (12,335) 

Global Listed Infrastructure Fund 
2017 

Profit or loss 
10% 	10% 

increase 	decrease 
$0110 	S'000  

Unit holders' funds 
10% 	10% 

increase 	decrease 
5000 	S'000  

2016 
Profit or loss 

10% 	10% 
increase 	decrease 
S'000 
	

5'000 

Unit holders' funds 
10% 	10% 

increase 	decrease 
S'000 	5000 

Australian equities 1,504 (1,504) 1,504 (1,504) 728 (728) 728 (728) 

International equities 28,878 (28,878) 28,878 (28,878) 18,970 (18,970) 18,970 (18,970) 

Commodities Fund 

NZ equities 

2017 
Profit or loss 

10% 	10% 
increase 	decrease 
S'000 	S'000 

16,435 	(16,435) 

Unit holders' funds 
10% 	10% 

increase 	decrease 
S'000 	S'000 

16,435 	(16,435) 

2016 
Profit or loss 

10% 	IO% 
increase 	decrease 
5000 	5,000 

26,783 	(26,783) 

Unit holders' funds 
10% 	10% 

increase 	decrease 
S'000 	S'000 

26,783 	(26,783) 
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100 basis points 
increase 
S'000 

5,050 
18,414 
9,507 

100 basis points 
decrease 

5'000 
(5,050) 

(18,414) 
(9,507) 
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13b. Interest Rate Risk 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of' changes in market interest rates. 

The Funds with interest-bearing financial assets and liabilities are exposed to risks associated with the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates on its financial position and cash flows. Interest rate risk is 
actively managed within the terms of the Funds SIPO. 

In accordance with the Funds' policy, the Manager monitors the Funds' overall interest sensitivity on a regular basis, 

The tables below show the sensitivity of the Funds' profit or loss to a reasonably possible change in interest rates with all other variables remaining constant. The sensitivity of the profit or loss is the effect of the assumed changes in 
interest rates on: 

I) The interest income for one year based on floating rate financial assets held at 31 March 2017. 
2) Changes in fair value of investments for the year based on revaluing fixed rate financial assets at 31 March 2017. 

The effects on the Funds profit and loss and unit holders' funds are equal and represent the total of the impacts analysed below under sensitivity of interest income and changes in fair value of investments. 

NZ Cash Fund 
2017 

Sensitivity of interest income 	Sensitivity of changes in fair value of 
investments 

100 basis points 100 basis points 	100 basis points 100 basis points 
increase 	decrease 	increase 	decrease 
5000 	 5000 	 5'000 	 5000 

	

3,140 	(3,140) 

	

21,387 	(21,387) 

	

13,280 	(13,280) 	 (738) 	 758  

2016 
Sensitivity of interest income 	Sensitivity of changes in fair value of 

investments 
100 basis points 100 basis points 

increase 	decrease 
5'000 	 5'000 

(252) 	 255 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Bank term deposits 
Interest bearing securities 

NZ Fixed Interest Fund 
2017 

Sensitivity of interest income 	Sensitivity of changes in fair value of 
investments  

2016 
Sensitivity of interest income 	Sensitivity of changes in fair value of 

investments 
100 basis points 

increase 
100 basis points 

decrease 
100 basis points 

increase 
100 basis points 

decrease 
100 basis points 

increase 
100 basis points 

decrease 
100 basis points 

increase 
100 basis points 

decrease 
5'000 5'000 5'000 5'000 5'000 5'000 5'000 5'000 

Cash and cash equivalents 57 (57) 17 (17) 
Bank term deposits 12 (12) 11 (11) 
Interest bearing securities 3,257 (3,257) (67,998) 73,863 2,499 (2,499) (63,278) 68,498 
Interest bearing derivatives (4,621) 4,602 (6,741) 6,052 
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NZ Short Duration Fund 

2017 
Sensitivity of interest income 	Sensitivity of changes in fair value of 

investments 
100 basis points 	100 basis points 	100 basis points 	100 basis points 

increase 	decrease 	increase 	decrease 

2016 
Sensitivity of interest income 	Sensitivity of changes in fair value of 

investments 
100 basis points 	100 basis points 	100 basis points 	100 basis points 

increase 	decrease 	increase 	decrease 
8'000 $000 S'000 8000 S'000 $'000 S'000 S'000 

Cash and cash equivalents 79 (79) - - 31 (31) 

Bank term deposits 121 (121) _ 176 (176) - 
Interest bearing securities 1,274 (1,274) (4,569) 4,785 847 (847) (3,187) 3,351 
Interest bearing derivatives - (2,745) 2,808 - (2,108) 2,172 

Global Short Duration Fund 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Interest bearing securities 
Interest bearing derivatives 

2017 	 2016 

	

Sensitivity of interest income 	Sensitivity of changes in fair value of 	Sensitivity of interest income 	Sensitivity of changes in fair value of 
investments 	 investments 

100 basis points 100 basis points 	100 basis points IN basis points 	100 basis points 100 basis points 	100 basis points 100 basis points 
increase 	decrease 	increase 	decrease 	 increase 	decrease 	increase 	decrease 
8000 	 S'000 	 S'000 	 S'000 	 S'000 	 S'000 	 S'000 	 8000 

(399) 	 399 	 - 	 - 	 (12) 	 12 	 _ 

281 	 (281) 	(6,926) 	7,903 	 46 	 (46) 	(6,379) 	7,979 

	

, 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 669 	 (163) 
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13e. Credit Risk 

Credit risk represents the risk that the counterparty to the financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the Funds to incur a financial loss. 

With respect to credit risk arising from the financial assets of the Funds, the Funds exposure to credit risk arises from default of the counterparty, with the current exposure equal to the fair value of these instruments as disclosed in the 
Statement of Financial Position. This does not represent the maximum risk exposure that could arise in the future as a result of changes in values, but best represents the maximum exposure at the reporting date. 

The Funds hold no collateral as security or any other credit enhancements. There are no financial assets that are past due or impaired, or would otherwise be past due or impaired except for the terms having been renegotiated. 

The Funds do not use credit derivatives to mitigate credit risk. 

Credit risk is not considered to be significant to the Funds except in relation to investments in debt securities and interest rate swaps. 

Credit risk arising from interest rate swap derivative financial instruments is, at any time, limited to those with net positive fair values. 

The tables below show the maximum exposure to credit risk and the credit rating grade of the Funds' financial assets that are subject to credit risk as at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016. 

NZ Cash Fund 
2017 	 2016 

AAA to AA- 	A+ to A- 	BBB+ to BBB- Less than BBB- 	Total 	AAA to AA- 	A+ to A- 	BBB+ to BBB- Less than BBB- 	Total 
3`009 	S000 	S'1100 	5000 	S'000 	S'000 	S000 	S'000 	8'000 	S'000 

Bank term deposits 1,806,041 408,897 - 2,214,938 1,612,469 347,218 1,959,687 
NZ government and local government securities 24,043 5,798 , - 	29,841 17,028 3,002 20,030 
NZ fixed and floating interest securities 512,103 116,599 20,076 - 	648,778 626,450 14,548 640,998 
NZ discounted securities 1.266,933 - 1.266.933 - 727,050 79,153 806.203 

2,342.187 1_798_227 20.076 - 	4.160.490 2.255,947 1,091.818 79,153 3.426,918 =====mm== 
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Ni Fixed Interest Fund 

AAA to AA- 
S'000 

A+ to A- 
5000 

2017 
BBB+ to BBB- Less than BBB- 

S000 	S'000 
Total 
5'000 

AAA to AA- 
$000 

Al- to A- 
5'000 

2016 
BBB+ to BBB- Less than BBB- 

5'000 	5'000 
Total 
S'000 

Bank term deposits 1,164 1,164 1,135 - 1,135 
NZ government and local government securities 838,965 20,988 359,953 753,017 7,544 37,927 798,488 
NZ fixed and floating interest securities 595,125 115,306 114,152 8,103 832,686 527,631 97,691 60,163 - 685,485 
Derivatives 5,619 - 5,619 11,655 11,655 
Australian fixed and floating interest securities 58,338 59,308 12,080 - 129,726 59,111 66,838 12,308 138,257 
NZ discounted securities 13 940 - 13.940 - - 

1.499.211 so=c===== 188.554 women===emmme 126.232 r=foremars= 29.091 =nam 088 L352,549 
Effl =1/Ml= 

172,073 073 
6=1= 

72.471 
116== 

 37,927 WISM1161.16==== _1_635 020 
Ni Short Duration Fund 

AAA to AA- 
5'000 

A+ to A- 
S000 

2017 
BBB+ to BBB- Less than BBB- 

$000 	5'000 
Total 
5'000 

AAA to AA- 
S'000 

A+ to A- 
$000 

2016 
BBB+ to BBB- Less than BBB- 

5'000 	S'000 
Total 
$000 

Bank term deposits 11,736 - 11,736 12,448 8,161 - 20,609 
NZ government and local government securities 42,422 500 - 1,003 43,925 16,273 630 8,472 25,375 
NZ fixed and floating interest securities 180,627 42,952 47,196 2,013 272,788 107,558 13,026 20,922 - 141,506 
Derivatives 875 - _. 875 2,414 2,414 
Australian fixed and floating interest securities 7,154 5,857 2,132 15,143 4,991 11,802 2,172 - 18,965 
NZ discounted securities 23,866 - 23,866 - 27.790 27.790 

242,814 73,175 49,328 3 0 l6 368,333 143,684 61,409 23.094 8 472 236,659 
Global Short Duration Fund 

AAA to AA- 
5'000 

A+ to A- 
$000 

2017 
BBB-I- to BBB- Less than BBB- 

5'000 	5000 
Total 
5'000 

AAA to AA- 
$000 

Al- to A- 
S000 

2016 
BBB+ to BBB- Less than BBB- 

5'009 	$000 
Total 
5'000 

International government securities 63,876 - - 211 64,087 89,848 .. 89,848 
International fixed interest securities 39.152 20.601 45.198 25.561 130 512 8.920 24.600 19,232 20,891 73,643 

103,028 20,601 45,198 25,772 194,599 98768_ 24,600 19,232 20,891 .102,191. 
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AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

13d. Liquidity Risk 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Funds will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. 

The Funds are exposed to regular cash redemptions of redeemable units. They therefore invest the majority of their assets in investments that are traded in an active market and can be readily disposed of they invest only a limited 
proportion of their assets in investments not actively traded on a stock exchange or debt market. 

The Funds' listed securities and unit trusts are considered readily realisable. The Funds have the ability to borrow in the short term to ensure settlement. 

All cash and cash equivalents, receivables and payables are receivable or payable within the next 6 months, and the contractual cash flows receivable or payable are materially equal to the carrying amounts of these assets and liabilities 
in the Statement of Financial Position. 

In accordance with the Funds' policy, the Manager monitors the Funds' liquidity position on a regular basis. 

The tables below analyse the Funds' derivative financial instruments into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the reporting date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts in the tables are the contractual 
undiscounted cash flows. The contractual undiscounted cash flow amounts for currency forward agreements and forward exchange contracts are calculated based on the spot price at year end. 

Responsible Investment Leaders Balanced Fund 
2017 

Statement of 	Contractual 	Within 6 	Between 6-12 	Between 1-2 	Between 2-5 	Over 5 years 
Financial 	Cash Flows 	months 	months 	years 	years 
Position 
S'000 	S'000 	S000 	S'O00 	S'000 	S'000 	S'000 

Derivative assets held for trading: 
Fonvard foreign exchange contracts 
Inflow 
Outflow 
Total 
Derivative liabilities held for trading: 
Forward foreign exchange contracts 
Inflow 
Outflow 
Total 

 

39 

	

4,289 	4,289 

	

(4,250) 	(4.2501 		  
39 	 39 	 39 

      

       

       

 

36 

	

1,960 	1,960 

	

(1.996) 	(1.996J 		  
36 	 (361 	(361 
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AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

13d. Liquidity Risk 
Responsible Investment Leaders Balanced Fund 
2016 

Statement of 	Contractual 	Within 6 	Between 6-12 	Between 1-2 	Between 2-5 	Over 5 years 
Financial 	Cash Flows 	months 	months 	years 	years 
Position 

S0013 	5000 	$000 	S000 	$000 	5000 	5'000 
Derivative assets held for trading: 
Forward foreign exchange contracts 
Inflow 
Outflow 
Total 
Derivative liabilities held for trading: 
Forward foreign exchange contracts 
In flow 
Outflow 
Total 

38 

	

4,038 	4,038 

	

(4.000) 	(4,000) 

	

38 	 38  

       

        

38 

       

66 

	

5,370 	5,370 

	

(5,4361 	(5,436)  

	

(661 	 (66)  

       

        

66 

       

         

Responsible Investment Leaders Growth Fund 
2016 

         

Statement of 	Contractual 	Within 6 	Between 6-12 	Between 1-2 	Between 2-5 	Over 5 years 
Financial 	Cash Flows 	months 	months 	years 	years 
Position 
5'000 	S000 	5'000 	5'000 	5'000 	$000 	$'000 

Derivative assets held for trading: 
Forward foreign exchange contracts 
Inflow 
Outflow 
Total 
Derivative liabilities held for trading: 
Forward foreign exchange contracts 
Inflow 
Outflow 
Total 

2 
432 	 432 

(430) 	(430) 
2 

5 
554 	 554 

(559) 	(5591 
5 	 (5) 
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AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

I3d. Liquidity Risk 
Global Multi-Asset Fund 
2017 

Statement of 	Contractual 	Within 6 	Between 6-12 	Between 1-2 	Between 2-5 	Over 5 years 
Financial 	Cash Flows 	months 	months 	years 	years 
Position 
5'000 	5'000 	5'000 	$000 	S'000 	$000 	5000 

Derivative assets held for trading: 
Forward foreign exchange contracts 

Inflow 
Outflow 
Total 
Derivative liabilities held for trading: 
Forward foreign exchange contracts 

Inflow 
Outflow 
Total 

Global Multi-Asset Fund 
2016 

48 

	

315,782 	315,782 

	

(315.734) 	(315,734) 

	

48 	 48 

4,137 

	

154,237 	154,237 

	

(158,328) 	(158.3281 
4,137 	14,091) 	(4,091  

48 

Statement of 	Contractual 	Within 6 	Between 6-12 	Between 1-2 	Between 2-5 	Over 5 years 
Financial 	Cash Flows 	months 	months 	years 	years 
Position 
$000 	$000 	S000 	$000 	5'000 	5'000 	5'000 

Derivative assets held for trading: 
Forward foreign exchange contracts 

Inflow 

Outflow 

Total 
Derivative liabilities held for trading: 
Fonvard foreign exchange contracts 

Inflow 
Outflow 
Total  

119 

	

124,854 	124,854 

	

(124,739) 	(124.7391 
119 
	

115 	 115 

2,615 

	

234,969 	234,969 

	

(237.546) 	(237,5461 
a,615 	(2577) 	(2,5771 
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13d. Liquidity Risk 
NZ Fixed Interest Fund 
2017 

Statement of 
Financial 
Position 

Contractual 
Cash Flows 

AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

Within 6 	Between 6-12 	Between 1-2 
months 	months 	years 

Between 2-5 
years 

Over 5 years 

5'000 5000 5'000 5'000 5'000 5'000 $000 
Derivative assets held for trading: 
Interest rate swaps 24,434 
Inflow 107,771 14,708 14,329 26,948 35,747 16,039 
Outflow (59,780) (8,053) (7,924) (14,831) (19,765) (9,207) 
Currency swaps 11 
Inflow 31,256 31,256 
Outflow (31,245) (31,245) 
Total 24,445 48,002 6,655 6,405 12,128 .15,982 --..—.— 6,832 
Derivative liabilities held for trading: 
Interest rate swaps 20,383 
Inflow 47,630 3,699 3,699 7,501 21,259 11,472 
Outflow (94,507) (7,224) (7,224) (14,648) (41,757) (23,654) 
Currency swaps 3,053 
Inflow 99,646 19,451 - 24,294 33,832 22,069 
Outflow (102,698) (19.959) (24.540) (35.933) (22,266) 
Total 23,436  (49.929)  (4,033) 3 525  (7)3931 	 (22,599)  (12,379) 
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13d. Liquidity Risk 
NZ Fixed Interest Fund 
2016 

AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

Statement of Contractual Within 6 Between 6-12 Between 1-2 Between 2-5 Over 5 years 
Financial Cash Flows months months years years 
Position 
S'000 S'000 S'O00 S000 S'000 $'000 S'000 

Derivative assets held for trading: 
Interest rate swaps 44,510 
Inflow 130,623 16,292 16,292 32,264 58,422 7,353 
Outflow (89,908) (11,277) (11,277) (22,312) (40,279) (4,763) 
Currency swaps 63 
Inflow 6,880 6,880 
Outflow (6,817) (6,8171 
Total 44,573 40,778 5,078,  5,015 9,952 18,143 2,590 
Derivative liabilities held for trading: 
Interest rate swaps 34,823 
Inflow 89,750 6,555 6,555 13,291 32,527 30,822 
Outflow (138,265) (9,564) (9,564) (19,394) (50,533) (49,210) 
Currency swaps 5,973 
Inflow 132,808 - 19,837 83,284 29,687 
Outflow (138,781) (20.8371 (86.284) (31,660) 
Total 40,796 

................,...,„_6  54 488),  
0°. 	(3,009) (3,009) (7,103) (/1,006) . (20,361) A° 

- 77- 
EY 



13d. Liquidity Risk 
NI Short Duration Fund 
2017 

AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

Statement of Contractual Within 6 Between 6-12 Between 1-2 Between 2-5 Over 5 years 
Financial Cash Flows months months years years 
Position 
5'000 5'000 5'000 5'000 5'000 5'000 S'000 

Derivative assets held for trading: 
Interest rate swaps 2,051 

Inflow 12,200 3,248 2,974 3,959 1,994 25 

Outflow (8,822) (2,247) (2,184) (2,980) (1,396) (15) 

Currency swaps 1 

Inflow 3,473 - 3,473 

Outflow (3,4721 - (3,4721 - 

Total 2,052 31379 1,001 790 980 598 10 

Derivative liabilities held for trading: 
Interest rate swaps 826 

Inflow 2,495 259 259 524 1,197 256 

Outflow (4,122) (414) (414) (839) (1,909) (546) 

Currency swaps 418 

Inflow 12,946 2,161 3,313 4,890 2,582 

Outflow (13,365) (2.218) (3.346) (5,195) (2,6061 

Total 1244  (2,0461 , 	(2121 (155)  13481 (1,017)  131 4)  
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13d. Liquidity Risk 
NZ Short Duration Fund 
2016 

AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

Statement of Contractual Within 6 Between 6-12 Between 1-2 Between 2-5 Over 5 years 
Financial Cash Flows months months years years 
Position 
5'000 5'000 S000 5000 S'000 S000 S'000 

Derivative assets held for trading: 
Interest rate swaps 3,994 
Inflow 12,169 2,918 2,918 3,443 2,832 58 
Outflow (9,111) (1,994) (1,994) (2,655) (2,420) (48) 
Currency swaps 23 
Inflow 2,523 2,523 
Outflow (2.499) (2,499) 
Total 4.017 3,082 948 924 788 412 10 

Derivative liabilities held for trading: 
Interest rate swaps 1,580 
Inflow 1,343 181 181 368 598 15 
Outflow (2,277) (310) (310) (628) (988) (41) 
Currency swaps 787 
Inflow 16,661 - 2,204 10,765 3,692 
Outflow (17,447) (2.315) (11,172) (3,960) 
Total 2,367  ,,,......11,74  (1291 (129)  (3711 c:/221'  (294)  
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AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

13d. Liquidity Risk 
Global Short Duration Fund 
2017 

	

Statement of 	Contractual 	Within 6 	Between 6-12 	Between 1-2 	Between 2-5 	Over 5 years 
Financial 	Cash Flows 	months 	months 	years 	years 
Position 
S000 	S000 	8000 	S000 	8000 	S'000 	S'000 

Derivative assets held for trading: 
Fonvard foreign exchange contracts 	 282 
Inflow 	 225,781 	203,389 	16,828 	5,564 
Outflow 	 (225,000) 	(203,1201 	(16.451) 	(5.429) 	 
Total 	 282 	781 	269 	377 	135  

Derivative liabilities held for trading: 
Forward foreign exchange contracts 	 5,580 
Inflow 	 394,663 	393,720 	943 
Outflow 	 (400,206) 	(399,259) 	(947) 
Interest rate swaps 	 669 
Inflow 	 12,900 	 12,900 
Outflow 	 (13,569) 	 (13,569) 
Total 	 6,249 	(6 2121 	(5,5391 	 (4)  	 - 	06.9/ 	 ....a=== 
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AMP CAPITAL, INVESTMENT FUNDS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

13d. Liquidity Risk 
Global Short Duration Fund 
2016 

Derivative assets held for trading: 
Forward foreign exchange contracts 
Inflow 
Outflow 
Options 
Inflow 
Total 
Derivative liabilities held for trading: 
Forward foreign exchange contracts 
Inflow 
Outflow 
Interest rate swaps 
Inflow 
Outflow 
Options 
Outflow 
Total 

Strategic NZ Shares Fund 
2016 

	

Statement of 	Contractual 	Within 6 	Between 6-12 	Between 1-2 	Between 2-5 	Over 5 years 
Financial 	Cash Flows 	months 	months 	years 	years 
Position 
5'000 	S000 	S'000 	5'000 	5'000 	5000 	5'000 

9,325 

	

361,293 	361,293 

	

(351,667) 	(351,667) 
6 

	

6 	 6  

	

9,331 	9,632 	9,632  

1,833 

	

191,298 	191,298 	 - 

	

(193,134) 	(193,134) 	 - 
862 

	

78 	 3 	 3 	 6 	 19 	 47 

	

(1,029) 	 (42) 	 (42) 	 (84) 	(253) 	(608) 
9 

	

91 	(9)  	  

	

2,704 	(2,7961 	(1,884) 	(3.2.1 	(78) 	(234) 	(561) 

	

Statement of 	Contractual 	Within 6 	Between 6-12 	Between 1-2 	Between 2-5 	Over 5 years 
Financial 	Cash Flows 	months 	months 	years 	years 
Position 
5'000 	S000 	5'000 	5'000 	5'000 	$000 	S000 

Derivative assets held for trading: 
Forward foreign exchange contracts 
Inflow 
Outflow 
Total 

	

555 	555 

	

(554) 	(554)  
1 	 1 	 1 
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AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

13d. Liquidity Risk 
Global Shares Fund 
2017 

Statement of 	Contractual 	Within 6 	Between 6-12 	Between 1-2 	Between 2-5 	Over 5 years 
Financial 	Cash Flows 	months 	months 	years 	years 
Position 

$000 	5'000 	5000 	5'000 	5000 	5'000 	5'000 
Derivative assets held for trading: 
Forward foreign exchange contracts 
Inflow 
Outflow 
Total 

Derivative liabilities held for trading: 
Forward foreign exchange contracts 
Inflow 
Outflow 
Total 

Global Shares Fund 
2016 

Derivative assets held for trading: 
Forward foreign exchange contracts 
Inflow 
Outflow 
Total 
Derivative liabilities held for trading: 
Forward foreign exchange contracts 
Inflow 
Outflow 
Total  

25 

	

46,432 	46,432 

	

(46.344) 	(46,3441 

	

88 	 88 

	

133,860 	133,860 

	

(137,150) 	(137,150)  
3 306 	0,290) 	(3,290)  

25 

3,306 

.1.1,,,,•••••••••••••••••• 

	

Statement of 	Contractual 	Within 6 	Between 6-12 	Between 1-2 	Between 2-5 	Over 5 years 
Financial 	Cash Flows 	months 	months 	years 	years 
Position 
5'000 	5'000 	5'000 	5000 	5.000 	5000 	5'000 

3,777 

	

256,772 	256,772 

	

(252.842) 	(252.8411 

	

3,777 	3,930 	3, 3L  

329 

	

33,454 	33,454 

	

(33,714) 	(33.714) 

	

329 
	

(260) 	(260)  
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AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

13d. Liquidity Risk 
Responsible Investment Leaders Global Shares 
Fund 
2017 

Statement of 	Contractual 	Within 6 	Between 6-12 	Between 1-2 	Between 2-5 	Over 5 years 
Financial 	Cash Flows 	months 	months 	years 	years 
Position 
S'000 	5000 	5000 	5'000 	5'000 	5'000 	5000 

Derivative assets held for trading: 
Forward foreign exchange contracts 
Inflow 
Outflow 
Total 
Derivative liabilities held for trading: 
Forward foreign exchange contracts 
Inflow 
Outflow 
Total  

1,370 
55,542 	55,542 

(56,906) 	(56,906) 
1 370 	(1.3tea 	(1,3641 

7 

	

19,470 	19,470 

	

(19,4371 	(19,437)  	 
33  

Responsible Investment Leaders Global Shares 
Fund 
2016 

Statement of 	Contractual 	Within 6 	Between 6-12 	Between 1-2 	Between 2-5 	Over 5 years 
Financial 	Cash Flows 	months 	months 	years 	years 
Position 
5'000 	5000 	5'000 	5'000 	5'000 	5'000 	5000 

Derivative assets held for trading: 
Forward foreign exchange contracts 
Inflow 
Outflow 
Total 
Derivative liabilities held for trading: 
Forward foreign exchange contracts 
Inflow 
Outflow 
Total  

1,340 

	

92,557 	92,557 

	

(91 162) 	(91.162) 

	

1.340 
	1,395 	1,395 

109 

	

11,931 	11,931 

	

(12.016) 	(12,016)  

	

109 	 @AI 	(85)  
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25,599 

	

1,016,335 	1,016,335 

	

(1.041.772) 	(1,041,772)  
25,599 	f25,4371 	(25,4371  	  

AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

I3d. Liquidity Risk 
Core Hedged Global Shares Fund 
2017 

Statement of 	Contractual 	Within 6 	Between 6-12 	Between 1-2 	Between 2-5 	Over 5 years 
Financial 	Cash Flows 	months 	months 	years 	years 
Position 
5'000 	5'000 	5'000 	5'000 	5'000 	5000 	5'000 

Derivative assets held for trading: 
Forward foreign exchange contracts 
Inflow 
Outflow 
Total 
Derivative liabilities held for trading: 
Forward foreign exchange contracts 
Inflow 
Outflow 
Total 

Core Hedged Global Shares Fund 
2016 

140 

	

326,364 	326,364 

	

(325,690) 	(325,690) 
140 	 674 	 674  

Statement of 	Contractual 	Within 6 	Between 6-12 	Between 1-2 	Between 2-5 	Over 5 years 
Financial 	Cash Flows 	months 	months 	years 	years 
Position 
5,000 	5'000 	5'000 	5'000 	5'000 	5000 	S'000 

Derivative assets held for trading: 
Forward foreign exchange contracts 
Inflow 
Outflow 
Total 
Derivative liabilities held for trading: 
Forward foreign exchange contracts 
In flow 
Outflow 
Total  

23,016 

	

1,576,947 	1,576,947 

	

(1,552,979) 	(1.552.9791 

	

23,016 	23,968 	23 968  

1,307 

	

165,283 	165,283 

	

(166,162) 	(166 162) 

	

1,307 	_(M 	5879) 
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AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

13d. Liquidity Risk 
NZ Property Fund 
2017 

Statement of 	Contractual 	Within 6 	Between 6-12 	Between 1-2 	Between 2-5 	Over 5 years 
Financial 	Cash Flows 	months 	months 	years 	years 
Position 
S'000 	5'000 	5'000 	5000 	5000 	S000 	5'000 

Derivative assets held for trading: 
Forward foreign exchange contracts 
Inflow 
Outflow 
Total 

204 

          

  

47,127 
(46,916) 

47,127 
(46,916) 

211 

       

          

204 	211  

       

NZ Property Fund 
2016 

	

Statement of 	Contractual 	Within 6 	Between 6-12 	Between 1-2 	Between 2-5 	Over 5 years 

	

Financial 	Cash Flows 	months 	months 	years 	years 
Position 
S000 	5000 	5000 	5000 	S000 	5000 	5000 

Derivative assets held for trading: 
Forward foreign exchange contracts 	 1,101 
Inflow 	 52,074 	52,074 
Outflow 	 (50.964) 	(50,9641 	 -  
Total 	 1,101 	1,110 	1,110  
Derivative liabilities held for trading: 
Forward foreign exchange contracts 	 39 
Inflow 	 3,469 	3,469 
Outflow 	 (3.508) 	(3.508) 	 
Total 	 39 	 (391 ,_____1321 	 - 	  
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AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

13d. Liquidity Risk 
Global Property Securities Fund 
2017 

Statement of 	Contractual 	Within 6 	Between 6-12 	Between 1-2 	Between 2-5 	Over 5 years 
Financial 	Cash Flows 	months 	months 	years 	years 
Position 
8'000 	S'000 	5'000 	S'000 	S'000 	S'000 	5'000 

Derivative assets held for trading: 
Forward foreign exchange contracts 
Inflow 
Outflow 
Total 
Derivative liabilities held for trading: 
Forward foreign exchange contracts 
Inflow 
Outflow 
Total 

Global Property Securities Fund 
2016 

118 

	

24,305 	24,305 

	

(24,180) 	(24,180) 

	

125 	125  

1,622 

	

168,606 	168,606 

	

(170,109) 	(170,1091 
1,622 	0.503) 	1,5031  	  

118 

Statement of 	Contractual 	Within 6 	Between 6-12 	Between 1-2 	Between 2-5 	Over 5 years 
Financial 	Cash Flows 	months 	months 	years 	years 
Position 
$'000 	S'000 	8000 	S000 	S'000 	S'000 	8000 

Derivative assets held for trading: 
Forward foreign exchange contracts 
In flow 
Outflow 
Total 
Derivative liabilities held for trading: 
Forward foreign exchange contracts 
Inflow 
Outflow 
Total  

5,244 

	

132,840 	132,840 

	

(127.397) 	(127.397) 

	

5,244 	5,443 	5.443  

118 

	

9,617 	9,617 

	

(9.736) 	(9,736) 

	

118 
	

0'9) 	(119) 
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AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

136. Liquidity Risk 
Global Listed Infrastructure Fund 
2017 

Statement of 	Contractual 	Within 6 	Between 6-12 Between 1-2 	Between 2-5 	Over 5 years 
Financial 	Cash Flows 	months 	months 	years 	years 
Position 
S'000 	S'000 	5'000 	5'000 	S'000 	S'000 	5'000 

Derivative assets held for trading: 
Forward foreign exchange contracts 
Inflow 
Outflow 
Total 
Derivative liabilities held for trading: 
Fol-ward foreign exchange contracts 
Inflow 
Outflow 
Total 

Global Listed Infrastructure Fund 
2016 

81 

2,123 

	

225,047 	225,047 

	

(226.968) 	(226,9681 
2,123 	(1,921) 	(1.921  

	

76,210 	76,210 

	

(76,097) 	(76,097) 
81 
	

113 
	

113 

Statement of 	Contractual 	Within 6 	Between 6-12 	Between 1-2 	Between 2-5 	Over 5 years 
Financial 	Cash Flows 	months 	months 	years 	years 
Position 
S.000 	S'000 	S'000 	5.000 	$000 	S'000 	$000 

Derivative assets held for trading: 
Forward foreign exchange contracts 
In flow 
Outflow 
Total 
Derivative liabilities held for trading: 
Forward foreign exchange contracts 
Inflow 
Outflow 
Total 

6,787 

 

	

196,493 	196,493 

	

(189,404) 	(189,404) 

	

7,089 	7,089  

       

         

6,787 

        

69 

 

	

12,099 	12,099 

	

(12,168) 	(12,168) 	  

	

(.9) 	(691 	  

     

       

69 
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AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

13d, Liquidity Risk 
Commodities Fund 
2017 

Statement of 	Contractual 	Within 6 	Between 6-12 	Between 1-2 	Between 2-5 	Over 5 years 
Financial 	Cash Flows 	months 	months 	years 	years 
Position 
5000 	S'000 	$000 	S'000 	$000 	S'000 	S'000 

Derivative liabilities held for trading: 
Commodity index swaps 
Outflow 
Total 

4,759 

        

 

(4,759) 	 (4.759) 

     

      

         

4,759 	(4,759) 	 (4,7591  	  

    

     

Commodities Fund 
2016 

         

Statement of 	Contractual 	Within 6 	Between 6-12 	Between 1-2 	Between 2-5 	Over 5 years 
Financial 	Cash Flows 	months 	months 	years 	years 
Position 
S'000 	$000 	S'000 	S'000 	S'000 	S'000 	$000 

Derivative assets held for trading: 
Commodity index swaps 
Inflow 
Outflow 
Total 

9,192 

	

9,267 	 9,267 

	

(74) 		 (74) 
9,192 	9,193 	 9,193  
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AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

13e. Currency Risk 
Currency risk is the risk that the value of the financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. 

The Funds may hold financial instruments and other monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the New Zealand dollar, the functional currency. They are therefore exposed to currency risk, as the value of the 
financial instruments denominated in other currencies will fluctuate due to changes in exchange rates. 

The tables below summarise the Funds exposure to currency risks in New Zealand dollar value of the financial instruments, showing the currencies representing the most significant exposures. Other currencies include the Singapore 
Dollar (SOD), Danish Krone (DKK), Mexican Peso (M)CN), Norwegian Krone (WOK), Swedish Krona (SEK), Turkish Lira (TRY), Taiwan Dollar (TWD) and South Korean Won (KRW). 

Responsible Investment Leaders Conservative Fund 
2017 

ASSETS 

AUD 
S000 

CAD 
S000 

CHF 
$'000 

EUR 
5'000 

GBP 
S000 

IIKD 
S*000 

SPY 
S'000 

USD 
S000 

Other 
S000 

Cash and cash equivalents 3 
Investment securities designated at fair value through profit or loss 208 
Total financial assets 211 

Responsible Investment Leaders Conservative Fund 
2016 

AUD CAD CHF EUR GBP HKD SPY USD Other 
S`000 S'000 S000 S000 S'000 S000 S000 S000 S'000 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 3 
Investment securities designated at fair value through profit or loss 232 
Total financial assets 235 

Responsible Investment Leaders Balanced Fund 
2017 

AUD CAD CHF EUR GBP IIKD SPY USD Other 
S'000 S'000 S000 $000 S'000 S'000 S000 $000 $000 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 1 
Investment securities designated at fair value through profit or loss 3,461 
Derivatives held for trading 1.581 80 71 245 146 83 198 689 4 
Total financial assets 5 043 80 71 245 146 83 198 689 
LIABILITIES 
Derivatives held for trading 2.660 52 46 155 95 53 129 
Total financial Liabilities il,_660 52 46 155 95 53 129 

11111111 1 
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AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

13c. Currency Risk 
Responsible Investment Leaders Balanced Fund 
2016 

ASSETS 

AUD 
S000 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

CAD 	CHF 	EUR 	GBP 
S'000 	S'000 	S'000 	5000 

HKD 
5000 

JPY 
5'000 

USD 
$'000 

Other 
S000 

Investment securities designated at fair value through profit or loss 3,121 
Derivatives held for trading 1362 31 34 109 67 31 81 541 
Total financial assets 6.,483 31 34 109 67 31 81 541 
LIABILITIES 
Derivatives held for trading 4,580 21 24 74 45 20 55 362 
Total financial liabilities 4 580 21 24 74 45 20 55 362 

Responsible Investment Leaders Growth Fund 
2017 

AUD CAD CHF EUR GBP HKD JPY USD Other 
5000 S000 $'000 S'000 S000 S000 5000 S000 S'000 

ASSETS 
Investment securities designated at fair value through profit or loss 641 
Total financial assets 641 

Responsible Investment Leaders Growth Fund 
2016 

AUD CAD CHF EUR GBP HKD JPY USD Other 
$'000 S'000 5000 S'000 5000 S'000 S'000 $000 $'000 

ASSETS 
Investment securities designated at fair value through profit or loss 801 
Derivatives held for trading 336 
Total financial assets 1137 
LIABILITIES 
Derivatives held for trading 653 
Total financial liabilities 653 
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AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

13e. Currency Risk 
Global Multi-Asset Fund 
2017 

ASSETS 

AUD 
S'000 

CAD 
S'000 

CHF 
S`000 

EUR 
5000 

GBP 
$000 

HKD 
S.000 

JPY 
5'000 

USD 
$000 

Other 
S'000 

Cash and cash equivalents 20 
Investment securities designated at fair value through profit or loss 157,369 
Derivatives held for trading 158.335 
Total financial assets 315,724 
LIABILITIES 
Derivatives held for trading 315.828 
Total financial liabilities 315,828 

1111111=1111111t ... 21151.10111 9 61.15 

Global Multi-Asset Fund 
2016 

AUD CAD CHF EUR GBP HKD JPY USD Other 
$000 S.000 S'000 S.000 $000 S000 S'000 S000 $000 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 20 
Investment securities designated at fair value through profit or loss 119,545 
Derivatives held for trading 121,385 
Total financial assets 240,950 
LIABILITIES 
Derivatives held for trading 240,994 
Total financial liabilities 240,994 

Income Generator Fund 
2017 

AUD CAD CHF EUR GBP IIKD JPY USD Other 
5.000 $'000 S000 5000 S'000 $000 5000 5000 S.000 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 25 
Investment securities designated at fair value through profit or loss 6,768 
Total financial assets 6,793 
LIABILITIES 
Payables 2 
Total financial liabilities 
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13e. Currency Risk 
Income Generator Fund 
2016 

AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

AUD CAD CHF EUR GB? HKD JPY USD Other 
5'000 $000 S'000 S'000 $000 S'000 S'000 S'000 S000 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 18 

Investment securities designated at fair value through profit or loss 2,811 

Receivables 10 

Total financial assets 2,839 

NZ Fixed Interest Fund 
2017 

AUD CAD CHF EUR GI3P HKD JPY USD Other 
$0130 S.000 S'000 $'000 S000 S'000 S.000 S'00111 $000 

ASSETS 
Investment securities designated at fair value through profit or loss 129,726 
Receivables L034 
Total financial assets 130,760 
LIABILITIES 
Overdraft 20 
Derivatives held for trading 133,944 
Total financial liabilities 133,964 

NZ Fixed Interest Fund 
2016 

AUD CAD CHF EUR GB? HKD JPY USD Other 
S'000 $000 S'000 S'000 $000 S'000 S'000 $000 S'000 

ASSETS 
Investment securities designated at fair value through profit or loss 138,257 
Receivables 1,173 
Total financial assets 139.430 
LIABILITIES 
Overdraft 19 
Derivatives held for trading 145,597 

Total financial liabilities 145,616  yoreem,........L. 	 
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13e. Currency Risk 
NZ Short Duration Fund 
2017 

AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

AUD CAD CHF EUR GBP IIKD JPY USD Other 
S'000 8000 S000 S'000 5000 S000 S'000 S'000 5'000 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 1 
Investment securities designated at fair value through profit or loss 16,279 
Receivables 139 
Total financial assets I6419 
LIABILITIES 
Derivatives held for trading 16,836 
Total financial liabilities 16 836 ,===. ....... ====.:4 

NZ Short Duration Fund 
2016 

AUD CAD CHF EUR GBP 111CD JPY USD Other 
5000 S'000 5000 S000 S'000 5000 $'000 S'000 S'000 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 1 
Investment securities designated at fair value through profit or loss 18,965 
Receivables 179 
Total financial assets 19,145 
LIABILITIES 
Derivatives held for trading 19.947 
Total financial liabilities 19,947 
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13e, Currency Risk 
Global Short Duration Fund 
2017 

AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

AUD CAD CHF EUR GBP HKD „WY USD Other 
$'000 5'000 S'000 $000 5'000 5'000 $000 S'000 5000 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 2 _ - 807 - 19 
Investment securities designated at fair value through profit or loss - 1,413 4,436 - 166,120 22,631 
Derivatives held for trading 145 17,492 859 228,336 
Receivables 1 8 - 46.260 175 
Total financial assets 2 ommmmmmmmmmosia 29210116=6.1 

1.559 
=MMIN 

22,743 mo=mmmm= =1010===;.= 859 =ffezzi 440,716 musemms= 22,$25 s=emntaamiceg 
LIABILITIES 
Overdraft 73 42,933 
Derivatives held for trading 1.464 22360 775 397.587 23,355 
Total financial liabilities 1,537 22,760 775 440,520 23,355 

Global Short Duration Fund 
2016 

AUD CAD CHF EUR GBP HKD .IPY USD Other 
$000 5'000 5000 5'000 5'000 $000 $'000 5'000 5'000 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 2 _ 8 100 - 21 
Investment securities designated at fair value through profit or loss 2,913 5,226 155,351 
Derivatives held for trading 3,388 5,379 722 191,339 
Receivables 170 12 10.652 
Total financial assets 6,471 ==== 10,625 ====,...tm 822 357,342 , 21 emsemmmasmsmamm 
LIABILITIES 
Overdraft 78 2,123 
Derivatives held for trading 6.410 10.766 1.023 351.991 
Total financial liabilities 6,488 10,766 1123 354,114 

NZ Shares Fund 
2017 

AUD CAD Cl-IF EUR GBP HKD JP1( USD Other 
$'000 5'000 5'000 5'000 $000 S'000 5'000 5000 5000 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 41 
Investment securities designated at fair value through profit or loss 18,086 
Receivables 172 
Total financial assets 18,299 
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13e. Currency Risk 
NZ Shares Fund 
2016 

AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

AUD CAD CHF EUR GBP HKD JPY USD Other 
5000 S'000 S000 S000 S'000 S000 S'000 S'000 S'000 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 24 

Investment securities designated at fair value through profit or loss 4.166 

Total financial assets 4.190 

Responsible Investment Leaders NZ Shares Fund 
2017 

AUD CAD CHF EUR GBP HKD JPY USD Other 
S'000 S'000 S000 $000 S000 S'000 $000 S000 $000 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 16 

Investment securities designated at fair value through profit or loss 240 

Total financial assets 256 
==MCIMMZEIM 

Responsible Investment Leaders NZ Shares Fund 
2016 

AUD CAD CHF EUR GBP HKD JPY USD Other 
5'000 $000 S'000 S000 5000 S000 S'000 S'OUO S'000 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 10 
Total financial assets 10 

Australian Shares Fund 
2017 

AUD CAD CHF EUR GBP HKD JPY USD Other 
S000 S'000 S000 S000 S000 $000 S000 S'000 S'000 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 77 
Investment securities designated at fair value through profit or loss 172,694 

Total financial assets 172,771  
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AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

13e. Currency Risk 
Australian Shares Fund 
2016 

ASSETS 

AUD 
5000 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

CAD 	CHF 	EUR 	GBP 
S'000 	5'000 	S'000 	S'000 

HKD 
5'000 

JPY 
5'000 

USD 
S'000 

Other 
5000 

Cash and cash equivalents 75 
Investment securities designated at fair value through profit or loss 77.697 
Total financial assets 77.772 

Strategic NZ Shares Fund 
2016 

AUD CAD CHF EUR GBP HKD JPY USD Other 
S'000 5000 S'000 $000 5'000 5.000 $000 5'000 5'000 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents 42 
Investment securities designated at fair value through profit or loss 1,840 
Receivables 533 
Total financial assets 2,415 
LIABILITIES 
Derivatives held for trading 554 

Total financial liabilities 554 

Global Shares Fund 
2017 

AUD CAD CHF EUR GBP HKD JPY USD Other 
5000 S000 5'000 5'000 S'000 5000 5'000 5'000 S'000 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 7 4 5 - 16 II 
Investment securities designated at fair value through profit or loss 16,395 - - - - - 
Derivatives held for trading 5,699 3.281 2,892 10,027 5.978 3.408 8,130 926 1.701 
Total financial assets 22401 3,281 2,896 10,027 5,983 =..... 3,408 8046 937 1,701 
LIABILITIES 
Overdraft 4 - 14 - I - - 
Derivatives held for trading 11,354 6.529 5.755 20,346 11.864 6,820 16.088 56,666 6.136 
Total financial liabilities 11,354  6,533  5,755  20.360 11,864  6,821 16,088 56.666 6 136 
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AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

13e. Currency Risk 
Global Shares Fund 
2016 

AUD 	CAD 	CHF 	EUR 	GBP 	HKD 	JPY 	USD 	Other 
5'000 	S000 	S'000 	5'000 	5000 	S'000 	$000 	5'000 	S'000 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investment securities designated at fair value through profit or loss 
Derivatives held for trading 
Total financial assets 
LIABILITIES 
Overdraft 
Derivatives bald for trading 
Total financial liabilities 

Responsible Investment Leaders Global Shares Fund 
2017 

	

7 	 4 	 13 	 I 	 2 	30 

	

16,163 	 - 	 - 

	

5.021 	2,988 	3,232 	10,337 	6.433 	3,033 	7,959 	52.215 	2,782 

	

21,191 	2,988 	3,236 	10,350 	6,434, 	_3.035 	7,989 	52,215 	2,782 .9901-.19 

	

- 	 5 	 - 	 - 	 - 	39 

	

10.342 	6,135 	6,377 	20.937 	13.041 	6.312 	16.203 	107.702 	5,705 

	

10 342 	6,140 	6,377 	20,937 	13,041 	6,312 	16,203 	107,741 	5,705  

AUD 	CAD 	CHF 	EUR 	GBP 	HKD 	JPY 	USD 	Other 
5000 	5'000 	$000 	5'000 	S'000 	5000 	5'000 	5'000 	5'000 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investment securities designated at fair value through profit or loss 
Derivatives held for trading 
Total financial assets 
LIABILITIES 
Derivatives held for trading 
Total financial liabilities 

- 

	

59,089 	 - 	 - 	 - 	 - 

	

2.362 	1.360 	1,198 	4,159 	2.478 	1.412 	3,373 	235 	701 
61,452 	1,360 	1,198 	4,159 	2,478 	1,412 	3,373 	235 	701 

8.529 	4.971 	2,858 	6,743 	23,531 	2.572 
8 529 	497l 	2,858 	6,743  

	

858 	23,531 ...=1=== samontamngiacm == =im 

4.757 	2,735 	2.411  
4 757 	2,735 	2,411 =lei= memaccem=camama s=mm 2.572 
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AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

13e. Currency Risk 
Responsible Investment Leaders Global Shares Fund 
2016 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

AUD CAD CHF EUR GBP HKD JPY 	USD Other 
S'000 S'000 5'000 S000 $'000 S'000 S'000 	S'000 $000 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investment securities designated at fair value through profit or loss 50,748 - - - 	- 
Derivatives held for trading 1,822 1,068 1.174 3.771 2,336 _j,,085 2,887 	18.680 984 
Total financial assets 52,571 1,068 1 174 3,771 336 1,085 2,887 	18,680 984 
LIABILITIES 

am 	..... ....................... 

Derivatives held for trading 3.743 2.205 2,309 7.597 4.721 2.269 5,863 	38.706 2,039 
Total financial liabilities 3,743 2,205 =sm: 2,309 ognatmaac= 7,597 =ie= em=mm= 4,721 2,269 863 	38,706 =tege.= 3=esos= 561   2,039 mommngwarar 

Care Hedged Global Shares Fund 
2017 

AUD CAD CHF EUR GBP IIKD JPY 	USD Other 
S'000 S'000 S'000 S'000 8000 S'000 S'000 	S'000 S'O00 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 19 27 63 94 	334 
Derivatives held for trading 21.193 27.916 24.581 84.938 50.657 8,982 68.463 	7,847 8.130 
Total financial assets 21,212 27,916 24,608 84,938 50,720 8,982 68,557 	8,181 L)30 
LIABILITIES 
Overdraft 46 38 14 
Derivatives held for trading 42.445 55.707 49.425 173.891 101,541 18.118 136.611 	471.567 16.373 
Total financial liabilities 42 445 55,753 49,425 173.929 101,541 18,132 136,611471,567 ==i= 16,373 

Core Hedged Global Shares Fund 
2016 

AUD CAD CHF EUR GBP IIKD JPY 	USD Other 
S'000 S'000 S'000 S'000 S'000 $000 S'000 	S'000 $000 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 84 - 22 146 22 4 222 	2 
Derivatives held for trading 15.225 19,334 20,838 66,468 42,108 6.427 51.806 	334.606 6.507 
Total financial assets 15 309 19,334 20,860 66,614 42,130 6,431 52.028 	334,608 6,507 
LIABILITIES 
Overdraft 42 - - - - 
Derivatives held for trading 30.954 39 ,772 41.315 135.275 84,892 13.419 103,689 	694.872 12.999 
Total financial liabilities 30 954  39 814  41,315  135 275  84892 13,419 103,689 	694,872  12,999  
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Emerging Markets Shares Fund 
2017 

AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

AUD CAD CHF EUR GBP HKD JPY USD Other 
5'000 $000 S000 S'000 S000 S000 $000 S'000 $'000 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 1 
Investment securities designated at fair value through profit or loss 71.398 
Total financial assets 71,399 

Emerging Markets Shares Fund 
2016 

AUD CAD CHF EUR GBP HKEr JPY USD Other 
S'000 S'000 $000 S000 $000 5'000 S000 5000 S'000 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investment securities designated at fair value through profit or loss 70,199 
Total financial assets 70,200 

NZ Property Fund 
2017 

AUD CAD CHF EUR GBP 1-110 JPY USD Other 
5000 S'000 S'000 S'000 S'000 $000 S'000 S'000 $000 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 876 
Investment securities designated at fair value through profit or loss 47,861 
Receivables 21 
Total financial assets 4 ,8 758 

99999999999999;111 -- 

LIABILITIES 
Derivatives held for trading 46,923 
Total financial liabilities 46,923 
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AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

13e. Currency Risk 
NZ Property Fund 
2016 

AUD 	CAD 	CHF 	EUR 	GBP 	HKD 	JPY 	USD 	Other 
S'000 	S'000 	S'000 	8000 	$'000 	S'O00 	8000 	S'000 	8000 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investment securities designated at fair value through profit or loss 
Derivatives held for trading 
Receivables 
Total financial assets 
LIABILITIES 
Derivatives held for trading 
Total financial liabilities 

Listed Property Securities Fund 
2017 

AHD 	CAD 	CHF 	EUR 	GBP 	HKD 	JPY 	USD 	Other 
8000 	S'000 	$000 	S'000 	S'000 	8000 	8'000 	S'000 	$000 

ASSETS 
Investment securities designated at fair value through profit or loss 
Total financial assets 

Listed Property Securities Fund 
2016 

968 
968 

AUD 	CAD 	CHF 	EUR 	GBP 	HKD 	JPY 	USD 	Other 
S'000 	$000 	S'000 	S'000 	S'000 	S'000 	8000 	S'000 	8000 

ASSETS 
Investment securities designated at fair value through profit or loss 
Total financial assets 

208 
208 ....... 
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13e. Currency Risk 
Global Property Securities Fund 
2017 

AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

AUD CAD CHF EUR GBP HKD 	JPY USD Other 
5'000 S'000 5000 S'000 S'000 $000 	S'000 S'000 S'000 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 1 21 6 53 
Investment securities designated at fair value through profit or loss 17,269 2,477 18,549 7,567 1,100 	21,272 109,765 5,092 
Derivatives held for trading 1,014 2,052 425 
Receivables 1 489 126 1.625 33 
Total financial assets 17,270 2,435 - 19,584 10,114 53121 398 111,443 5,125  
LIABILITIES 
Derivatives held for trading 16,929 2,449 19,644 9,874 425 	22,214 114,182 5,224 
Payables 1 102 
Total financial liabilities 16,929 2,449 19,644 9,874 1,527 	22,214 114,182 5,224 

Global Property Securities Fund 
2016 

AUD CAD CHF EUR GBP FIKD 	SPY USD Other 
S'000 S'000 $.000 S'000 S'000 $000 	S.000 S'000 S'000 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 1 23 6 70 
Investment securities designated at fair value through profit or loss 5,388 21,019 10,447 13,177 76,806 1,905 
Derivatives held for trading 9,371 247 
Receivables 27 30 
Total financial assets _5,389 ...I:6 042  ...LULL =Jail ...LUIZ: ....I/a 
LIABILITIES 
Derivatives held for trading 5,367 21,028 10,420 13,356 75,310 2,115 
Payables 8.951 
Total financial liabilities 5,367  	 21,028  10,420  	 13,356  	 84,261  2,95  
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13e. Currency Risk 
Global Listed Infrastructure Fund 
2017 

AUD 

AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

CAD 	CLEF 	EUR 	GBP 	HKD JPY USD Other 
5'000 5'000 5000 5000 5'000 5000 5000 5000 5'000 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 259 181 18 33 25 33 171 1,202 3 
Investment securities designated at fair value through profit or loss 15,036 54,222 4,796 59,133 18,586 8,685 136,708 6,644 
Derivatives held for trading - 1,712 , 
Receivables 96 1.431 82 71 302 
Total financial assets 15.391 _55o34, 4,814 59,248 20,394 8,718 171 138,212 6,647 
LIABILITIES 
Derivatives held for trading 15.383 55,003 4,840 59,097 20.325 8,823 131.750 6,383 
Total financial liabilities 15,383 55 003 4,840 59,097 20,325 8,823 131,750 6,383 

Global Listed Infrastructure Fund 
2016 

AUD CAD CHF EUR GBP HKD JPY USD Other 
5'000 5000 5'000 5000 S' 000 S'000 S'000 5'000 S'000 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 32 1 17 14 24 25 71 164 4 
Investment securities designated at fair value through profit or loss 7,278 33,079 5,136 46,842 14,414 5,062 5,846 79,321 
Derivatives held for trading - 4,905 2,349 - 818 4,028 
Receivables - 43 - - 
Total financial assets 7,310 37,985 5 153 49,205 14,481 5,087 6,735 83,513 4 
LIABILITIES 
Derivatives held for trading 6,833 33,234 5,350 44,180 14,494 4,980 5,929 74,708 
Payables 4 777 2,350 769 3 867 
Total financial liabilities 6,833 38 011 550 46 530 14,494 980 6,698 78,575 
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13e. Currency Risk 
Commodities Fund 
2017 

AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

AUD CAD CHF EUR GBP HKD JPY USD Other 
S.000 S.000 S.000 5000 S.000 S.000 $000 $000 5.000 

LIABILITIES 
Overdraft 52 
Derivatives held for trading 4,759 
Total financial liabilities 

31.10 
4511 

Commodities Fund 
2016 

AUD CAD CHF EUR GBP HKD JPY USD Other 
5000 5000 5000 S.000 5000 5000 S.000 $000 $000 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 316 
Derivatives held for trading 9,267 
Total financial assets 9.583 
LIABILITIES 

Derivatives held for trading 74 
Total financial liabilities 74 
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AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

13e. Currency Risk 
The tables below show the sensitivity analysis by currency, where the Funds have significant currency risk exposure. The analysis shows the impact of a change in the New Zealand dollar to foreign currency exchange rates. 

Foreign cash and cash equivalents 

Global Multi-Asset Fund 
2017 

Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 
2016 

Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 
10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 

increase decrease increase decrease increase decrease increase decrease 
$000 	$000 	$000 	5000 	S'000 	S000 	$000 	S000 

AUD 	 (2) 	2 	(2) 	2 	(2) 	2 	(2) 	2 

Total 	 (2) 	2 	(2) 	2 	(2) 	2 	(2) 	2 

Income Generator Fund 
2017 	 2016 

Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 	Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 
10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	ID% 	10% 

increase decrease increase decrease increase decrease increase decrease 
S'000 	S'000 	S'000 	S'000 	5000 	5'000 	S'000 	$000 

ACID 	 (2) 	2 	(2) 	2 	(2) 	2 	(2) 	2 

Total 	 (2) 	2 	(2) 	2 	(2) 	2 	(2) 	2 

NZ Fixed Interest Fund 
2017 	 2016 

Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 	Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 
10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 

increase decrease increase decrease increase decrease increase decrease 
$000 	$000 	$000 	5000 	S*000 	S'000 	$000 	S'000 

AUD 
	 2 	(2) 	2 	(2) 	2 	(2) 	2 	(2) 

Total 
	 2 	(2) 	2 	(2) 	2 	(2) 	2 	(2) 
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AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

13e. Currency Risk 
Foreign cash and cash equivalents 

Global Short Duration Fund 	 NZ Shares Fund 
2017 	 2016 	 2017 	 2016 

Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 	Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 	Profit or loss 	Unit holders funds 	Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 
10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 

increase decrease increase decrease increase decrease increase decrease increase decrease increase decrease increase decrease increase decrease 
S'000 	S'000 	S'000 	5000 	S'000 	S'000 	S'000 	5000 	S'000 	5000 	S'000 	S'000 	S'000 	S'000 	S000 	S'000 

AUD 	 _ 	 _ 	 - 	- 	 (4) 	4 	(4) 	4 	(2) 	2 	(2) 	2 

EUR 	 7 	(7) 	7 	(7) 	8 	(8) 	If 	(8) 	- 	 _ 	_ 	 _ 

GBP 	 (81) 	81 	(81) 	81 	(1) 	1 	(1 ) 	1 	 - 	 - 	 - 
jpy 	 - 	- 	 - 	(10) 	10 	(10) 	10 	 - 	 - 	 - 

USD 	 4,293 	(4,293) 	4,293 	(4,293) 	212 	(212) 	212 	(212) 	- 	 - 	 - 

Other 	 (2) 	2 	(2) 	2 	(2) 	2 	(2) 	2 	- 	 - 	 - 

Total 	 4,217 	(4,217) 	4,217 	(4,217) 	207 	(207) 	207 	(207) 	(4) 	4 	(4) 	4 	(2) 	2 	(2) 	2 

	

Responsible Investment Leaders NZ Shares Fund 	 Australian Shares Fund 
2017 	 2016 	 2017 	 2016 

Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 	Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 	Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 	Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 
10% 	10% 

increase 	decrease 
S'000 	S'000 

10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 
increase 	decrease 	increase 	decrease 	increase 
S'000 	S'000 	S'000 	$000 

10% 	10% 
decrease 

S'000 	S'000 

10% 
increase 
S'000 

10% 
decrease 

S'000 

10% 
increase 
$000 

10% 
decrease 

5000 

Hi% 
increase 
S'000 

10% 
decrease 

5000 

10% 
increase 
5000 

10% 
decrease 

S'01)0 
AUD (2) 2 (2) 	2 	(1) 1 (1 ) 1 (8) 8 (8) 8 (8) 8 (8) 8 

Total (2) 2 (2) 	2 	(1) 1 (1) 1 (8) 8 (8) 8 (8) 8 (8) 8 

Strategic NZ Shares Fund 
2017 2016 

Profit or loss Unit holders' funds 	Profit or loss Unit holders' funds 
Hi% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 

increase decrease increase decrease increase decrease increase decrease 
5000 	S'000 	S'000 	$'000 	S'000 	S000 	S'000 	$000 

AUD 	 - 	 (4) 	4 	(4) 	4 

Total 	 (4) 	4 	(4) 	4 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

13e. Currency Risk 
Foreign cash and cash equivalents 

Global Shares Fund 
2017 

Profit or loss 
10% 	10% 

increase 	decrease 	increase 
$000 	5000 

Unit holders funds 
10% 	10% 

decrease 
S'000 	S'000 

2016 
Profit or loss 

10% 	10% 
increase 	decrease 	increase 

S'000 	$000 

Unit holders' funds 
10% 	10% 

decrease 
S000 	S000 

AUD (1) 1 (1) 	I (1) 1 (I) 1 

EUR 1 (1) 1 	(1 ) (1) 1 (I) 1 

WY (2) 2 (2) 	2 (3) 3 (3) 3 

USD (I) I (1) 	1 4 (4) 4 (4) 

Total (3) 3 (3) 	3 (1) 1 (1) 1 

Core Hedged Global Shares Fund 
2017 2016 

Profit or loss 
10% 	10% 

increase 	decrease 
S000 	S'000 

Unit holders' funds 
10% 	10% 

increase 	decrease 
$'000 	S'000 

Profit or loss 
10% 	10% 

increase 	decrease 
5'000 	S.000 

Unit holders' funds 
10% 	10% 

increase 	decrease 
S'000 	$000 

AUD (2) 2 (2) 2 (8) 8 (8) 8 

CAD 5 (5) 5 (5) 4 (4) 4 (4) 

Cl-IF (3) 3 (3) 3 (2) 2 (2) 2 

EUR 4 (4) 4 (4) (15) 15 (15) 15 

GBP (6) 6 (6) 6 (2) 2 (2) 2 

HKD I (I) I (1) 
jpy (9) 9 (9) 9 (22) 22 (22) 22 

USD (33) 33 (33) 33 

Total (43) 43 (43) 43 (45) 45 (45) 45 

NZ Property Fund 
2017 	 2016 

Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 	Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 
10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 

increase decrease increase decrease increase decrease increase decrease 
S000 	$.000 	5.000 	5000 	$000 	S'000 	S'000 	$000 

AUD (88) 88 (88) 88 (I) 1 (1) 1 

Total (88) 88 (88) 88 (1) 1 (1) 1 
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AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

13e. Currency Risk 
Foreign cash and cash equivalents 

Global Property Securities Fund 
2017 	 2016 

Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 	Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 
10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 

increase decrease increase decrease increase decrease increase decrease 
5'000 	S'000 	S'000 	S'000 	$000 	S'000 	S'000 	S'000 

EUR (2) 2 (2) 2 (2) 2 (2) 2 

GBP (1) 1 (1) I (1 ) 1 (1) 1 

USD (5) 5 (5) 5 (7) 7 (7) 7 

Total (8) 8 (8) 8 (10) 10 (I0) 10 

2017 
Profit or loss 

10% 	10% 
increase 	decrease 
$'000 	S'000 

Global Listed Infrastructure Fund 
2016 

	

Unit holders' funds 	Profit or loss 
10% 	10% 	100/u 	ID% 

increase 	decrease 	increase 	decrease 
S'000 	$'000 	S000 	S'000 

Unit holders' funds 
100/0 	10% 

increase 	decrease 
S'000 	$'000 

Commodities Fund 
2017 	 2016 

Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 	Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 
10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 

increase 	decrease 	increase 	decrease 	increase 	decrease 	increase 	decrease 
S'000 	S'000 	S'000 	S'000 	S'000 	S'000 	S'000 	$000 

AUD (26) 26 (26) 26 (3) 3 (3) 3 - _ _ _ _ _ _ - 

CAD (18) 18 (18) 18 _ - 

CHF (2) 2 (2) 2 (2) 2 (2) 2 - 

EUR (3) 3 (3) 3 (1 ) 1  (1) I 
GBP (2) 2 (2) 2 (2) 2 (2) 2 

HKD (3) 3 (3) 3 (3) 3 (3) 3 _ - 

JPY (17) 17 (17) 17 (7) 7 (7) 7 - 

USD (120) 120 (120) 120 (16) 16 (16) 16 5 (5) 5 (5) (32) 32 (32) 32 

Total (191) 191 (191) 191 (34) 34 (34) 34 5 (5) 5 (5) (32) 32 (32) 32 
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Profit or loss 
10% 	10% 

increase 	decrease 

AUD 
Total 

5'000 
64 
64 

2016 
Profit or loss 

10% 	10% 
increase 	decrease 
$000 	5'000 
(11,955) 	11,955 
(11,955) 	11,955 

Unit holders' funds 
10% 	10% 

increase 	decrease 
S'000 	5'000 
(11,955) 	11,955 
(11,955) 	11,955 

AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

13e. Currency Risk 
Foreign investment securities 

Responsible Investment Leaders Conservative Fund 
	

Responsible Investment Leaders Balanced Fund 
2017 
	 2016 

	
2017 	 2016 

Profit or loss 
10% 	10% 

increase 	decrease 
$'000 	S'000  

Unit holders' funds 
10% 	10% 

increase 	decrease 
S'000 
	

s'000 

Profit or lass 
10% 	10% 

increase 	decrease 
S'000 
	

5'000  

Unit holders' funds 
10% 	10% 

increase 	decrease 
5'000 	5'000  

Profit or loss 
10% 
	

10% 
increase 	decrease 

V000 
	

S'000  

Unit holders' funds 
10% 	10% 

increase 	decrease 
S'0013 	S'000 

Profit or loss 
10% 

increase 	decrease 
$'000 	S'000  

Unit holders' funds 
10% 	10% 

increase 	decrease 
8'000 	$01111 

AUD (21) 21 (21) 21 (23) 23 (23) 23 (346) 346 (346) 346 (312) 312 (312) 312 

Total (21) 21 (21) 21 (23) 23 (23) 23 (346) 346 (346) 346 (312) 312 (312) 312 

Responsible Investment Leaders Growth Fund 
2016 2017 

Unit holders' funds 
10% 	10% 

increase 	decrease 
8'000 	S'000 

(64) 	64 
(64) 	64  

Profit or loss 
10% 	10% 

increase 	decrease 
S'000 	8000 

(80) 	80 
(80) 	SO  

Unit holders' funds 
10% 

increase 	decrease 
5'000 	S'000 

(80) 	80 
(80) 	80 

Global Multi-Asset Fund 

AUD 
Total 

2017 
Profit or loss 	Unit holders funds 

10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 
increase decrease increase decrease 

S'000 	S'000 	S000 	8'000 
(15,737) 	15,737 	(15,737) 	15,737 
(15,737) 	15,737 	(15,737) 	15,737 

Income Generator Fund 

AUD 
Total 

2017 
Profit or loss 

10% 	10% 
increase 	decrease 
8000 	8000 

(677) 	677 
(677) 	677  

Unit holders' funds 
10% 	10% 

increase 	decrease 
8000 	$000 

(677) 	677 
(677) 	677  

2016 
Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 

IO% 	10% 	10% 	10% 
increase decrease increase decrease 

S'000 
	

S'000 	$000 	S'000 
(281) 
	

281 	(281) 	281 
(281) 
	281 	(281) 	281 
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

13e, Currency Risk 
Foreign investment securities 

NZ Fixed Interest Fund 
2017 	 2016 

Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 	Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 
10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 

increase decrease increase decrease increase decrease increase decrease 
5'000 	S'000 	S'000 	S'000 	5000 	5000 	S'O00 	$'000 

AUD 
	 (12,973) 	12,973 	(12,973) 	12,973 	(13,826) 	13,826 	(13,826) 	13,826 

Total 
	 (12,973) 	12,973 	(12,973) 	12,973 	(13,826) 	13,826 	(13,826) 	13,826 

NZ Short Duration Fund 
2017 	 2016 

Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 	Profit or loss 	Unit holders funds 
10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 

increase decrease increase decrease increase decrease increase decrease 
5'000 	S'000 	S'000 	$'000 	S'000 	$'000 	S'000 	$000 

AUD 	 (1,628) 	1,628 	(1,628) 	1,628 	(1,897) 	1,897 	(1,897) 	1,897 

Total 	 (1,628) 	1,628 	(1,628) 	1,628 	(1,897) 	1,897 	(1,897) 	1,897 

Global Short Duration Fund 	 NZ Shares Fund 
2017 	 2016 	 2017 	 2016 

Profit or loss 
10% 	10% 

increase 	decrease 
5000 	S'000 

Unit holders' funds 
10% 	10% 

increase 	decrease 
S'000 	S'000 

Profit or loss 
10% 	10% 

increase 	decrease 
8'000 	$000 

Unit holders' funds 
10% 	IO% 

increase 	decrease 
S'000 	S'000 

Profit or loss 
10% 	10% 

increase 	decrease 
5000 	S'000 

Unit holders' funds 
10% 	10% 

increase 	decrease 
S'000 	5000 

Profit or loss 
10% 	10% 

increase 	decrease 
S'000 	S'000 

Unit holders' funds 
10% 	10% 

increase 	decrease 
$000 	S'000 

AUD - _ _ (1,809) 1,809 (1,809) 1,809 (417) 417 (417) 417 

EUR (141) 141 (141) 141 (291) 291 (291) 291 , _ _ _ 

GBP (444) 444 (444) 444 (523) 523 (523) 523 - - - 

USD (16,612) 16,612 (16,612) 16,612 (15,535) 15,535 (15,535) 15,535 - 

Other (2,263) 2,263 (2,263) 2,263 - - - 

Total (19,460) 19,460 (19,460) 19,460 (16,349) 16,349 (16,349) 16,349 (1,809) 1,809 (1,809) 1,809 (417) 417 (417) 417 
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2017 
Profit or loss 

10% 	10% 
increase 	decrease 

S'000 
	

S'000 
(7,140) 
	

7,140 
(7,140) 
	

7,140 

Unit holders' funds 
10% 	10% 

increase 	decrease 
$000 	$000 

(7,140) 	7,140 
(7,140) 	7,140 

AUD 
Total 

AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

Australian Shares Fund 

13e. Currency Risk 
Foreign investment securities 

Responsible Investment Leaders NZ Shares 
Fund 
2017 

Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 

	

10% 	10% 
	

10% 	10% 
increase decrease increase decrease 

	

5'000 
	

5'000 	5'000 
	

5'000 
AUD 
	 (24) 

	
24 	(24) 
	

24 

Total 
	

(24) 
	

24 	(24) 
	

24 

2017 
Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 

10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 
increase decrease increase decrease 

5'000 	5'000 
	

5'000 	5000 
(17,269) 	17,269 

	
(17,269) 	17,269 

(17,269) 	17,269 
	

(17,269) 	17,269  

2016 
Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 

10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 
increase decrease increase decrease 

5'000 	5'000 	S'000 	$'000 
(7,770) 	7,770 	(7,770) 	7,770 
(7,770) 	7,770 	(7,770) 	7,770 

Strategic NZ Shares Fund 

AUD 
Total 

2017 
Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 

10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 
increase decrease increase decrease 

5'000 
	

5'000 
	

5'000 	5'000  

2016 
Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 

10% 	10% 
	

10% 	10% 
increase decrease increase decrease 

5'000 
	

$000 
	

5'000 	5'000 
(184) 
	

184 
	

(184) 	184 

(184) 
	

184 
	

(184) 	184 

Unit holders' funds 
10% 	10% 

increase 	decrease 
5'000 	5'000 

	

(1,616) 	1,616 

	

(1,616) 	1,616 

Global Shares Fund 
2016 

Unit holders' funds 	Profit or loss 
10% 	10% 
	

10% 	10% 
increase decrease increase decrease 

5'000 
	

S'000 	5'000 	$'000 

	

(1,639) 
	

1,639 	(1,616) 	1,616 

	

(1,639) 
	

1,639 	(1,616) 	1,616 

Emerging Markets Shares Fund 

Responsible Investment Leaders Global Shares Fund 
2017 	 2016 

Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 	Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 
10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 

	
10% 	10% 

increase decrease increase decrease increase decrease increase decrease 
S'000 	$000 	5'000 	S'000 	5'000 	5'000 

	
5'000 	S'000 

(5,909) 	5,909 	(5,909) 	5,909 	(5,075) 	5,075 
	

(5,075) 	5,075 

(5,909) 	5,909 	(5,909) 	5,909 	(5,075) 	5,075 
	

(5,075) 	5,075 

NZ Property Fund 

2017 
Profit or loss 

10% 	10% 
increase 	decrease 

S'000 	5'000 
AUD 
	

(1,639) 	1,639 

Total 
	

(1,639) 	1,639 

2016 
Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 

1.0% 	10% 	10% 	10% 
increase decrease increase decrease 

5'000 	S'000 	5000 	5'000 
(7,020) 	7,020 	(7,020) 	7,020 

(7,020) 	7,020 	(7,020) 	7,020  

2017 
Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 

10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 
increase decrease increase decrease 

5'0013 	5'000 	5'000 	$'000 
(4,786) 	4,786 	(4,786) 	4,786 
(4,786) 	4,786 	(4,786) 	4,786  

2016 
Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 

10% 	10% 
	

10% 	10% 
increase decrease increase decrease 

S'000 	S'000 	S'000 	$0110 
(4,779) 	4,779 	(4,779) 	4,779 
(4,779) 	4,779 	(4,779) 	4,779 
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AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

13e. Currency Risk 
Foreign investment securities 

2017 
Profit or loss 

10% 	10% 
increase 	decrease 
8'000 	S'000 

Listed Property Securities Fund 
2016 

Unit holders' funds 	Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 
10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 

increase 	decrease 	increase 	decrease 	increase 	decrease 
S'000 	S'000 	5000 	S'000 	S'000 	8000 

Global Property Securities Fund 
2017 	 2016 

Profit or loss 	Unit holders funds 	Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 
ID% 	10% 	10% 	Ill% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 

increase 	decrease 	increase 	decrease 	increase 	decrease 	increase 	decrease 
S000 	S000 	S'000 	S'000 	5000 	S'000 	S'000 	S'000 

ADD (97) 97 (97) 97 (21) 21 (21) 21 (1,727) 1,727 (1,727) 1,727 (539) 539 (539) 539 
CAD . (248) 248 (248) 248 - - 
EUR - (1,855) 1,855 (1,855) 1,855 (2,102) 2,102 (2,102) 2,102 
GBP - (757) 757 (757) 757 (1,045) 1,045 (1,045) 1,045 
FIKD - - - (110) 110 (110) 110 - - 
jpy - - (2,127) 2,127 (2,127) 2,127 (1,318) 1,318 (1,318) 1,318 
USD - - (10,976) 10,976 (10,976) 10,976 (7,681) 7,681 (7,681) 7,681 
Other - - - (509) 509 (509) 509 (190) 190 (190) 190 
Total (97) 97 (97) 97 (21) 21 (21) 21 (18,309) 18,309 (18,309) 18,309 (12,875) 12,875 (12,875) 12,875 

2017 
Profit or loss 

10% 	10% 
increase 	decrease 
S'000 	S'000 

Global Listed Infrastructure Fund 
2016 

Unit holders' funds 	Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 
10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 

increase 	decrease 	increase 	decrease 	increase 	decrease 
S000 	S000 	8000 	5000 	S'000 	S'000 

AUD (1,504) 1,504 (1,504) 1,504 (728) 728 (728) 728 
CAD (5,422) 5,422 (5,422) 5,422 (3,308) 3,308 (3,308) 3,308 
CHF (480) 480 (480) 480 (514) 514 (514) 514 
EUR (5,913) 5,913 (5,913) 5,913 (4,684) 4,684 (4,684) 4,684 
GBP (1,859) 1,859 (1,859) 1,859 (1,441) 1,441 (1,441) 1,441 
HKD (868) 868 (868) 868 (506) 506 (506) 506 
JPY - - - - (585) 585 (585) 585 
USD (13,671) 13,671 (13,671) 13,671 (7,932) 7,932 (7,932) 7,932 
Other (664) 664 (664) 664 . - 
Total (30,381) 30,381 (30,381) 30,381 (19,698) 19,698 (19,698) 19,698 
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AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

13e. Currency Risk 
Derivatives 

Responsible Investment Leaders Balanced Fund 
2017 	 2016 

Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 	Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 
10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 

increase 	decrease 	increase 	decrease 	increase 	decrease 	increase 	decrease 
S'000 	S'000 	$000 	S'000 	S'000 	S'000 	$000 	$'000 

AUD 108 (108) 108 (108) 122 (122) 122 (122) 

CAD (3) 3 (3) 3 (1 ) 1 (1 ) 1 

Cl-IF (3) 3 (3) 3 (1 ) 1 (1 ) 1 

EUR (9) 9 (9) 9 (3) 3 (3) 3 

GB? (5) 5 (5) 5 (2) 2 (2) 2 

1-1KD (3) 3 (3) 3 (1) 1 (1 ) 1 
JPY (7) 7 (7) 7 (3) 3 (3) 3 

USD (69) 69 (69) 69 (18) 18 (18) 18 

Total 9 (9) 9 (9) 93 (93) 93 (93) 

Responsible Investment Leaders Growth Fund 
2017 	 2016 

Profit or lass 	Unit holders' funds 	Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 
ID% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 

increase decrease increase decrease increase decrease increase decrease 
S'000 	S'000 	S'000 	S'000 	S'000 	S'000 	5'000 	S'000 

AUD 	 - 	- 	 32 	(32) 	32 	(32) 

Total 	 - 	32 	(32) 	32 	(32) 

Global Multi-Asset Fund 
2017 	 2016 

Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 	Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 
10% 

increase 
10% 

decrease 
10% 

increase 
10% 

decrease 
10% 

increase 
IO% 

decrease 
10% 

increase 
10% 

decrease 
$000 $000 S'000 $000 S'000 S'000 S'000 S'000 

AUD 15,749 (15,749) 15,749 (15,749) 11,961 (11,961) 11,961 (11,961) 

Total 15,749 (15,749) 15,749 (15,749) 11,961 (11,961) 11,961 (11,961) 
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AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 
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13e. Currency Risk 
Deriva lives 

NZ Fixed Interest Fund 
2017 
	

2016 
Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 	Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 

10% 
increase 

10% 
decrease 

10% 
increase 

10% 
decrease 

10% 
increase 

10% 
decrease 

10% 
increase 

10% 
decrease 

5'000 S'000 S'00111 S'000 8000 5'000 8'000 S'000 
AUD 13,394 (13,394) 13,394 (13,394) 14,560 (14,560) 14,560 (14,560) 

Total 13,394 (13,394) 13,394 (13,394) 14,560 (14,560) 14,560 (14,560) 

NZ Short Duration Fund 
2017 

Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 
10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 

increase decrease increase decrease  

2016 
Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 

10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 
increase decrease increase decrease 

5'000 	S000 
	

5'000 	5'000 
	

S'000 
	

8'000 	5000 	5'000 
AUD 1,684 (1,684) 1,684 (1,684) 1,995 (1,995) 1,995 (1,995) 

Total 1,684 (1,684) 1,684 (1,684) 1,995 (1,995) 1,995 (1,995) 

Global Short Duration Fund 
2017 
	

2016 
Profit or loss 

10% 	10% 
increase 	decrease 
5'000 	S'000 

Unit holders' funds 
10% 	10% 

increase 	decrease 
S'000 	S'000 

Profit or loss 
10% 	10% 

increase 	decrease 
5'000 	$000 

Unit holders' funds 
10% 	TO% 

increase 	decrease 
S'000 	S'000 

EUR 132 (132) 132 (132) 302 (302) 302 (302) 

GBP 527 (527) 527 (527) 539 (539) 539 (539) 

WY (8) 8 (8) 8 30 (30) 30 (30) 

USD 16,925 (16,925) 16,925 (16,925) 16,065 (16,065) 16,065 (16,065) 

Other 2,335 (2,335) 2,335 (2,335) 

Total 19,911 (19,911) 19,911 (19,911) 16,936 (16,936) 16,936 (16,936) 

Strategic NZ Shares Fund 

AUD 
Total 

2017 
Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 

	

10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 
increase decrease increase decrease 

	

S'000 
	

S'000 
	

$000 	S000  

2016 
Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 

10% 
	

10% 	10% 	10% 
increase decrease increase decrease 
S'000 
	

S'000 	$000 
	

5'000 
55 
	

(55) 	55 
	

(55) 
55 
	

(55) 	55 
	

(55) 
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13e. Currency Risk 
Derivatives 

2017 
Profit or loss 

10% 	10% 
increase 	decrease 

5'000 	S'000 

Global Shares Fund 
2016 

Unit holders' funds 	Profit or loss 	Unit holders funds 
10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 

increase 	decrease 	increase 	decrease 	increase 	decrease 
$'000 	S'000 	5'000 	$000 	$'000 	S'000 

Responsible Investment Leaders Global Shares Fund 
2017 	 2016 

Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 	Profit or loss 
10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 

increase 	decrease 	increase 	decrease 	increase 	decrease 
S'000 	S'000 	S000 	S'000 	S'000 	$000 

Unit holders' funds 
10% 	10% 

increase 	decrease 
$000 	S'000 

AUD 566 (566) 566 (566) 532 (532) 532 (532) 240 (240) 240 (240) 192 (192) 192 (192) 
CAD 325 (325) 325 (325) 315 (315) 315 (315) 138 (138) 138 (138) 114 (114) 114 (114) 
Cl-IF 286 (286) 286 (286) 314 (314) 314 (314) 121 (121) 121 (121) 113 (113) 113 (113) 
EUR 1,032 (1,032) 1,032 (1,032) 1,060 (1,060) 1,060 (1,060) 437 (437) 437 (437) 383 (383) 383 (383) 
GBP 589 (589) 589 (589) 661 (661) 661 (661) 249 (249) 249 (249) 239 (239) 239 (239) 
HKD 341 (341) 341 (341) 328 (328) 328 (328) 145 (145) 145 (145) 118 (118) 118 (118) 
jpy 796 (796) 796 (796) 824 (824) 824 (824) 337 (337) 337 (337) 298 (298) 298 (298) 
USD 5,574 (5,574) 5,574 (5,574) 5,549 (5,549) 5,549 (5,549) 2,330 (2,330) 2,330 (2,330) 2,003 (2,003) 2,003 (2,003) 
Other 443 (443) 443 (443) 292 (292) 292 (292) 187 (187) 187 (187) 105 (105) 105 (105) 
Total 9,952 (9,952) 9•952 (9,952) 9,875 (9,875) 9,875 (9,875) 4,184 (4,184) 4,184 (4,184) 3,565 (3,565) 3,565 (3,565) 

Core Hedged Global Shares Fund 
2017 	 2016 

Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 	Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 
10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 

increase 	decrease 	increase 	decrease 	increase 	decrease 	increase 	decrease 
8000 	S'000 	$000 	$000 	S'000 	S'000 	S'000 	S'000 

AUD 2,125 (2,125) 2,125 (2,125) 1,573 (1,573) 1,573 (1,573) 
CAD 2,779 (2,779) 2,779 (2,779) 2,044 (2,044) 2,044 (2,044) 
CHF 2,484 (2,484) 2,484 (2,484) 2,048 (2,048) 2,048 (2,048) 
EUR 8,895 (8,895) 8,895 (8,895) 6,881 (6,881) 6,881 (6,881) 
GBP 5,088 (5,088) 5,088 (5,088) 4,278 (4,278) 4,278 (4,278) 
HKD 914 (914) 914 (914) 699 (699) 699 (699) 
WY 6,815 (6,815) 6,815 (6,815) 5,188 (5,188) 5,188 (5,188) 
USD 46,372 (46,372) 46,372 (46,372) 36,027 (36,027) 36,027 (36,027) 
Other 824 (824) 824 (824) 649 (649) 649 (649) 
Total 76,296 (76,296) 76,296 (76,296) 59,387 (59,387) 59,387 (59,387) 
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13e. Currency Risk 
Derivatives 

NZ Property Fund 
2017 	 2016 

Profit or loss 	Unit holders funds 	Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 
10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 

increase decrease increase decrease increase decrease increase decrease 
S'000 	S.000 	S'000 	S'000 	S000 	S'000 	S'000 	$'000 

AUD 	 4,692 	(4,692) 	4,692 	(4,692) 	4,750 	(4,750) 	4,750 	(4,750) 

Total 	 4,692 	(4,692) 	4,692 	(4,692) 	4,750 	(4,750) 	4,750 	(4,750) 

Global Property Securities Fund 
2017 

Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 
10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 

increase 	decrease 	increase 	decrease 
S'000 	S'000 	S'000 	S'000 

2016 
Profit or loss 	Unit holders.  funds 

10% 	10% 	HI% 	10% 
increase 	decrease 	increase 	decrease 
S'000 	S'000 	S'000 	S'000 

AUD 1,693 (1,693) 1,693 (1,693) 537 (537) 537 (537) 

CAD 245 (245) 245 (245) - - - 

EUR 1,863 (1,863) 1,863 (1,863) 2,103 (2,103) 2,103 (2,103) 

GBP 782 (782) 782 (782) 1,042 (1,042) 1,042 (1,042) 

WY 2,221 (2,221) 2,221 (2,221) 1,336 (1,336) 1,336 (1,336) 

USD 11,418 (11,418) 11,418 (11,418) 6,594 (6,594) 6,594 (6,594) 

Other 522 (522) 522 (522) 187 (187) 187 (187) 

Total 18,744 (18,744) 18,744 (18,744) 11,799 (11,799) 11,799 (11,799) 
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13e. Currency Risk 
Derivatives 

Global Listed Infrastructure Fund 
	

Commodities Fund 
2017 

Profit or loss 
10% 	10% 

increase 	decrease 
S'000 	8'000 

Unit holders' funds 
10% 	10% 

increase 	decrease 
S'000 	S000 

2016 
Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 

10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 
increase 	decrease 	increase 	decrease 

S`000 	S'000 	S'000 	S'000 

2017 
Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 

10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 
increase 	decrease 	increase 	decrease 
S'000 	S'000 	$1000 	S'000 

2016 
Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 

10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 
increase 	decrease 	increase 	decrease 

5'000 	S'000 	5'000 	5'000 
AUD 1,538 (1,538) 1,538 (1,538) 683 (683) 683 (683) 

CAD 5,500 (5,500) 5,500 (5,500) 2,833 (2,833) 2,833 (2,833) 

CHF 484 (484) 484 (484) 535 (535) 535 (535) 

EUR 5,910 (5,910) 5,910 (5,910) 4,183 (4,183) 4,183 (4,183) 

GBP 1,861 (1,861) 1,861 (1,861) 1,449 (1,449) 1,449 (1,449) 

HKD 882 (882) 882 (882) 498 (498) 498 (498) 

IPY 511 (511) 511 (511) 

USD 13,175 (13,175) 13,175 (13,175) 7,068 (7,068) 7,068 (7,068) 476 (476) 476 (476) (919) 919 (919) 919 

Other 638 (638) 638 (638) 

Total 29,988 (29,988) 29,988 (29,988) 17,760 (17,760) 17,760 (17,760) 476 (476) 476 (476) (919) 919 (919) 919 

Receivables/(Payables) 
Income Generator Fund 

2016 
Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 

10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 
increase decrease increase decrease 

AUD 
Total 

8000 	8000 
(1) 	1 
(1) 	1 

NZ Fixed Interest Fund 
2017 

Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 
10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 

increase decrease increase decrease 
S'000 
	

$000 	S'000 
	

S'000  

2016 
Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 

10% 
	

10% 	10% 	10% 
increase decrease increase decrease 

S'000 
	

$000 	8000 
	

s'000 
AUD (103) 103 (103) 103 (117) 117 (117) 117 

Total (103) 103 (103) 103 (117) 117 (117) 117 
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13e. Currency Risk 
Receivables/(Payables) 

NZ Short Duration Fund 
2017 	 2016 

Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 	Profit or loss 	Unit holders funds 
10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 

increase decrease increase decrease increase decrease increase decrease 
5'000 	S'000 	5'000 	S'000 	S'000 	5'000 	.5'000 	S'000 

AUD (14) 14 (14) 14 (18) 18 (18) 18 

Total (14) 14 (14) 14 (18) 18 (IS) 18 

Global Short Duration Fund 	 NZ Shares Fund 
2017 	 2016 	 2017 

Profit or loss 
10% 	ID% 

increase 	decrease 
S'000 	S'000 

Unit holders' funds 
10% 	10% 

increase 	decrease 
$'000 	$'000 

Profit or loss 
10% 	10% 

increase 	decrease 
5000 	S'O00 

Unit holders' funds 
10% 	10% 

increase 	decrease 
5'000 	5000 

Profit or loss 
DM 	10% 

increase 	decrease 
S'000 	5000 

Unit holders' funds 
10% 	10% 

increase 	decrease 
5000 	5'000 

AUD - - - (17) 17 (17) 17 

EUR - (17) 17 (17) 17 - 

GBP (1) 1 (1) 1 (1 ) 1 (1) 1 - 

USD (4,626) 4,626 (4,626) 4,626 (1,065) 1,065 (1,065) 1,065 - 

Other (17) 17 (17) 17 

Total (4,644) 4,644 (4,644) 4,644 (1,083) 1,083 (1,083) 1,083 (17) 17 (17) 17 

Strategic NZ Shares Fund 
2017 	 2016 

Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 	Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 
10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 

increase decrease increase decrease increase decrease increase decrease 
8000 	5000 	5000 	5'000 	S'000 	S'000 	5000 	S000 

AUD 	 _ 	_ 	 (53) 	53 	(53) 	53 

Total 	 (53) 	53 	(53) 	53 

NZ Property Fund 
2017 	 2016 

Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 	Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 
10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 

increase decrease increase decrease increase decrease increase decrease 
S'000 	8'000 	S'000 	S'000 	S'000 	5000 	S'000 	S'000 

AUD (2) 2 (2) 2 (1) 1 (1 ) 1 

Total (2) 2 (2) 2 (1) 1 (I) 1 
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13e. Currency Risk 
Reccivables/(Payables) 

Global Property Securities Fund 
2017 

Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 
10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 

increase 	decrease 	increase 	decrease 
8'000 	$'000 	$'000 	$000 

2016 
Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 

la% 	10% 	10% 	10% 
increase 	decrease 	increase 	decrease 
$'000 	S4100 	5'000 	5000 

CAD (1 ) 1 (1) 1 - 

GBP (49) 49 (49) 49 (3) 3 (3) 3 

HKD 110 (110) 110 (110) - 
jpy (13) 13 (13) 13 (3) 3 (3) 3 

USD (163) 163 (163) 163 895 (895) 895 (895) 

Other (3) 3 (3) 3 - - 
Total (119) 119 (119) 119 889 (889) 889 (889) 

Global Listed Infrastructure Fund 
2017 

Profit or loss 
10% 	10% 

increase 	decrease 
5'000 	S'000 

Unit holders' funds 
10% 	10% 

increase 	decrease 
S'000 	S'000 

2016 
Profit or loss 	Unit holders' funds 

10% 	10% 	10% 	10% 
increase 	decrease 	increase 	decrease 
$000 	S'000 	S'000 	S'000 

AUD (10) 10 (10) 10 - - 

CAD (143) 143 (143) 143 478 (478) 478 (478) 

EUR (8) 8 (8) 8 235 (235) 235 (235) 

GBP (7) 7 (7) 7 (4) 4 (4) 4 

JPY 77 (77) 77 (77) 

USD (30) 30 (30) 30 387 (387) 387 (387) 

Total (198) 198 (198) 198 1,173 (1,173) 1,173 (1,173) 
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I3f. Fair Value of Financial Instruments 
Financial instruments that are measured at fair value are classified as Level 1,2 or 3 of the fair value hierarchy, depending on how their fair value is determined, i.e.: 

• 	Level I - Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; 
• Level 2- Those involving inputs other than quoted prices included in level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly 

(as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices); and 
• Level 3 - Those with inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs), 

When fair values of listed equity securities at the reporting date are based on quoted market prices or binding dealer price quotations without any deduction for transaction costs, the instruments are included within level 1 of the 
hierarchy. 

The fair value of units held by the Funds in managed investment funds is determined by reference to published bid prices being the redemption price established by the underlying fund's responsible Manager and are included within 
level 2. 

For other financial instruments, fair value is determined using valuation techniques, as disclosed in Critical Accounting Estimates and Assumptions. 

The Funds use widely recognised valuation models for determining fair values of over-the-counter derivatives. For these financial instruments, inputs into models are market observable and are therefore included within level 2. 

Due to their short term nature cash and cash equivalents, bank term deposits, accounts receivable and accounts payable are stated in the Statement of Financial Position at their carrying value which approximates to their fair value. 

Responsible Investment Leaders Conservative Fund 
2017 	 2016 

Level I 	Level 2 	Level 3 	Total 	Level I 	Level 2 	Level 3 	Total 
5'000 	S000 	S000 	S'000 	S'000 	S000 	S.000 	S'000 

Financial assets 
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or 
loss: 
NZ unit trusts 
Australian unit trusts 

 

7,883 
208 

8,091  

  

7,883 
208 

   

	

8474 	 8,674 

	

232 	 232 

             

             

    

8.09 

   

8,906  	 8,906  
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I3. Fair Value of Financial Instruments 
Responsible Investment Leaders Balanced Fund 

Level 1 

AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

2017 	 2016 
Level 2 	Level 3 	Total 	Level I 	Level 2 Level 3 Total 

5000 5'000 5000 5000 5000 5000 5000 5000 
Financial assets 
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or 
loss: 
NZ equities 40,452 40,452 39,552 39,552 
Australian equities and Australian equities unit trusts 3,461 3,461 3.121 3,121 

43 913 43,913 42,673 42,673 
Financial assets held for trading: 
Forward foreign exchange contracts 39 39 38 38 

39 39 38 38 
Financial liabilities 
Financial liabilities held for trading: 
Forward foreign exchange contracts 36 36 66 66 

36 36 66 66 

Responsible Investment Leaders Growth Fund 
2017 2016 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 
5'000 5'000 5000 5'000 5'000 5000 5'000 5000 

Financial assets 
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or 
loss: 
NZ unit trusts 4,887 4,887 6,199 6,199 
Australian unit trusts 641 641 801 801 

5,528 A528 7,000 7.000 
Financial assets held for trading: 
Forward foreign exchange contracts 2 2 

2 
Financial liabilities 
Financial liabilities held for trading: 
Forward foreign exchange contracts _ 5 _ 5 

5 
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13f. Fair Value of Financial Instruments 
Global Multi-Asset Fund 

AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

2017 	 2016 
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 
$000 S000 $000 $'000 S'000 S'000 $000 S'000 

Financial assets 
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or 
loss: 
NZ equities and NZ unit trusts 6,969 6,969 5,018 5,018 
Australian equities and Australian unit trusts 157.369 157,369 119,545 119,545 

164.338 164,338 124,563 124,563 
Financial assets held for trading: 
Forward foreign exchange contracts 48 48 119 119 

48 48 119 119 
Financial liabilities 
Financial liabilities held for trading: 
Forward foreign exchange contracts 4.137 4,137 - 2.615 2,615 

4,137 4,137 2,615 2,615 

Income Generator Fund 
2017 2016 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level I Level 2 Level 3 Total 
S000 8000 $000 S000 8000 8000 S'000 5'000 

Financial assets 
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or 
loss: 
NZ equities and NZ unit trusts 26,618 62,721 89,339 12,538 30,129 42,667 
Australian equities 1.764 5.004 6,768 587 2,224 2.811 

28,382 67,725 96,107 13.125 32,353 - 45A78 

NZ Cash Fund 
2017 2016 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 
S000 S000 S'000 8000 8000 S'000 8000 $000 

Financial assets 
Financial assets designated al fair value through profit or 
loss: 
NZ Government and Local government securities 29,841 - 29,841 20,030 - 20,030 
NZ discounted securities 1,266,933 - 1,266,933 806,203 - 806,203 
NZ fixed interest securities 648.778 - 648,778 640,998 640.998 

1,945,552 - 1,945 552 1,467,231 - 2.= 1.467.231 
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131. Fair Value of Financial Instruments 
NZ Fixed Interest Fund 

AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

2017 	 2016 
Level I Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 
5000 S'000 $000 S'000 S'000 S'000 $000 S'000 

Financial assets 
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or 
loss: 

NZ Government and local government securities 859,953 859,953 - 798,488 798,488 
NZ discounted securities 13,940 13,940 - 
NZ fixed interest securities 832,686 832,686 - 685,485 685,485 
Australian fixed interest securities 19 810 109.916 - 129.726 20.292 117.965 138.257 

19,810 1,816,495 - 1 836 305 -.-2.,..,..-a 20.292 1 1 60 	938 ..4......... ..1- 1,622,230 
Financial assets heldfor trading: 

Interest rate swaps 24,434 - 24,434 44,510 - 44,510 
Currency swaps 11 11 63 - 63 

24 445 445 44,573 - 44573 
Financial liabilities 
Financial liabilities held for trading: 

Interest rate swaps 20,383 20,383 34,823 34,823 
Currency swaps 3.053 3,053 5.973 5.973 

23.436 23.436 40,796 ........... 
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13f. Fair Value of Financial Instruments 
Ni Short Duration Fund 

AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

2017 	 2016 
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 
S000 S'000 S1100 S'000 5'000 5'000 S'000 S000 

Financial assets 
Financial assets designated ra fair value through profit or 
loss: 
NZ Government and local government securities 43,925 43,925 25,375 - 25,375 
NZ discounted securities 23,866 23,866 27,790 - 27,790 
NZ fixed interest securities - 271,652 271,652 - 141,506 _ 141,506 
Australian fixed interest securities 2,201 14.078 16,279 2.255 16,710 18,965 

2 201 353,521 355,722 2,255 ..,-- .----- 211,381 213,636 
Financial assets held for trading: 
Interest rate swaps 2,051 2,051 3,994 3,994 
Currency swaps 1 1 23 23 

2,052 - 2,052 4,017 4,017 
Financial liabilities 
Financial liabilities held for trading: 
Interest rate swaps 826 826 1,580 1,580 
Currency swaps 418 418 787 787 

1..244 1,244 2,367 2,367 

Hedged Global Fixed Interest Fund 
2017 2016 

Level I Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 
S'000 $000 S'000 S'000 S'000 S'000 8'000 5000 

Financial assets 
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or 
loss: 
NZ unit trusts 82,985 82 985 128.438 - 128,438 

82,985 , _2 985 128,438 	 128,438 
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13f. Fair Value of Financial Instruments 
Global Short Duration Fund 

AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

2017 	 2016 
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level I Level 2 Level 3 Total 
S'000 S000 5'000 S000 $`000 S'000 8000 S`000 

Financial assets 
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or 
loss: 
International fixed interest securities - 130,512 130,512 - 73,643 73,643 
International government securities 64,087 64,087 - 89,848 89.848 

194,599 194,599 163,491 163,491 
Financial assets held for trading: 
Forward foreign exchange contracts 282 282 9,325 9,325 
Options 6 6 

282 282 9331 9,331 
Financial liabilities 
Financial liabilities held for trading: 
Forward foreign exchange contracts - 5,580 5,580 - 1,833 1,833 
Interest rate swaps - 669 669 862 862 
Options _ - 9 9 

6,249 6,249 2.704 2,704 

NZ Shares Fund 
2017 2016 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 
5'000 5'000 5000 5000 5000 $'000 5'000 S`000 

Financial assets 
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or 
loss: 
NZ equities 412,221 _ 412,221 415,190 415,190 
Australian equities and Australian unit trusts 18,086 - 18.086 4.166 - - 4,166 

s..., 430,307 	 430,307  419,356 	 419,356  
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13f. Fair Value of Financial Instruments 
Responsible Investment Leaders NZ Shares Fund 

AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

2017 	 2016 
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 
S000 S'000 S'000 5000 S'000 S000 5'000 S'000 

Financial assets 
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or 
loss: 

NZ equities and NZ unit trusts 10,764 10,764 10,228 10,228 
Australian equities and Australian unit trusts 240 240 

11,004 11,004 I0,228 ========= 10,228 

Australian Shares Fund 
2017 2016 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 
S'000 S000 $'000 S'000 S000 $000 S'000 S'000 

Financial assets 
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or 
loss: 

Australian unit trusts l72694 172.694 77.697 77.697 
172,694 - 172,694 77697  77,697 

Strategic NZ Shares Fund 
2017 2016 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 
S'000 S000 S'000 5'000 $000 S'000 S'000 S000 

Financial assets 
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or 
loss: 

NZ equities 99,105 99,105 
Australian equities and Australian equities unit trusts L840 1.840 

1_0,945 100,945 

Financial assets held for trading: 

Forward foreign exchange contracts 
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13f. Fair Value of Financial Instruments 
Global Shares Fund 

AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

2017 2016 
Level I Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 
S'000 $000 $'000 5'000 $000 ST00 S000 $000 

Financial assets 
Financial assets designated a/ fair value through profit or 
loss: 
NZ unit trusts 123,361 123,361 124,495 124495 
Australian unit trusts 16.395 16.395 16.163 16 163 

139,756 139.756 140,658 140,658 
Financial assets held for trading: 
Forward foreign exchange contracts 23 •)5 3.777 3.777 

25 25 3 777 3.777 
Financial liabilities 
Financial liabilities held for trading: 
Forward foreign exchange contracts 3 306 3 306 319 329 

3,306 3,306 329 329 

Responsible Investment Leaders Global Shares Fund 
2017 2016 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 
S'000 $000 S000 5'000 $000 5'000 S'000 $000 

Financial assets 
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or 
loss: 
Australian unit trusts 59.089 59.089 - 50.748 50.748 

59,089 59,059 50,748 50,748 
Financial assets held for trading; 
Forward foreign exchange contracts 7 7 1 340 1.340 

7 7 1,340 1,340 
Financial liabilities 
Financial liabilities held for trading: 
Forward foreign exchange contracts 1 370 1.370 109 109 

1,370 1.370 109 109 
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13f. Fair Value of Financial Instruments 
Core Global Shares Fund 

Level 1 

AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

2017 	 2016 
Level 2 	Level 3 	Total 	Level I 	Level 2 Level 3 Total 

5'000 S'000 	S'000 S000 5000 S'000 5'000 5'000 
Financial assets 
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or 
loss: 
NZ unit trusts 871.454 871.454 687.973 687.973 

..... ....0451. 	- 871,454 687,973 =m.. k_,_87 973 ---- 

Core  Hedged Global Shares Fund 
2017 2016 

Level 1 Level 2 	Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 
S'000 5'000 	S'000 5'000 S'000 $000 S000 8000 

Financial assets 
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or 
loss: 
NZ unit trusts 547.334 	- 547.334 422.884 422.884 

547,334 547,334 .,2.2 884 422,884 
Financial assets held for trading: 
Forward foreign exchange contracts 140 140 23,016 23.016 

140 140 23,016 23,016 -- 
Financial liabilities 
Financial liabilities held for trading: 
Forward foreign exchange contracts 25,599 25.599 1.307 1,307 

01991111.1...9== 25 599 
11=1111=1116.9131 11=1. 25'599  

Emerging Markets Shares Fund 
2017 2016 

Level 1 Level 2 	Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 
S'000 $000 	S'000 S'000 $000 8'000 S'000 S000 

Financial assets 
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or 
loss: 
Australian unit trusts 71.398 71,398 70.199 - 70,199 

71,398  	 71,398 70,195  	 70,199 

- 127- 
EY 



131. Fair Value of Financial Instruments 
NZ Property Fund 

AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

2017 	 2016 
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 
S'000 S'000 $000 S'000 S'000 S000 S'000 S'000 

Financial assets 
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or 
loss: 
NZ equities and NZ unit trusts 66,979 - 66,979 73,503 604 74,107 
Australian equities and Australian unit trusts 47,861 47,861 47,791 47.791 

114,840 1147840 1211294 604 121,898 
Financial assets held for trading: 
Forward foreign exchange contracts 204 204 L101 1,101 

204 204 1,101 1,101 
Financial liabilities 
Financial liabilities held for trading: 
Forward foreign exchange contracts 39 39 

39 39 

Listed Property Securities Fund 
2017 2016 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level I Level 2 Level 3 Total 
$000 S'000 S'000 S'000 S'000 S000 S'000 5'000 

Financial assets 
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or 
loss: 
NZ equities 19,510 19,510 20,933 20,933 
Australian equities 968 968 208 208 

20,478  	 20,478  21,141  217141  
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13f. Fair Value of Financial Instruments 
Global Property Securities Fund 

Financial assets 
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or 
loss: 

Level 1 
8'000 

AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

2017 	 2016 
Level 2 	Level 3 	Total 	Level 1 	Level 2 
8'000 	S'000 	8000 	8000 	8'000 

Level 3 
8'000 

Total 
8'000 

NZ equities and NZ unit trusts 944 944 937 - 937 
Australian equities 17,269 17,269 5,388 _ 5,388 
International equities 165.821 165.821 123352 - 123 352 

184 034 184 034 129,677 129.677 
Financial assets held for trading: 
Forward foreign exchange contracts 118 118 5.244 5 244 

118 118 5,244 5.244 
Financial liabilities 
Financial liabilities held for trading: 
Forward foreign exchange contracts 1.622 1.622 118 118 

1422 1,622 118 118 

Global Listed Infrastructure Fund 
2017 2016 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 
8'000 8000 8000 8'000 8000 8'000 5'000 8000 

Financial assets 
Financial assets designated at fair value through prop or 
loss: 
Australian equities 15,036 - 15,036 7,278 7,278 
International equities 288,775 288.775 189.700 189,700 

303,811 303 811 196,978 ,. 196'  978 ,  
Financial assets held for trading: 
Forward foreign exchange contracts 81 81 - 6.787 6,787 

81 81 6,787 6,787 
Financial liabilities 
Financial liabilities held for trading: 
Forward foreign exchange contracts 2.123 2,123 - 69 69 

2,123 	 2,123 69 69 
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13f. Fair Value of Financial Instruments 
Commodities Fund 

Financial assets 
Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or 
loss: 

AMP CAPITAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

2017 	 2016 
Level 1 	Level 2 	Level 3 	Total 	Level 1 	Level 2 	Level 3 
5000 	5000 	5000 	S'000 	S000 	S'000 	S000 

Total 
S000 

NZ unit trusts 164 349 164,349 267.831 	 - 267,831 _wait 	- 164.349 - 	267.831 	 - 267,831 

Financial assets held for trading: 
Commodity index swaps 9.192 9.192 

9,192 97192 
Financial liabilities 
Financial liabilities held for trading: 
Commodity index swaps 4,759 4.759 

4,759 4,759 

Transfers between categories 
There were no transfers between levels in the year ended 31 March 2017 (31 March 2016: NO. 

14. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
There were no commitments or contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2017 (31 March 2016: Nil). 

15. POST BALANCE DATE EVENTS 
Between the balance date and the date of approval of these financial statements certain markets to which the Funds have investment exposures may have changed. Movements in markets are reflected on a daily basis in unit prices. 

Since 31 March 2017 there have been no matters or circumstances not otherwise dealt with in the financial statements that have significantly affected or may significantly affect the Funds. 
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Chartered Accountants 

Building a better 
working world 

Emphasis of Matter - Basis of Preparation of the Financial Statements 

The financial statements of one of the Funds, AMP Capital Strategic NZ Shares Fund, have been prepared on a 
realisation basis as described on page 24. This basis differs from the normal convention in that financial statements 
are usually prepared on the basis that the Fund will carry on business as a going concern. Under the realisation basis, 
the financial statements may include adjustments to the net book value of assets, reducing them to the amounts 
expected to be realised together with additional provisions and liabilities arising as a result of the Fund ceasing to 
operate. There were no adjustments required to the carrying values of assets and liabilities as a result of this Fund 
ceasing to operate. 

Our report is not qualified in this respect. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report 

The Manager is responsible for the Annual Report, which includes information other than the financial statements and 
auditor's report. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in 
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained during the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based upon the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this auditor's 
report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that 
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Manager's Responsibilities for the Financial Statements 

The Manager is responsible, on behalf of the Funds, for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in accordance with New Zealand Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards and 
International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as the Manager determines is necessary to 
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the Manager is responsible for assessing, on behalf of the Funds, the Funds' 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless the Manager either intends to liquidate the Funds or cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of Unit Holders taken on the basis of these financial 
statements. 

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located at the External 
Reporting Board website https://www.xrb.govt.nz/standards-for-assurance-practitioners/auditors-responsibilities. 
This description forms part of our auditor's report. 

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Emma Winsloe. 

et/Liq 51-4 Y(:)U1 

Wellington 
10 July 2017 

A member firm of Ernst 84 Young Global Limited 



Chartered Accountants 

Building a better 
working world 

Independent Auditor's Report to the Unit Holders of AMP Capital Investment Funds 
Report on the audit of the financial statements 
Opinion 
We have audited the financial statements of AMP Capital Investment Funds, comprising the following funds 
(collectively the "Funds"): 

• AMP Capital Responsible Investment Leaders Conservative Fund 
• AMP Capital Responsible Investment Leaders Balanced Fund 
• AMP Capital Responsible Investment Leaders Growth Fund 
• AMP Capital Global Multi-Asset Fund 
• AMP Capital Income Generator Fund 
• AMP Capital NZ Cash Fund 
• AMP Capital NZ Fixed Interest Fund 
4, 	AMP Capital NZ Short Duration Fund 
• AMP Capital Hedged Global Fixed Interest Fund 
• AMP Capital Global Short Duration Fund 
• AMP Capital NZ Shares Fund 
• AMP Capital Responsible Investment Leaders NZ Shares Fund 
• AMP Capital Australian Shares Fund 
• AMP Capital Strategic NZ Shares Fund 
a 	AMP Capital Global Shares Fund 
• AMP Capital Responsible Investment Leaders Global Shares Fund 
• AMP Capital Core Global Shares Fund 
• AMP Capital Core Hedged Global Shares Fund 
• AMP Capital Emerging Markets Shares Fund 
• AMP Capital NZ Property Fund 
• AMP Capital Listed Property Securities Fund 
• AMP Capital Global Property Securities Fund 
• AMP Capital Global Listed Infrastructure Fund 
• AMP Capital Commodities Fund 

The financial statements presented on pages 3 to 130 comprise the statement of financial position of the Funds as at 
31 March 2017, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in unit holders' funds and 
statement of cash flows for the year then ended of the Funds, and the notes to the financial statements including a 
summary of significant accounting policies. 

In our opinion, the financial statements on pages 3 to 130 present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position 
of the Funds as at 31 March 2017 and their financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in 
accordance with New Zealand Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards and International Financial 
Reporting Standards. 

This report is made solely to the Unit Holders of the Funds, as a body. Our audit has been undertaken so that we might 
state to the Unit Holders of the Funds those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no 
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than 
the Funds and the Unit Holders of the Funds, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand). Our responsibilities 
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
section of our report. 

We are independent of the Funds in accordance with Professional and Ethical Standard 1 (revised) Code of Ethics for 
Assurance Practitioners issued by the New Zealand Auditing and Assurance Standards Board, and we have fulfilled 
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

We provide other assurance services to the Funds. Partners and employees of our firm may deal with the Funds on 
normal terms within the ordinary course of business of the Funds. 

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited 



ACCOUNTING AND 
BUSINESS ADVISORS 

INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT TO UNITHOLDERS OF AMP CAPITAL GLOBAL INFRASTRUCTURE FUND 

Report on the Financial Report 

We have audited the accompanying financial report of AMP Capital Global Infrastructure Fund which comprises 
the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2017, the statement of comprehensive income, statement of 
changes in unitholder funds and statement of cashflows for the year then ended, notes comprising a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes. 

We are independent of the Fund in accordance with ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
financial report in the United States of America, together with the Accounting Professional & Ethical Standards 
Board Limited APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements, respectively. 

Managers' Responsibility for the Financial Report 

The directors of the Manager are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in 
accordance with New Zealand equivalent to International Financial Reporting Standards (NZ IFRS). The directors' 
responsibility also includes such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the fair 
preparation of financial reports that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the Funds ability to continue as a 
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting, unless management either intends to liquidate the Fund or to cease operations or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so. Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Funds financial 
reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We have conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in United States of America. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report is 
free from material misstatement. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these financial reports. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. 

LEVEL 18, CITY CENTRE 
55 MARKET STREET 
SYDNEY NEW 2000 
ESVGROURCOM.AU  

TELEPHONE. +61 2 9283 1666 
FACSIMILE. +61 2 9283 1866 
ADMIN@ESVGROUP.COM.AU  
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ACCOUNTING AND 
BUSINESS ADVISORS 

INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT TO UNITHOLDERS OF AMP CAPITAL GLOBAL INFRASTRUCTURE FUND 

We design audit procedures responsive to those risks and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error because fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and 
fair presentation of the financial report in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation, structure, and content of the financial report including disclosures and 
whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation. 

As part of an audit, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the 
audit. We also 

• conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 
may cast significant doubt on the Fund's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 
financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on 
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may 
cause the Fund to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the Fund or business 
activities within the Fund to express an opinion on the financial report. We are responsible for the direction, 
supervision, and performance of the Fund audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 

Opinion 
In our opinion, the financial report referred to above presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial position 
of AMP Capital Global Infrastructure Fund and the financial performance and its cashflows for the years then 
ended in accordance with NZ IFRS as described in Note 1. 

Dated at Sydney on the 4th day of September 2017. 

-.61,/ 

ESV Accounting and Business Advisors 



ACCOUNTING AND 
BUSINESS ADVISORS 

INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT TO UNITHOLDERS OF AMP CAPITAL GLOBAL PROPERTY SECURITIES FUND 

Report on the Financial Report 

We have audited the accompanying financial report of AMP Capital Global Property Securities Fund which 
comprises the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2017, the statement of comprehensive income, 
statement of changes in unitholder funds and statement of cashflows for the year then ended, notes comprising 
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes. 

We are independent of the Fund in accordance with ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
financial report in the United States of America, together with the Accounting Professional & Ethical Standards 
Board Limited APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements, respectively. 

Managers' Responsibility for the Financial Report 

The directors of the Manager are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in 
accordance with New Zealand equivalent to International Financial Reporting Standards (NZ I FRS). The directors' 
responsibility also includes such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the fair 
preparation of financial reports that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the Funds ability to continue as a 
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting, unless management either intends to liquidate the Fund or to cease operations or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so. Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Funds financial 
reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We have conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in United States of America. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report is 
free from material misstatement. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these financial reports. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. 
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ACCOUNTING AND 
BUSINESS ADVISORS 

INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT TO UNITHOLDERS OF AMP CAPITAL GLOBAL PROPERTY SECURITIES FUND 
CONT'D 

We design audit procedures responsive to those risks and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error because fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial report in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation, structure, and content of the financial report including disclosures and 
whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation. 

As part of an audit, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the 
audit. We also 

• conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 
may cast significant doubt on the Fund's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 
financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on 
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may 
cause the Fund to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the Fund or business 
activities within the Fund to express an opinion on the financial report. We are responsible for the direction, 
supervision, and performance of the Fund audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 

Opinion 
In our opinion, the financial report referred to above presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial position 
of AMP Capital Global Property Securities Fund and the financial performance and its cashflows for the years 
then ended in accordance with NZ IFRS as described in Note 1. 

Dated at Sydney on the 4th day of September 2017. 

€5V 

ESV Accounting and Business Advisors 
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